
CITY OF LEADVILLE
800 HARRISON AVE.
LEADVILLE, CO 80461

REGULAR COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA

January 16, 2024 6:00 P.M. Council Chambers & Zoom

 https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/83526944548?pwd=aEdjdGtpNlEyZmt5YVQ1bDBQbnN4dz09

Meeting ID: 835 2694 4548

Passcode: 80461

Dial by your location

+1 719 359 4580 US

6:00 pm 1. Call to order of regular meeting of the City Council

2. Roll Call
3. Optional Pledge of Allegiance or Moment of Silence
4. Approval of Agenda

5. Housekeeping Matters
6. Public Comments About Items Not on the Agenda

Citizens wishing to speak to council on issues not on the agenda are requested to
raise their hand in the participant’s section of Zoom or in person. The Mayor will call
on the public in order. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes (not including
council questions). Action, if required, will be assigned to City staff. For matters on
the agenda (which are not a public hearing) at the discretion of the Mayor, public
input can be heard prior to a vote being taken on the matter.

6:15 pm

7:15 pm

7.

8.

Department Reports
A. City Administrator
B. Street Department
C. Police Department
D. Fire Department
E. Human Resources
F. Animal Shelter
G. Deputy City Clerk - Licenses Report
H. Building Department
I. Planning Department
J. Financials
K. Sales Tax Comparisons
L. Bills

Presentations and Discussions:
A. Ski-Joring Presentation
B. Colorado Trust Presentation
C. Thelcrest Inc. presentation regarding 6-unit community housing at 220 E.

11th St.; request for Work Session

* These items may not have briefs or may have additional briefs Tuesday before the Council
meeting.

1 | Page

https://leadville-co-gov.zoom.us/j/83526944548?pwd=aEdjdGtpNlEyZmt5YVQ1bDBQbnN4dz09


8:15 pm 9.

D. Discussion Regarding An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of
Leadville, Colorado Regarding the Renting, Leasing and Sale of Off-Highway
Vehicles

Action Items:
A. Resolution No. 6, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City

of Leadville, Colorado, Filling the City Council Member Representing Ward 2
Vacancy by Appointment

B. Resolution No. 7, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City
of Leadville, Colorado Appointing the Mayor Pro Tem

C. Resolution No. 8, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City
of Leadville, Colorado Designating Authorized Signatories of the City’s Bank
Accounts

D. Resolution No. 9, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City
of Leadville, Colorado Authorizing the City to Join with Other Local
Governments as a Participant in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset
Trust to Pool Funds for Investment

9:15 pm 10. Public Comments

11. Mayor’s Report

12. Council Reports

13. Public Meetings Planner

9:30 pm 14. Adjournment

2 | Page























Department Report

December Quick Stats
Intakes

Surrenders 4
City Impounds 4
County Impounds 1
Holds 8
Needs - Rabies 6
Needs - Licenses 7

Outcomes Combined
RTOs 9
Adoptions 6
Euthanasias 2 - 1 medical, 1 BQ mauling

In 2023 we cared for 301 animals
2022 195 animals
2021 187 animals
2020 140 animals

Current Events and News
● January Spay/Neuter Clinic

● A rescue out of area wants to support LLCAS and the work we have been
doing

● Grant funds to pay for S/N locals
● Two other organizations offered their services

● Vet Clinic
● Transportation

● 2024 Calendar finalized



DEPUTY CITY CLERK
December 2023 – LICENCES REPORT

BUSINESS
- Approximately half of the business license renewals have been responded

to

LIQUOR
- Golden Burro liquor license transfer is still pending State approval
- Vendors can call 303-205-2300 to verify the application is in process if they

are unsure about selling to a licensee while their renewal is being
processed.

MARIJUANA
- RootsRx Cultivation will be shutting down this year

SHORT TERM RENTAL
- The Financial Director, Deputy City Clerk and Elsa Tharp are working on

workflow management and accommodations tax payment tracking
- Upcoming work session to be scheduled to discuss new rental cap





City Permit Fee Totals 2023

2023
Building

Permit Fee
Plumbing
Permits

Mechanical 
Permits

Roofing
Permits

Solar
Permits

Plan Review 
Only Total

County's
25%

CCC's
75%

CCC
Misc.

City
Misc.

Building
Valuation

January $186.00 $0.00 $916.00 $0.00 $150.00 $1,252.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00
February $0.00 $127.00 $260.00 $0.00 $300.00 $1,091.00 $1,778.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
March $8,043.00 $342.00 $114.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,499.00 $0.00 $0.00 $638,520.00
April $4,449.00 $50.00 $390.00 $194.00 $150.00 $2,347.00 $7,580.00 $0.00 $0.00 $338,490.00
May $8,796.00 $150.00 $196.00 $804.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,946.00 $0.00 $0.00 $893,000.00
June $5,822.00 $298.00 $556.00 $1,979.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,655.00 $0.00 $0.00 $591,410.00
July $0.00 $231.00 $146.00 $741.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,118.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
August $3,155.00 $366.00 $408.00 $1,194.00 $0.00 $2,676.00 $7,799.00 $50.00 $1,041.00 $403,970.00
September $11,872.00 $804.00 $626.00 $1,468.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,770.00 $0.00 $0.00 $973,499.00
October $4,450.00 $166.00 $740.00 $1,126.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,482.00 $0.00 $0.00 $504,150.00
November $441.00 $294.00 $230.00 $578.00 $150.00 $0.00 $1,693.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00
December $0.00 $534.00 $747.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,281.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Totals $47,214.00 $3,362.00 $5,329.00 $8,084.00 $750.00 $6,114.00 $70,853.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 $1,041.00 $4,366,039.00

Total of all permits $70,853.00

Total of Ancillary Permits $17,525.00



1 
 

   

MEMO 
               ______       
TO:    Mayor Greene and City Council 
 
FROM:   Chapin LaChance, Planning Director 
 
MEETING DATE: January 16, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Planning Dept. Monthly Report 
 
 
Mayor Greene and City Council, 
 
The Planning Dept. will briefly review the updates below at Tuesday’s meeting. 
 
Pre-application 

• Planned Unit Development (PUD): 

o New Railyard Phase 2: (Discussed below under Construction > Railyard Phase 2)  

• Annexation: 

o New: 1719 Poplar St. 

o New: American Eagle Lode 

 The city limits run through this approximately 7-acre property. The property owners are 
interested in a possible annexation agreement to annex the remaining approximately 2 acres of 
the property into the city. This would allow the internal property lines to be vacated through a 
city subdivision process, which would allow residential development of the property to meet the 
city’s setback requirements. The property owners are considering a potential deed restriction of 
a portion of the property to community housing. 

• Certificates of Appropriateness (COA): 
o New: 200 E. 6th St. Rehabilitation 

 
• Administrative Zoning Permits: 

o New: 821 Harrison Ave. Short Term Rental (STR) 

• Building Permits: 

o New: Railyard Block 1, Lot 1 hotel 

 
  



2 
 

Active applications 
• COA 

o New: 109 Oak St. demolition: scheduled for 2/13 Historic Preservation Commission (HPC) and 2/20 City 
Council public hearings.  

 
Pending applications 

• Building Permits 
o 309 Grand Review 28-unit condominium building 
o 1511-1517 Prospect Dr. 4-unit townhome building 

 
Processed applications 

• Subdivisions: 
o New: Edmunds Terracce, Lot 28-30 Lot Line Adjustment (Approved) 
o New: St. Louis, Block 5, Lot 19-25 Lot Consolidation (Approved) 

• Building Permits: 
o New: 132 Brooklyn Circle single-family dwelling (Approved) 
o New: 220 E. 5th St. solar panels (Approved) 

• Rezonings: 
o New: 821 Harrison Ave. Rezoning (Approved)  

 
Construction: 

• Railyard Phase 1: 

o Subdivision Improvement Agreement (SIA) 

 Remaining Phase 1A, 1B, 1C (Paving, sidewalks, parks, street landscaping, signs) 
• Background: Original SIA deadline expired in 2021, SIA Amendment approved by City 

Council in July 2023 
• Phase 1A & 1B deadline: 10/31/23 

o Status: Phase 1A complete. Phase 1B: 2 ADA sidewalk ramps missing, 1 section 
of sidewalk removed, parks landscaping lacks adequate irrigation, topsoil, 
vegetation. No update. 

• Phase 1C deadline: 9/30/24 
 Storm-sewer issues:  

• Background 

o City Council update on 8/15 
o Letters to Lake County government on 8/16 
o Notice of Breach to developer: 8/16 
o Deadline to commence corrections: 8/31 
o Deadline for completion of corrections: 9/16, not met 
o Stop Work Order issued to developer: 9/21, violated 
o Additional Notice of Breach to developer from City Attorney: 10/9 
o Deadline to cure per Notice of Breach: 11/8 
o Additional $100,000 Escrow Agreement with Developer: 10/24 

• Current deadline for completion of corrections per Escrow Agreement: 12/9 
• Status: 95% complete, documentation and approval remaining. Required 

documentation not received by 12/9. No update. 
 

o New: The Phase 1 PUD Third Amendment was recorded on 12/20/2023. This amendment, approved by 
City Council on 8/2/2022, allows the LURA parcel to be used for community housing. 

 



3 
 

• Railyard Phase 2: 

o Mountain View Dr. SIA: 

 Deadline for completion: 8/10/2023 
 Status: sidewalks, landscaping not installed 
 Notice of Breach and Request for Extension from City Attorney to developer: 11/6 

• Not considering further escrow disbursement requests. 
 Need engineer’s cost estimate from developer for remaining work. 
 TBD Resolution and Draft SIA Amendment: TBD at City Council. No update. 

 
o PUD: 

 Only the Phase 1 Planned Unit Development (PUD) has been approved by Council, but the 
subdivision (plat) of the individual lots and tracts for developments has also not been approved 
by the city, nor has an SIA been executed or escrow funds received. The developer is proposing 
to reduce the street right-of-way widths by 10 ft. in order to accommodate a 10 ft. utility 
easement required by Xcel. Staff has referred the proposed plans to the various referral agencies 
for preliminary comments. HCD is proposing to only use natural gas, solar energy, and battery 
backup for Phase 2, without grid electric supply. HCD began installing storm sewer lines and a 
main gas line on the Phase 2 property mid-July. On 7/19, Xcel Energy required HCD to cease 
install until Phase 2 has been fully approved by the city. On 7/21, the Planning Director notified 
and instructed HCD to cease construction of all Phase 2 subdivision infrastructure prior to 
approval and recording of the required documents, including the PUD and plat. Pel-Ona 
Architects and Urbanists have submitted the Phase 2 PUD, with Conditions of Approval met from 
the City Council’s 2021 approval. Staff will be conducting final review and recording the PUD. 
Update: High Country Developers proposes to amend the previously approved PUD to reduce 
right-of-way widths and street widths. 

• Railyard Phase 3:  

o Railyard Phase 3 PUD: Pre-application meeting held with Fading West representatives on 1/5/23 to 
discuss Phase 3 street connections. Expecting PUD application. No update. 

Code amendments 

• Title 17 – Zoning: Housing Variety Code Amendments: Joint Work Session with P&Z and City Council on Tuesday 
8/29. Staff is working on obtaining a consultant to assist with adopting a Community Housing chapter, potentially 
with design guidelines specifically for community housing within the chapter. Staff and the P&Z are conducting 
Work Sessions to address comments received at the Joint Work Session. No update. 

Other 

• New: Zoning map updated 1/11 with 821 Harrison Ave. and Formula Business Exclusion Overlay. 



1 | Page 
 

City of Leadville 
Finance Department 
800 Harrison Avenue 
Leadville, CO 80461 
719-486-5329 

 

Monthly Report for December 2023 

 

Department Updates 

● Continued work with Caselle to update features/modules 
o Caselle Connect Online 
o Timekeeping 

 
● Finalized Q3 Accommodations tax, payments received through December 20, 2023 

● Accommodations Q3 Tax Revenue - $139,766.87 
● Payment to Lake County - $54,099.58 

○ $54,509.08 less $409.50 MUNIrevs service fee 
 

 
Financial Highlights 

● General Fund Revenue - $382,397 
● General Fund Expenditures - $353,618 

○ All Expenditures received entered through December 
■ Excluding December PCard, charges total $15,720 across all 

departments 
● Sales Tax Revenue - $345,418 

○ Sales tax posted in December is sales tax collected by the State of Colorado for 
the month of October. County received revenue in November and disperses 
after the Treasurer closes the period after the last day of the month received 

○ Sales tax is net of tax received from the State and Lake County Revenue Sharing 
■ This creates a slight variance between what is reported on the City 

Schedule of Sales Tax and what is received from the County Finance 
Department 

 

 

 

 



2 | Page 
 

Upcoming Items 

● Supplemental Budget  
● 1099/W2 processing 
● Q4 STR Revenue, payments due by January 21, 2024 from license holders 

 
Continued Items 

● Bank reconciliation catch up, finalized through April 2023 
● Work with Caselle to implement items from onsite training 

o Roll out Timekeeping/Caselle Connect Online 

o Utilize the system to its full capacity 

o Continue to look for efficiencies within processes 

● Establish a Purchasing Card Policy 
o Move away from shared department credit cards 

▪ Allows for better tracking and accountability 

o Establish online access for all card holders on Elan for coding, receipt 
attachment, descriptions, etc. 

▪ File can be exported and then imported into Caselle 
  

   

 

 



CITY OF LEADVILLE

COMBINED CASH INVESTMENT

DECEMBER 31, 2023

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:40AM       PAGE: 1

COMBINED CASH ACCOUNTS

99-1002 GENERAL FUND CHECKING 1,465,504.49

TOTAL COMBINED CASH 1,465,504.49

99-1000 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS (         1,628,886.56)

TOTAL UNALLOCATED CASH (            163,382.07)

CASH ALLOCATION RECONCILIATION

1 ALLOCATION TO GENERAL FUND 2,314,143.45

5 ALLOCATION TO CONSERVATION TRUST FUND (              82,233.09)

6 ALLOCATION TO URA FUND (            313,095.34)

7 ALLOCATION TO ACCOMMODATINS TAX FUND 75,260.93

8 ALLOCATION TO HIGH COUNTRY DEVELOPERS 117,291.68

10 ALLOCATION TO FIRE DEPARTMENT FUND (            482,481.07)

TOTAL ALLOCATIONS TO OTHER FUNDS 1,628,886.56

ALLOCATION FROM COMBINED CASH FUND - 99-1000 (         1,628,886.56)

ZERO PROOF IF ALLOCATIONS BALANCE .00

khewlett
Textbox
Should net to zero; error when running reports. Will get with Caselle support to determine error and how to correct



CITY OF LEADVILLE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:40AM       PAGE: 2

ASSETS

01-1000 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS 2,314,143.45

01-1006 COMMUNITY GENERAL INVESTMENT 899,101.38

01-1030 GENERAL FUND CD 68,714.45

01-1060 CASH - BAIL BONDS 2,903.81

01-1065 PETTY CASH - POLICE DEPT (                     70.00)

01-1070 PETTY CASH - ADMINISTRATIVE 250.00

01-1080 PETTY CASH - ANIMAL SHELTER 100.00

01-1082 PETTY CASH - MUNICIPAL COURT 100.00

01-1090 POLICE/COURT SURCHARGE 5,462.71

01-1094 SPRUCE ST DAMAGE DEPOSIT (                   300.00)

01-1501 PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE 776,103.00

01-1502 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (                     44.56)

01-1520 DUE TO/FROM COUNTY (                   782.35)

01-1535 DUE TO/FROM URA 35,677.04

TOTAL ASSETS 4,101,358.93

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

01-2000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 133,934.53

01-2001 DEFERRED REVENUE 776,103.00

01-2007 RESTITUTION PAYABLE 275.39

01-2010 DEFERRED GRANT REVENUE 471,983.00

01-2200 FICA PAYABLE (                     35.68)

01-2201 FICA MED PAYABLE .01

01-2210 UNEMPLOYMENT PAYABLE 984.06

01-2215 HEALTH INSURANCE PAYABLE 864.18

01-2220 DEFERRED PLAN PAYABLE 657.68

01-2221 CO F & P PENSION PAYABLE 67.65

01-2230 ACCRUED PAYROLL 48,754.00

01-2240 FWT PAYABLE (                         .03)

01-2250 SWT PAYABLE (                       5.00)

01-2265 MISCELLANEOUS PAYROLL  PAYABLE 2,124.92

01-2280 BAIL BONDS FUND 3,263.03

01-2281 EXCAVATION BONDS FUND 4,000.00

01-2283 PLANNING CASH DEPOSIT PAYABLE 6,250.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,449,220.74

FUND EQUITY



CITY OF LEADVILLE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:40AM       PAGE: 3

FUND BALANCE:

01-2900 GENERAL FUND BALANCE 3,666,832.30

01-2910 LEADVILLE PAVING FUND 185,682.15

01-2915 ANIMAL SHELTER IMPROVEMENTS 30,006.50

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (         1,321,537.92)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 2,560,983.03

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 2,560,983.03

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 4,010,203.77



CITY OF LEADVILLE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:41AM       PAGE: 4

GENERAL FUND REVENUES

01-300-3100 PROPERTY TAX 144.97 789,855.45 802,267.00 12,411.55 98.5

01-300-3120 SPECIFIC OWNERSHIP TAX 2,932.69 32,773.21 60,000.00 27,226.79 54.6

01-300-3130 SALES TAX 345,418.97 3,088,852.35 3,400,000.00 311,147.65 90.9

01-300-3135 MARIJUANA EXCISE TAX (CITY) 1,584.35 57,060.36 50,000.00 (                7,060.36) 114.1

01-300-3140 CIGARETTE TAX .00 4,250.09 4,500.00 249.91 94.5

01-300-3150 SEVERANCE TAX .00 .00 80,000.00 80,000.00 .0

01-300-3160 FRANCHISE TAX 14,043.88 131,166.32 120,000.00 (              11,166.32) 109.3

01-300-3170 PENALTIES & INT DELIQUENT TAX 3.17 2,641.65 1,500.00 (                1,141.65) 176.1

01-300-3210 BUSINESS LICENSES 800.00 12,720.00 15,000.00 2,280.00 84.8

01-300-3220 LIQUOR LICENSE 1,241.25 4,573.75 6,000.00 1,426.25 76.2

01-300-3225 MARIJUANA APPLICATION FEE .00 19,500.00 21,000.00 1,500.00 92.9

01-300-3226 RETAIL MARIJUANA TAX/STATE .00 34,630.47 60,000.00 25,369.53 57.7

01-300-3240 EXCAVATION & ZONING PERMITS .00 17,600.00 20,000.00 2,400.00 88.0

01-300-3256 STR FEE CLASS 2 .00 62,075.00 55,575.00 (                6,500.00) 111.7

01-300-3258 STR CONVENIENCE FEE 12.39 778.27 500.00 (                   278.27) 155.7

01-300-3260 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS .00 1,650.00 1,500.00 (                   150.00) 110.0

01-300-3270 SIGN PERMIT .00 100.00 300.00 200.00 33.3

01-300-3280 OTHER ZONING APPLICATION FEES .00 2,975.00 2,000.00 (                   975.00) 148.8

01-300-3320 ANIMAL SHELTER FEES 1,384.00 18,970.00 25,000.00 6,030.00 75.9

01-300-3321 ANIMAL SHELTER (COUNTY) .00 51,734.96 130,378.00 78,643.04 39.7

01-300-3330 MOTOR VEHICLE 1.5 990.35 10,907.73 13,000.00 2,092.27 83.9

01-300-3340 STATE HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE .00 5,250.00 18,000.00 12,750.00 29.2

01-300-3350 HIGHWAY USERS TAX 10,702.44 101,289.95 118,534.00 17,244.05 85.5

01-300-3400 POLICE SURCHARGE 210.00 1,705.00 3,000.00 1,295.00 56.8

01-300-3410 COURT FINES .00 1,545.00 1,000.00 (                   545.00) 154.5

01-300-3420 PARKING FINES 250.00 5,475.00 6,000.00 525.00 91.3

01-300-3430 TRAFFIC FINES 270.00 760.00 6,000.00 5,240.00 12.7

01-300-3440 OTHER FINES 100.00 1,250.00 1,000.00 (                   250.00) 125.0

01-300-3460 BOND FEES .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

01-300-3470 WARRANT FEES .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

01-300-3501 EARNINGS ON DEPOSIT-GF OPERATI .00 1,222.64 670.00 (                   552.64) 182.5

01-300-3505 EARNING ON DEPOSIT-PD SURCHARG .00 11.37 10.00 (                       1.37) 113.7

01-300-3506 EARNINGS ON DEPOSIT-GEN INVEST .00 1,869.96 2,000.00 130.04 93.5

01-300-3508 EARNING ON DEPOSIT-BAIL BONDS .00 6.03 10.00 3.97 60.3

01-300-3510 MISCELLANEOUS 142.00 4,379.87 5,000.00 620.13 87.6

01-300-3517 ANIMAL SHELTER REIMBURSEMENTS .00 703.00 .00 (                   703.00) .0

01-300-3518 CHARGE POINT/EV CHARGING .00 6,601.14 24,000.00 17,398.86 27.5

01-300-3519 SPRUCE ST HOUSE REIMBURSEMENTS 2,135.61 13,042.61 30,000.00 16,957.39 43.5

01-300-3520 REIMBURSEMENTS 370.93 2,241.55 5,000.00 2,758.45 44.8

01-300-3523 CONTRACT SERVICE REIMBURSEMENT .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

01-300-3524 CONSULTANT FEE REIMBURSEMENTS .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

01-300-3552 TABOR HOME REVENUE .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

01-300-3553 HOUSE WITH THE EYE REVENUE .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

01-300-3605 CITY ADMINISTRATOR GRANT .00 40,511.77 62,400.00 21,888.23 64.9

01-300-3610 STATE GRANTS .00 75.00 .00 (                     75.00) .0

01-300-3615 ANIMAL SHELTER GRANTS .00 6,700.00 .00 (                6,700.00) .0

01-300-3620 OTHER GRANTS .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

01-300-3635 TABOR OPERA RENOVATION GRANTS .00 320,782.90 546,869.00 226,086.10 58.7

01-300-3710 US DEPT OF JUSTICE GRANT (P/D) .00 84,178.86 85,915.00 1,736.14 98.0

01-300-3797 HISTORIC PRESERVATION GRANTS .00 19,500.00 .00 (              19,500.00) .0

01-300-3900 ADMINISTRATIVE FEE - FIRE .00 23,333.70 28,000.00 4,666.30 83.3

01-300-5531 DONATION ANIMAL SHELTER 175.00 9,648.00 1,500.00 (                8,148.00) 643.2



CITY OF LEADVILLE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:41AM       PAGE: 5

01-300-9001 SALE OF CAPITAL ASSET .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 382,912.00 4,996,897.96 5,830,528.00 833,630.04 85.7

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 382,912.00 4,996,897.96 5,830,528.00 833,630.04 85.7



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:41AM       PAGE: 6

EXECUTIVE EXPENDITURES:

01-40-1-5000 SALARY 3,415.42 44,400.46 44,400.00 (                         .46) 100.0

01-40-1-5011 DISCRETIONARY EMPLOYEE BONUS' 13,100.00 13,100.00 14,000.00 900.00 93.6

01-40-1-5120 FICA - EMPLOYER 837.92 3,378.56 2,753.00 (                   625.56) 122.7

01-40-1-5130 FICA MEDICARE - EMPLOYER 239.52 834.00 644.00 (                   190.00) 129.5

01-40-1-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 26.56 28.72 .00 (                     28.72) .0

01-40-1-6202 SUPPLIES .00 4,968.40 5,000.00 31.60 99.4

01-40-1-6203 OPERATING EXPENSES .00 636.26 500.00 (                   136.26) 127.3

01-40-1-6310 EDUCATION & CONFERENCES .00 878.02 1,000.00 121.98 87.8

01-40-1-6311 TRAVEL .00 874.08 1,000.00 125.92 87.4

TOTAL EXECUTIVE EXPENDITURES 17,619.42 69,098.50 69,297.00 198.50 99.7

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES:

01-40-2-5000 SALARY 15,888.26 224,881.73 235,636.00 10,754.27 95.4

01-40-2-5007 OVERTIME .00 833.37 500.00 (                   333.37) 166.7

01-40-2-5008 MISCELLANEOUS WAGES .00 598.85 .00 (                   598.85) .0

01-40-2-5120 FICA 989.21 13,318.60 14,640.00 1,321.40 91.0

01-40-2-5130 FICA MEDICARE 231.34 3,114.88 3,424.00 309.12 91.0

01-40-2-5140 DEFERRED PLAN 182.20 2,421.56 10,756.00 8,334.44 22.5

01-40-2-5150 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,325.76 34,540.40 29,396.00 (                5,144.40) 117.5

01-40-2-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 31.78 456.68 472.00 15.32 96.8

01-40-2-6202 SUPPLIES .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

01-40-2-6310 EDUCATION & CONFERENCES .00 1,853.34 2,000.00 146.66 92.7

01-40-2-6311 TRAVEL .00 624.62 850.00 225.38 73.5

01-40-2-6312 DUES & MEMBERSHIP .00 190.00 .00 (                   190.00) .0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES 18,648.55 282,834.03 297,774.00 14,939.97 95.0

MUNICIPAL COURT EXPENDITURES:

01-40-3-5000 SALARY 2,133.25 26,456.12 29,380.00 2,923.88 90.1

01-40-3-5120 FICA 130.45 1,601.74 1,822.00 220.26 87.9

01-40-3-5130 FICA MEDICARE 30.51 374.69 426.00 51.31 88.0

01-40-3-5150 HEALTH INSURANCE 139.33 1,671.96 2,090.00 418.04 80.0

01-40-3-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 4.27 53.95 59.00 5.05 91.4

01-40-3-6202 SUPPLIES .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

01-40-3-6203 OPERATING EXPENSES .00 .00 550.00 550.00 .0

01-40-3-6204 POSTAGE .00 7.50 162.00 154.50 4.6

01-40-3-6301 LEGAL FEES-PROS. ATTORNEY 750.00 10,732.47 10,000.00 (                   732.47) 107.3

01-40-3-6310 EDUCATION & CONFERENCES .00 350.00 650.00 300.00 53.9

01-40-3-6311 TRAVEL .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

01-40-3-6312 DUES & MEMBERSHIPS .00 60.00 82.00 22.00 73.2

01-40-3-6550 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT/MAINTENANCE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

01-40-3-6570 INTERPRETER .00 .00 1,200.00 1,200.00 .0

TOTAL MUNICIPAL COURT EXPENDITURES 3,187.81 41,308.43 48,021.00 6,712.57 86.0

CITY CLERK EXPENDITURES:



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:41AM       PAGE: 7

01-40-4-5000 SALARY 3,609.22 46,923.76 43,350.00 (                3,573.76) 108.2

01-40-4-5120 FICA 216.49 2,754.58 2,688.00 (                     66.58) 102.5

01-40-4-5130 FICA MEDICARE 50.64 644.28 629.00 (                     15.28) 102.4

01-40-4-5150 HEALTH INSURANCE 630.60 6,761.01 6,270.00 (                   491.01) 107.8

01-40-4-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 6.84 88.94 82.00 (                       6.94) 108.5

01-40-4-6304 CODIFICATION OF MUNICIPAL CODE 2,221.00 4,068.23 5,000.00 931.77 81.4

01-40-4-6310 EDUCATION & CONFERENCES .00 399.57 1,500.00 1,100.43 26.6

01-40-4-6311 TRAVEL .00 1,437.26 .00 (                1,437.26) .0

01-40-4-6501 OTHER EXPENSES .00 267.50 100.00 (                   167.50) 267.5

01-40-4-6540 ELECTIONS 752.92 752.92 5,000.00 4,247.08 15.1

01-40-4-6545 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS .00 1,130.33 6,500.00 5,369.67 17.4

TOTAL CITY CLERK EXPENDITURES 7,487.71 65,228.38 71,119.00 5,890.62 91.7

CITY TREASURER EXPENDITURES:

01-40-5-5000 SALARY 9,872.62 115,468.54 103,476.00 (              11,992.54) 111.6

01-40-5-5120 FICA 582.97 6,966.59 6,416.00 (                   550.59) 108.6

01-40-5-5130 FICA MEDICARE 136.35 1,629.36 1,500.00 (                   129.36) 108.6

01-40-5-5140 DEFERRED PLAN 176.40 4,657.59 4,663.00 5.41 99.9

01-40-5-5150 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,553.08 9,031.06 8,583.00 (                   448.06) 105.2

01-40-5-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 19.37 226.08 155.00 (                     71.08) 145.9

01-40-5-6310 EDUCATION AND CONFERENCES .00 862.92 500.00 (                   362.92) 172.6

01-40-5-6311 TRAVEL .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0

01-40-5-6312 DUES & MEMBERSHIP .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

TOTAL CITY TREASURER EXPENDITURES 13,340.79 138,842.14 125,693.00 (              13,149.14) 110.5

CITY HALL EXPENDITURES:

01-40-6-5000 SALARY 618.00 29,438.82 47,449.00 18,010.18 62.0

01-40-6-5007 OVERTIME .00 884.52 .00 (                   884.52) .0

01-40-6-5015 PTO PAYOUT 333.18 333.18 .00 (                   333.18) .0

01-40-6-5120 FICA 58.98 1,900.72 2,942.00 1,041.28 64.6

01-40-6-5130 FICA MEDICARE 13.80 444.59 688.00 243.41 64.6

01-40-6-5165 UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 1.91 61.32 95.00 33.68 64.6

01-40-6-6202 SUPPLIES 502.06 9,278.20 8,000.00 (                1,278.20) 116.0

01-40-6-6204 POSTAGE 419.64 2,016.61 4,000.00 1,983.39 50.4

01-40-6-6205 OPERATING EXPENSES 1,440.00 8,014.63 5,000.00 (                3,014.63) 160.3

01-40-6-6209 LEASE PAYMENTS .00 7,500.00 7,500.00 .00 100.0

01-40-6-6215 809 SPRUCE ST. MAINTENANCE 538.56 3,779.45 .00 (                3,779.45) .0

01-40-6-6216 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 500.00 28,218.13 50,000.00 21,781.87 56.4

01-40-6-6301 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - LEGAL .00 82,806.95 130,000.00 47,193.05 63.7

01-40-6-6302 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - AUDIT .00 24,200.00 40,000.00 15,800.00 60.5

01-40-6-6303 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - OTHER 7,466.67 32,535.39 30,000.00 (                2,535.39) 108.5

01-40-6-6306 TREASURERS FEES (PROPERTY TAX) 2.90 14,755.80 25,045.00 10,289.20 58.9

01-40-6-6307 SHORT TERM RENTAL MERCHANT FEE .00 1,927.91 1,000.00 (                   927.91) 192.8

01-40-6-6308 LURA PROPERTY TAX DISBURSEMENT .00 25,806.67 .00 (              25,806.67) .0

01-40-6-6310 EDUCATION & CONFERENCES .00 13,278.43 .00 (              13,278.43) .0

01-40-6-6312 DUES & MEMBERSHIP .00 1,919.99 3,000.00 1,080.01 64.0

01-40-6-6330 TELEPHONE 565.20 7,497.09 9,500.00 2,002.91 78.9

01-40-6-6338 PARKLET UTILITIES 435.06 2,372.61 .00 (                2,372.61) .0

01-40-6-6339 809 SPRUCE ST. UTILITIES 594.42 6,280.84 14,000.00 7,719.16 44.9



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:42AM       PAGE: 8

01-40-6-6340 UTILITIES 2,612.59 26,678.91 20,000.00 (                6,678.91) 133.4

01-40-6-6341 STREET LIGHTING 3,277.34 38,379.65 40,000.00 1,620.35 96.0

01-40-6-6342 EV CHARGING STATION UTILITIES 1,719.36 18,066.47 24,000.00 5,933.53 75.3

01-40-6-6501 OTHER EXPENSES 1,567.90 17,109.85 8,000.00 (                9,109.85) 213.9

01-40-6-6504 TABOR HOME EXPENSES 477.32 5,975.69 4,500.00 (                1,475.69) 132.8

01-40-6-6511 HOUSE WITH THE EYE EXPENSES 190.32 2,499.08 4,500.00 2,000.92 55.5

01-40-6-6520 INSURANCE .00 175,388.62 176,367.00 978.38 99.5

01-40-6-6523 TABOR OPERA HOUSE CONTRIBUTION .00 140,000.00 140,000.00 .00 100.0

01-40-6-6526 HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSI 5,456.25 14,598.08 .00 (              14,598.08) .0

01-40-6-6531 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS .00 458,548.70 550,258.00 91,709.30 83.3

01-40-6-6535 MAIN STREET PRGM EXPENDITURES .00 60,000.00 60,000.00 .00 100.0

01-40-6-6550 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT/MAINTENANCE 400.00 37,766.61 29,000.00 (                8,766.61) 130.2

01-40-6-6551 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 11,585.31 12,000.00 414.69 96.5

01-40-6-6555 HOUSING ADMINISTRATOR FUND TRA .00 29,166.70 35,000.00 5,833.30 83.3

01-40-6-6565 DOLA TOH GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 528,402.36 546,869.00 18,466.64 96.6

01-40-6-6580 CDOT MAIN STREET GRANT .00 74,440.13 .00 (              74,440.13) .0

01-40-6-6820 THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN .00 57,472.50 .00 (              57,472.50) .0

01-40-6-6905 OPERATING CONTINGENCY 108,500.00 166,770.88 161,837.00 (                4,933.88) 103.1

01-40-6-7001 XEROX COPIER .00 3,929.21 6,000.00 2,070.79 65.5

01-40-6-9000 CAPITAL PURCHASE .00 864,346.30 75,492.00 (            788,854.30) 1145.0

TOTAL CITY HALL EXPENDITURES 137,691.46 3,036,376.90 2,272,042.00 (            764,334.90) 133.6

MAIN STREET EXPENDITURES:

TOTAL MAIN STREET EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .0

PLANNING DEPARTMENT EXPENDITUR:

01-40-8-5000 SALARY - DIRECTOR - P&Z - HPC 11,353.88 131,770.35 109,665.00 (              22,105.35) 120.2

01-40-8-5120 FICA 684.56 8,149.91 6,799.00 (                1,350.91) 119.9

01-40-8-5130 FICA MEDICARE 160.14 1,906.48 1,590.00 (                   316.48) 119.9

01-40-8-5140 DEFERRED PLAN 581.54 5,852.11 4,996.00 (                   856.11) 117.1

01-40-8-5150 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,771.46 1,847.58 72.00 (                1,775.58) 2566.1

01-40-8-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 22.64 262.71 219.00 (                     43.71) 120.0

01-40-8-6301 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - LEGAL 517.00 15,463.62 7,400.00 (                8,063.62) 209.0

01-40-8-6304 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - ENGINE .00 17,725.50 12,000.00 (                5,725.50) 147.7

01-40-8-6310 EDUCATION AND CONFERENCES .00 1,535.38 750.00 (                   785.38) 204.7

01-40-8-6311 TRAVEL .00 860.80 1,250.00 389.20 68.9

01-40-8-6312 DUES & MEMBERSHIP .00 .00 600.00 600.00 .0

01-40-8-6515 CODE AMENDMENTS - CONSULTANTS .00 1,250.00 5,000.00 3,750.00 25.0

01-40-8-6526 HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSI .00 1,985.12 5,000.00 3,014.88 39.7

01-40-8-6545 LEGAL PUBLICATIONS .00 51.61 500.00 448.39 10.3

01-40-8-6551 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 239.88 .00 (                   239.88) .0

TOTAL PLANNING DEPARTMENT EXPENDIT 15,091.22 188,901.05 155,841.00 (              33,060.05) 121.2

TOTAL GENERAL OPERATING EXPENDITUR 213,066.96 3,822,589.43 3,039,787.00 (            782,802.43) 125.8



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:42AM       PAGE: 9

POLICE DEPARTMENT

POLICE DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURES:

01-60-0-5000 SALARY 36,132.68 675,610.27 718,979.00 43,368.73 94.0

01-60-0-5003 PART-TIME WAGES 634.41 13,843.50 17,822.00 3,978.50 77.7

01-60-0-5004 CONTRACT SERVICES .00 1,080.00 6,000.00 4,920.00 18.0

01-60-0-5007 OVERTIME 305.36 30,959.41 15,000.00 (              15,959.41) 206.4

01-60-0-5008 MISCELLANEOUS WAGES .00 532.72 .00 (                   532.72) .0

01-60-0-5010 HOLIDAY PAY .00 4,328.68 3,000.00 (                1,328.68) 144.3

01-60-0-5012 WELLNESS BENEFIT .00 600.00 .00 (                   600.00) .0

01-60-0-5015 PTO PAYOUT .00 6,589.44 .00 (                6,589.44) .0

01-60-0-5016 FTO PAY .00 835.22 3,550.00 2,714.78 23.5

01-60-0-5032 SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL 257.35 3,892.40 3,500.00 (                   392.40) 111.2

01-60-0-5120 FICA 1,283.30 25,582.25 18,351.00 (                7,231.25) 139.4

01-60-0-5130 FICA MEDICARE 534.18 10,565.64 11,134.00 568.36 94.9

01-60-0-5140 DEFERRED PLAN .00 468.00 14,189.00 13,721.00 3.3

01-60-0-5145 CO F & P PENSION 1,480.11 25,853.71 42,163.00 16,309.29 61.3

01-60-0-5150 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,229.49 23,944.35 47,058.00 23,113.65 50.9

01-60-0-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 74.65 1,503.33 1,536.00 32.67 97.9

01-60-0-6105 US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE GRANT .00 84,178.86 85,915.00 1,736.14 98.0

01-60-0-6202 SUPPLIES 252.30 4,700.15 9,000.00 4,299.85 52.2

01-60-0-6204 POSTAGE .00 87.87 200.00 112.13 43.9

01-60-0-6209 VEHICLE LEASE PAYMENTS 2,501.65 47,846.51 50,348.00 2,501.49 95.0

01-60-0-6210 VEHICLE REPAIRS 2,809.85 6,879.19 5,000.00 (                1,879.19) 137.6

01-60-0-6211 GAS AND OIL 934.77 16,984.73 20,000.00 3,015.27 84.9

01-60-0-6215 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE .00 1,679.33 2,000.00 320.67 84.0

01-60-0-6310 EDUCATION & CONFERENCES .00 17,935.52 30,000.00 12,064.48 59.8

01-60-0-6311 TRAVEL .00 3,489.73 4,000.00 510.27 87.2

01-60-0-6312 DUES & MEMBERSHIP .00 1,897.95 1,100.00 (                   797.95) 172.5

01-60-0-6330 TELEPHONE 824.83 15,783.05 14,000.00 (                1,783.05) 112.7

01-60-0-6340 UTILITIES 448.31 3,830.76 3,500.00 (                   330.76) 109.5

01-60-0-6401 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE .00 730.68 8,000.00 7,269.32 9.1

01-60-0-6403 PHYSICALS .00 .00 6,500.00 6,500.00 .0

01-60-0-6404 PSYCHE EVALUATIONS .00 250.00 3,500.00 3,250.00 7.1

01-60-0-6500 LEGAL SUPPORT FOR OFFICERS .00 1,494.00 1,500.00 6.00 99.6

01-60-0-6501 OTHER EXPENSES .00 7,252.28 3,500.00 (                3,752.28) 207.2

01-60-0-6505 ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER EXPENDI .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

01-60-0-6550 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT/MAINTENANCE .00 38,731.67 51,113.00 12,381.33 75.8

01-60-0-6551 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 .00 4,500.00 4,500.00 .0

01-60-0-6615 TOWING .00 975.00 3,000.00 2,025.00 32.5

01-60-0-6621 INVESTIGATIVE EXPENDITURES .00 2,075.62 10,000.00 7,924.38 20.8

01-60-0-6625 CRIME PREVENTION .00 .00 17,000.00 17,000.00 .0

01-60-0-6640 BULLET RESISTANT VESTS .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

01-60-0-6641 BIKE PATROL .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

01-60-0-6642 TASERS .00 .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 .0

01-60-0-6643 AMMUNITION 577.04 3,619.83 4,000.00 380.17 90.5

01-60-0-6901 OFFICE EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES .00 978.33 1,500.00 521.67 65.2

01-60-0-6902 SMALL EQUIPMENT .00 7,488.40 1,200.00 (                6,288.40) 624.0

01-60-0-7001 XEROX COPIER LEASE .00 1,958.40 2,600.00 641.60 75.3

01-60-0-7003 POLICE CAPITAL .00 6,524.21 8,000.00 1,475.79 81.6

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT EXPENDITUR 51,280.28 1,103,560.99 1,269,258.00 165,697.01 87.0



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:42AM       PAGE: 10

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT 51,280.28 1,103,560.99 1,269,258.00 165,697.01 87.0

STREET DEPARTMENT

STREET DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURES:

01-70-0-5000 SALARY 27,597.62 416,672.99 491,337.00 74,664.01 84.8

01-70-0-5007 OVERTIME 2,862.76 16,928.65 6,000.00 (              10,928.65) 282.1

01-70-0-5010 HOLIDAY PAY .00 413.28 1,500.00 1,086.72 27.6

01-70-0-5015 PTO PAYOUT .00 177.31 .00 (                   177.31) .0

01-70-0-5031 OUT-OF-POSITION PAY 123.00 880.50 900.00 19.50 97.8

01-70-0-5120 FICA 1,844.93 25,992.08 30,984.00 4,991.92 83.9

01-70-0-5130 FICA MEDICARE 431.48 6,078.67 7,246.00 1,167.33 83.9

01-70-0-5140 DEFERRED PLAN 309.80 4,031.59 11,465.00 7,433.41 35.2

01-70-0-5150 HEALTH INSURANCE 4,326.53 45,230.30 47,080.00 1,849.70 96.1

01-70-0-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 61.15 885.86 999.00 113.14 88.7

01-70-0-6202 SUPPLIES 95.47 3,049.01 4,500.00 1,450.99 67.8

01-70-0-6209 VEHICLE LEASE PAYMENTS .00 197,858.15 228,315.00 30,456.85 86.7

01-70-0-6210 VEHICLE REPAIRS (                     22.00) 3,842.40 4,000.00 157.60 96.1

01-70-0-6211 GAS AND OIL 2,616.56 32,871.50 35,000.00 2,128.50 93.9

01-70-0-6215 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE .00 22,244.29 14,000.00 (                8,244.29) 158.9

01-70-0-6216 BUILDING REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 269.16 5,083.49 84,000.00 78,916.51 6.1

01-70-0-6303 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - OTHER .00 752.00 .00 (                   752.00) .0

01-70-0-6310 EDUCATION & CONFERENCES .00 404.93 2,000.00 1,595.07 20.3

01-70-0-6311 TRAVEL .00 113.45 2,000.00 1,886.55 5.7

01-70-0-6330 TELEPHONE 227.34 3,239.47 2,000.00 (                1,239.47) 162.0

01-70-0-6340 UTILITIES 1,968.09 14,148.24 8,200.00 (                5,948.24) 172.5

01-70-0-6341 STREET LIGHTING 39.98 2,330.52 4,000.00 1,669.48 58.3

01-70-0-6345 LANDFILL .00 1,214.00 500.00 (                   714.00) 242.8

01-70-0-6401 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 134.63 3,813.47 5,400.00 1,586.53 70.6

01-70-0-6403 PHYSICALS AND TESTS 20.00 1,121.66 1,000.00 (                   121.66) 112.2

01-70-0-6404 SAFETY EQUIPMENT .00 471.68 800.00 328.32 59.0

01-70-0-6501 OTHER EXPENSES .00 1,288.43 500.00 (                   788.43) 257.7

01-70-0-6550 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT/MAINTENANCE 38.92 3,494.54 2,000.00 (                1,494.54) 174.7

01-70-0-6800 CONTRACT SNOW REMOVAL .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

01-70-0-6902 SMALL EQUIPMENT .00 1,992.54 4,000.00 2,007.46 49.8

01-70-0-6910 WEED MITIGATION EXPENSE .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

01-70-0-7200 STREET MAINTENANCE .00 264,701.23 200,000.00 (              64,701.23) 132.4

01-70-0-7210 STREET SIGNAGE 4,793.31 8,287.18 10,000.00 1,712.82 82.9

01-70-0-7255 STREET MATERIALS 7,702.01 26,503.14 22,000.00 (                4,503.14) 120.5

TOTAL STREET DEPARTMENT EXPENDITUR 55,440.74 1,116,116.55 1,234,226.00 118,109.45 90.4

TOTAL STREET DEPARTMENT 55,440.74 1,116,116.55 1,234,226.00 118,109.45 90.4



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

GENERAL FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:43AM       PAGE: 11

ANIMAL SHELTER

ANIMAL SHELTER EXPENDITURES:

01-80-0-5000 SALARY 17,474.93 188,222.76 211,326.00 23,103.24 89.1

01-80-0-5007 OVERTIME 122.16 5,297.25 .00 (                5,297.25) .0

01-80-0-5010 HOLIDAY PAY 24.00 1,117.78 1,000.00 (                   117.78) 111.8

01-80-0-5011 ANIMAL SHELTER BONUS 2,500.00 2,500.00 .00 (                2,500.00) .0

01-80-0-5120 FICA 1,234.00 12,020.64 13,164.00 1,143.36 91.3

01-80-0-5130 FICA - MEDICARE 288.61 2,814.93 3,079.00 264.07 91.4

01-80-0-5140 DEFERRED PLAN .00 .00 2,392.00 2,392.00 .0

01-80-0-5145 CO F & P PENSION .00 23.66 .00 (                     23.66) .0

01-80-0-5150 HEALTH INSURANCE 853.56 8,516.60 8,360.00 (                   156.60) 101.9

01-80-0-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 40.26 398.30 425.00 26.70 93.7

01-80-0-6202 SUPPLIES 731.02 4,374.90 3,000.00 (                1,374.90) 145.8

01-80-0-6210 VEHICLE REPAIRS .00 42.24 2,050.00 2,007.76 2.1

01-80-0-6211 GAS AND OIL .00 1,181.64 800.00 (                   381.64) 147.7

01-80-0-6216 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 580.00 800.95 2,000.00 1,199.05 40.1

01-80-0-6310 EDUCATION AND CONFERENCE .00 1,995.00 450.00 (                1,545.00) 443.3

01-80-0-6311 TRAVEL .00 168.71 582.00 413.29 29.0

01-80-0-6312 MEMBERSHIPS .00 740.89 650.00 (                     90.89) 114.0

01-80-0-6330 TELEPHONE 35.33 728.36 1,100.00 371.64 66.2

01-80-0-6331 INTERNET ANIMAL SHELTER 54.95 579.99 1,000.00 420.01 58.0

01-80-0-6340 UTILITIES 351.36 4,106.70 4,000.00 (                   106.70) 102.7

01-80-0-6401 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE .00 106.90 500.00 393.10 21.4

01-80-0-6501 OTHER EXPENSES .00 1,814.88 1,500.00 (                   314.88) 121.0

01-80-0-6505 ANIMAL EXPENSES 8,323.51 21,215.51 16,000.00 (                5,215.51) 132.6

01-80-0-6520 INSURANCE .00 9,105.50 10,425.00 1,319.50 87.3

01-80-0-6550 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT/MAINTENANCE .00 3,472.88 2,454.00 (                1,018.88) 141.5

01-80-0-6562 ANIMAL ASSISTANCE FOUNDATION 1,216.80 2,433.80 .00 (                2,433.80) .0

01-80-0-6901 OFFICE EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES .00 1,053.22 1,000.00 (                     53.22) 105.3

01-80-0-7003 ANIMAL SHELTER CAPITAL .00 1,334.92 .00 (                1,334.92) .0

TOTAL ANIMAL SHELTER EXPENDITURES 33,830.49 276,168.91 287,257.00 11,088.09 96.1

TOTAL ANIMAL SHELTER 33,830.49 276,168.91 287,257.00 11,088.09 96.1

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 353,618.47 6,318,435.88 5,830,528.00 (            487,907.88) 108.4

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 29,293.53 (         1,321,537.92) .00 1,321,537.92 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 .00 .00 .00 .0



CITY OF LEADVILLE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:43AM       PAGE: 12

ASSETS

05-1000 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS (              82,233.09)

05-1006 COMMUNITY CONSERVATION TRUST 60,321.04

TOTAL ASSETS (              21,912.05)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

05-2000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE - CONSERVE 363.00

05-2200 FICA PAYABLE 20.51

05-2210 UNEMPLOYMENT PAYABLE 4.26

TOTAL LIABILITIES 387.77

FUND EQUITY

FUND BALANCE:

05-2900 CONSERVATION TRST FUND BALANCE 17,820.62

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (              40,880.53)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE (              23,059.91)

TOTAL FUND EQUITY (              23,059.91)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (              22,672.14)



CITY OF LEADVILLE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 13

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND REVENU

05-300-3506 EARNINGS ON DEPOSIT-CTF .00 125.46 600.00 474.54 20.9

05-300-3552 TABOR HOME REVENUE .00 1,159.00 .00 (                1,159.00) .0

05-300-3553 HOUSE WITH THE EYE REVENUE .00 1,066.00 .00 (                1,066.00) .0

05-300-3700 STATE LOTTERY .00 26,053.11 30,000.00 3,946.89 86.8

05-300-3900 TRANSFER FROM CTF FUND BALANCE .00 .00 18,118.00 18,118.00 .0

TOTAL CONSERVATION TRUST FUND REVE .00 28,403.57 48,718.00 20,314.43 58.3

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 28,403.57 48,718.00 20,314.43 58.3



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 14

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND EXPEND:

05-40-1-5000 SALARY 1,442.00 18,677.33 19,210.00 532.67 97.2

05-40-1-5007 OVERTIME .00 98.28 .00 (                     98.28) .0

05-40-1-5015 PTO PAYOUT 777.42 777.42 .00 (                   777.42) .0

05-40-1-5120 FICA 137.60 1,212.26 1,191.00 (                     21.26) 101.8

05-40-1-5130 FICA MEDICARE 32.17 283.47 279.00 (                       4.47) 101.6

05-40-1-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 4.43 39.12 38.00 (                       1.12) 103.0

05-40-1-7301 PARKS MAINTENANCE 4,452.98 31,505.09 10,000.00 (              21,505.09) 315.1

05-40-1-7302 TABOR HOME MUSEUM MAINTENANCE .00 199.63 2,500.00 2,300.37 8.0

05-40-1-7303 HOUSE WITH THE EYE MAINTENANCE .00 2,785.00 2,500.00 (                   285.00) 111.4

05-40-1-7310 MISC. CONSERVATION .00 13,706.50 13,000.00 (                   706.50) 105.4

TOTAL CONSERVATION TRUST FUND EXPE 6,846.60 69,284.10 48,718.00 (              20,566.10) 142.2

TOTAL CONSERVATION TRUST FUND 6,846.60 69,284.10 48,718.00 (              20,566.10) 142.2

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 6,846.60 69,284.10 48,718.00 (              20,566.10) 142.2

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (                6,846.60) (              40,880.53) .00 40,880.53 .0



CITY OF LEADVILLE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

URA FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 15

ASSETS

06-1000 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS (            313,095.34)

06-1002 LURA CASH ACCOUNT 46,334.20

06-1510 DUE TO/FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 12,972.96

06-1990 DUE TO/FROM GENERAL FUND (              35,677.04)

TOTAL ASSETS (            289,465.22)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

06-2000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (              10,861.96)

TOTAL LIABILITIES (              10,861.96)

FUND EQUITY

FUND BALANCE:

06-2900 URA FUND BALANCE (            280,455.61)

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 1,852.35

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE (            278,603.26)

TOTAL FUND EQUITY (            278,603.26)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (            289,465.22)



CITY OF LEADVILLE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

URA FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 16

URA REVENUES

06-300-3900 TRANSFER FROM URA FUND BALANCE .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0

06-300-3910 LURA P1 .00 5.88 .00 (                       5.88) .0

TOTAL URA REVENUES .00 5.88 30,000.00 29,994.12 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 5.88 30,000.00 29,994.12 .0



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

URA FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 17

URA EXPENDITURES

06-99-0-6301 PROFESSIONAL SVCS - URA LEGAL .00 (                1,866.08) 30,000.00 31,866.08 (    6.2)

06-99-0-6501 URA NEWSPAPER ADS .00 19.61 .00 (                     19.61) .0

TOTAL SUB DEPARTMENT 0 .00 (                1,846.47) 30,000.00 31,846.47 (    6.2)

TOTAL URA EXPENDITURES .00 (                1,846.47) 30,000.00 31,846.47 (    6.2)

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 (                1,846.47) 30,000.00 31,846.47 (    6.2)

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 1,852.35 .00 (                1,852.35) .0



CITY OF LEADVILLE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

ACCOMMODATINS TAX FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 18

ASSETS

07-1000 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS 75,260.93

TOTAL ASSETS 75,260.93

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

07-2000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 54,484.58

TOTAL LIABILITIES 54,484.58

FUND EQUITY

FUND BALANCE:

07-2900 ACCOMMODATIONS TAX 12,525.03

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 8,251.32

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 20,776.35

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 20,776.35

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 75,260.93



CITY OF LEADVILLE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

ACCOMMODATINS TAX FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 19

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX REVENUES

07-300-3710 CITY SHARE OF HOUSING DIRECTOR .00 29,166.70 35,000.00 5,833.30 83.3

07-300-3715 MERCHANT FEE REIMBURSEMENT .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

07-300-3800 ACCOMMODATIONS TAX 497.06 282,052.13 215,000.00 (              67,052.13) 131.2

TOTAL ACCOMMODATIONS TAX REVENUES 497.06 311,218.83 251,500.00 (              59,718.83) 123.8

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 497.06 311,218.83 251,500.00 (              59,718.83) 123.8



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

ACCOMMODATINS TAX FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 20

ACCOMMODATIONS TAX EXPENDITURE

07-40-0-5000 HOUSING DIRECTOR SERVICES .00 70,000.00 70,000.00 .00 100.0

07-40-0-6000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (                     24.50) 3,006.50 6,400.00 3,393.50 47.0

07-40-0-6307 MERCHANT FEE .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

07-40-0-6400 TOURISM PANEL SHARE 54,509.08 109,961.01 83,902.00 (              26,059.01) 131.1

07-40-0-6410 MISCELLANEOUS HOUSING PROJECTS .00 120,000.00 89,198.00 (              30,802.00) 134.5

TOTAL SUB DEPARTMENT 0 54,484.58 302,967.51 251,500.00 (              51,467.51) 120.5

TOTAL ACCOMMODATIONS TAX EXPENDITU 54,484.58 302,967.51 251,500.00 (              51,467.51) 120.5

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 54,484.58 302,967.51 251,500.00 (              51,467.51) 120.5

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              53,987.52) 8,251.32 .00 (                8,251.32) .0



CITY OF LEADVILLE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

HIGH COUNTRY DEVELOPERS

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 21

ASSETS

08-1000 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS 117,291.68

08-1502 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 159,031.00

TOTAL ASSETS 276,322.68

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

08-2295 HIGH COUNTRY DEV DEPOSITS 189,930.36

TOTAL LIABILITIES 189,930.36

FUND EQUITY

FUND BALANCE:

08-2900 HIGH COUNTY DEVELOPERS 99,608.75

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (              13,216.43)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 86,392.32

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 86,392.32

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 276,322.68



CITY OF LEADVILLE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

HIGH COUNTRY DEVELOPERS

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 22

HIGH COUNTRY DEVELOPER REVENUE

08-300-3950 MTN VIEW DRIVE IMPROVEMENT .00 143,736.30 .00 (            143,736.30) .0

TOTAL HIGH COUNTRY DEVELOPER REVEN .00 143,736.30 .00 (            143,736.30) .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE .00 143,736.30 .00 (            143,736.30) .0



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

HIGH COUNTRY DEVELOPERS

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 23

HIGH COUNTRY DEVELOPER EXENDIT

08-85-0-6515 OTHER PROJECT EXPENDITURES .00 13,860.22 .00 (              13,860.22) .0

08-85-0-6516 PHASE 2 SIA EXPENDITURES .00 133,169.46 .00 (            133,169.46) .0

08-85-0-6520 CONSULTANT FEES .00 9,923.05 .00 (                9,923.05) .0

TOTAL SUB DEPARTMENT 0 .00 156,952.73 .00 (            156,952.73) .0

TOTAL HIGH COUNTRY DEVELOPER EXEND .00 156,952.73 .00 (            156,952.73) .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 156,952.73 .00 (            156,952.73) .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .00 (              13,216.43) .00 13,216.43 .0



CITY OF LEADVILLE

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

FIRE DEPARTMENT FUND

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 24

ASSETS

10-1000 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS (            482,481.07)

10-1006 COMMUNITY FIRE DEPARTMENT 31,238.51

10-1401 PREPAID EXPENSE 146,700.00

10-1410 PREPAID FIRE FUND EXPENDITURES 100,000.00

10-1510 DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 18,155.00

10-1520 DUE FROM COUNTY (              52,998.40)

TOTAL ASSETS (            239,385.96)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

10-2000 ACCOUNT PAYABLE - FIRE 4,437.94

10-2200 FICA PAYABLE (                   146.28)

10-2210 UNEMPLOYMENT PAYABLE 634.84

10-2215 HEALTH INSURANCE PAYABLE (                1,807.16)

10-2221 CO F & P PENSION PAYABLE (                1,329.16)

10-2230 ACCRUED PAYROLL 22,153.68

10-2240 FWT PAYABLE (                         .05)

10-2250 SWT PAYABLE 17.00

10-2261 FIRE UNION DUES PAYABLE (                1,020.00)

10-2265 MISCELLANEOUS PAYROLL  PAYABLE 674.06

TOTAL LIABILITIES 23,614.87

FUND EQUITY

FUND BALANCE:

10-2900 FIRE DEPARTMENT FUND BALANCE 189,486.76

10-2901 FIRE FUND BAL - PROG & TNG 395,309.00

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (            919,050.96)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE (            334,255.20)

TOTAL FUND EQUITY (            334,255.20)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (            310,640.33)



CITY OF LEADVILLE

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

FIRE DEPARTMENT FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:44AM       PAGE: 25

FIRE REVENUES

10-300-3300 COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION .00 534,972.50 1,283,934.00 748,961.50 41.7

10-300-3301 DONATIONS TO FIRE DEPARTMENT .00 3,509.49 .00 (                3,509.49) .0

10-300-3302 FOREST SERVICE PAYMENTS FIRE .00 206,317.25 .00 (            206,317.25) .0

10-300-3307 REIMBURSEMENT FOR SERVICES .00 390.00 .00 (                   390.00) .0

10-300-3308 PREVENT & INSPEC PRGM FEES 50.00 1,896.00 .00 (                1,896.00) .0

10-300-3309 REIMBURSEMENT - BME - EQUIPMEN .00 2,123.35 .00 (                2,123.35) .0

10-300-3506 EARNINGS ON DEPOSIT-FIRE DEPT .00 64.97 .00 (                     64.97) .0

10-300-3515 CMC TRAINING CONTRIBUTION .00 13,500.00 13,500.00 .00 100.0

10-300-3621 SAFER GRANT REVENUE .00 .00 198,320.00 198,320.00 .0

10-300-3624 VFA GRANT .00 5,004.13 .00 (                5,004.13) .0

10-300-3900 TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND .00 458,548.70 550,258.00 91,709.30 83.3

10-300-4000 TRANSFER FROM FIRE FUND BALANC .00 .00 98,072.00 98,072.00 .0

TOTAL FIRE REVENUES 50.00 1,226,326.39 2,144,084.00 917,757.61 57.2

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 50.00 1,226,326.39 2,144,084.00 917,757.61 57.2



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

FIRE DEPARTMENT FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:45AM       PAGE: 26

FIRE OPERATING EXPENDITURES:

10-40-1-5000 SALARY 63,528.76 789,377.79 891,547.00 102,169.21 88.5

10-40-1-5001 SALARY - RESERVE PROGRAM .00 2,653.25 3,000.00 346.75 88.4

10-40-1-5002 SALARY - RESERVE FFII GRADE 847.68 7,328.90 .00 (                7,328.90) .0

10-40-1-5007 OVERTIME 4,321.27 36,607.39 20,000.00 (              16,607.39) 183.0

10-40-1-5010 HOLIDAY PAY .00 6,677.79 6,000.00 (                   677.79) 111.3

10-40-1-5011 FIRE BONUS 12,000.00 12,000.00 10,000.00 (                2,000.00) 120.0

10-40-1-5012 SAFER GRANT OVERTIME .00 10,270.04 .00 (              10,270.04) .0

10-40-1-5013 SAFER GRANT QUALIFICATIONS COS 185.01 4,130.93 16,506.00 12,375.07 25.0

10-40-1-5030 CALL OUT 698.55 5,065.83 3,000.00 (                2,065.83) 168.9

10-40-1-5031 OUT-OF-POSITION PAY 4,051.05 50,423.12 15,000.00 (              35,423.12) 336.2

10-40-1-5120 FICA 190.01 2,738.38 1,505.00 (                1,233.38) 182.0

10-40-1-5130 FICA MEDICARE 1,240.61 13,190.35 13,993.00 802.65 94.3

10-40-1-5140 DEFERRED PLAN 1,021.10 13,457.23 18,422.00 4,964.77 73.1

10-40-1-5145 CO F & P PENSION 5,969.07 72,988.43 82,676.00 9,687.57 88.3

10-40-1-5146 FPPA OLD HIRE CONTRIBUTION .00 31,164.00 15,582.00 (              15,582.00) 200.0

10-40-1-5150 HEALTH INSURANCE 10,877.42 87,360.65 86,183.00 (                1,177.65) 101.4

10-40-1-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX 173.99 1,920.42 1,930.00 9.58 99.5

10-40-1-6000 SUPPLIES .00 177.49 .00 (                   177.49) .0

10-40-1-6202 SUPPLIES 31.97 11,414.93 6,500.00 (                4,914.93) 175.6

10-40-1-6204 POSTAGE .00 227.44 200.00 (                     27.44) 113.7

10-40-1-6209 VEHICLE LEASE PAYMENTS .00 72,408.95 72,865.00 456.05 99.4

10-40-1-6210 VEHICLE REPAIRS 297.36 28,197.82 35,000.00 6,802.18 80.6

10-40-1-6211 GAS AND OIL 1,409.79 26,807.86 25,000.00 (                1,807.86) 107.2

10-40-1-6215 EQUIPMENT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE .00 3,918.87 3,000.00 (                   918.87) 130.6

10-40-1-6216 BUILDING REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 114.53 8,366.80 5,000.00 (                3,366.80) 167.3

10-40-1-6217 STATION FURNITURE .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-40-1-6301 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - LEGAL .00 4,642.50 10,000.00 5,357.50 46.4

10-40-1-6307 ADMINISTRATIVE FEE .00 23,333.70 28,000.00 4,666.30 83.3

10-40-1-6308 VEHICLE UPGRADES FUND/TRANSFER .00 .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 .0

10-40-1-6309 EQUIPMENT UPGRADES FUND/TRANSF .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0

10-40-1-6310 EDUCATION & CONFERENCES 475.00 14,256.29 13,000.00 (                1,256.29) 109.7

10-40-1-6311 TRAVEL .00 11,767.14 20,000.00 8,232.86 58.8

10-40-1-6312 DUES & MEMBERSHIP .00 1,446.82 1,300.00 (                   146.82) 111.3

10-40-1-6330 TELEPHONE 245.51 3,115.35 3,500.00 384.65 89.0

10-40-1-6340 UTILITIES 1,309.72 19,071.76 31,000.00 11,928.24 61.5

10-40-1-6401 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE .00 6,731.97 8,000.00 1,268.03 84.2

10-40-1-6403 PHYSICALS .00 .00 9,200.00 9,200.00 .0

10-40-1-6501 OTHER EXPENSES 800.00 7,751.69 1,000.00 (                6,751.69) 775.2

10-40-1-6520 INSURANCE .00 113,017.55 117,783.00 4,765.45 96.0

10-40-1-6533 COMMUNICATION EQUIPMENT .00 11,206.15 12,500.00 1,293.85 89.7

10-40-1-6550 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT/MAINTENANCE .00 14,724.06 16,000.00 1,275.94 92.0

10-40-1-6551 COMPUTER SOFTWARE .00 31,694.90 10,400.00 (              21,294.90) 304.8

10-40-1-6701 VOLUNTEER OTHER 2,428.29 41,091.04 49,000.00 7,908.96 83.9

10-40-1-6705 FIRE PREVENTION .00 1,103.69 2,500.00 1,396.31 44.2

10-40-1-6715 PUBLICATIONS .00 320.00 300.00 (                     20.00) 106.7

10-40-1-6720 FOAM ABC & ETC .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

10-40-1-6721 RESCUE EQUIPMENT .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

10-40-1-6725 LADDER & AIR TESTS .00 2,009.31 4,500.00 2,490.69 44.7

10-40-1-6730 PHYSICAL PROTECTION EQUIPMENT .00 18,500.10 19,500.00 999.90 94.9

10-40-1-6734 HAZMAT EQUIP/SUPPLIES .00 17.99 1,900.00 1,882.01 1.0

10-40-1-6735 MEDICAL EQUIPMENT .00 2,514.08 3,000.00 485.92 83.8

10-40-1-6736 MINOR EQUIPMENT .00 516.84 4,000.00 3,483.16 12.9

10-40-1-6738 HOSE .00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .0



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

FIRE DEPARTMENT FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:45AM       PAGE: 27

10-40-1-6901 OFFICE EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES 430.94 1,557.11 1,900.00 342.89 82.0

TOTAL FIRE OPERATING EXPENDITURES 112,647.63 1,629,264.70 1,834,192.00 204,927.30 88.8

TOTAL FIRE OPERATING EXPENDITURES 112,647.63 1,629,264.70 1,834,192.00 204,927.30 88.8

FIRE CONTRACT SERVICE EXPENDIT:

10-50-1-5034 WILDFIRE DEPLOYMNT EMPLEE PMTS 985.54 139,080.53 .00 (            139,080.53) .0

10-50-1-5120 FICA .00 4,037.11 .00 (                4,037.11) .0

10-50-1-5130 FICA MEDICARE - EMPLR 13.77 2,002.77 .00 (                2,002.77) .0

10-50-1-5150 HEALTH INSURANCE 204.19 3,302.43 .00 (                3,302.43) .0

10-50-1-5165 SUTA 1.97 278.15 .00 (                   278.15) .0

10-50-1-6501 OTHER EXPENSES .00 12,016.39 .00 (              12,016.39) .0

10-50-1-6520 INSURANCE .00 4,549.71 .00 (                4,549.71) .0

10-50-1-6534 WILDFIRE DEPLOYMENT EXPENSES 80.02 13,245.10 .00 (              13,245.10) .0

10-50-1-6535 VFA GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 10,008.25 .00 (              10,008.25) .0

10-50-1-6902 CAPITAL ASSET ACQUISITION .00 26,625.61 42,600.00 15,974.39 62.5

TOTAL FIRE CONTRACT SERVICE EXPENDI 1,285.49 215,146.05 42,600.00 (            172,546.05) 505.0

TOTAL FIRE CONTRACT SERVICE EXPENDI 1,285.49 215,146.05 42,600.00 (            172,546.05) 505.0

WILDLAND SUPPLEMENTAL PROGRAM:

10-60-1-6000 STATION II .00 13,625.74 .00 (              13,625.74) .0

10-60-1-6202 SUPPLIES .00 470.00 .00 (                   470.00) .0

10-60-1-6305 TRAINING SUPPORT FOR INTERNSHI .00 .00 40,000.00 40,000.00 .0

10-60-1-6540 AFG GRANT EXPENDITURES .00 48,780.00 .00 (              48,780.00) .0

10-60-1-6600 HEADWATERS TRAINING CENTER EXP .00 6,641.98 .00 (                6,641.98) .0

10-60-1-6902 CAPITAL ASSET ACQUISITION .00 53,082.86 28,972.00 (              24,110.86) 183.2

TOTAL WILDLAND SUPPLEMENTAL PROGRA .00 122,600.58 68,972.00 (              53,628.58) 177.8

TOTAL WILDLAND SUPPLEMENTAL PROGRA .00 122,600.58 68,972.00 (              53,628.58) 177.8

SAFER GRANT EXPENDITURES:

10-70-1-5000 SALARY 11,954.94 145,221.19 151,164.00 5,942.81 96.1

10-70-1-5007 OVERTIME .00 991.11 .00 (                   991.11) .0

10-70-1-5130 FICA MEDICARE 171.58 2,088.13 2,192.00 103.87 95.3

10-70-1-5140 DEFERRED PLAN .00 .00 3,779.00 3,779.00 .0

10-70-1-5145 CO F & P PENSION 1,135.72 13,796.17 14,361.00 564.83 96.1

10-70-1-5150 HEALTH INSURANCE 718.18 7,861.58 18,826.00 10,964.42 41.8

10-70-1-5165 STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAX (SUTA) 23.89 292.36 453.00 160.64 64.5

10-70-1-6520 INSURANCE - WORKERS' COMP .00 8,115.48 7,545.00 (                   570.48) 107.6

TOTAL SAFER GRANT EXPENDITURES 14,004.31 178,366.02 198,320.00 19,953.98 89.9

TOTAL SAFER GRANT EXPENDITURES 14,004.31 178,366.02 198,320.00 19,953.98 89.9



CITY OF LEADVILLE

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

FIRE DEPARTMENT FUND

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 100 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  01/13/2024     10:45AM       PAGE: 28

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 127,937.43 2,145,377.35 2,144,084.00 (                1,293.35) 100.1

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (            127,887.43) (            919,050.96) .00 919,050.96 .0



Month Sales 
Tax Received 

by City
 2019                                 

City Sales Tax* 
 2020                                 

City Sales Tax* 
 2021                                 

City Sales Tax** 
 2022                                

City Sales Tax*** 
 2023                                

City Sales Tax*** 

 2023                                 
City Sales Tax 

Budget 

 2023                        
Actual vs Budget 
($ Cumulative) 

 2023                        
Actual vs Budget 
(% Cumulative) 

January 94,784$                  165,390$                183,535$                244,378$                286,289$                211,392$                74,897$                  35.4%
February 147,646$                196,840$                210,257$                299,137$                325,040$                262,326$                137,610$                29.0%

March 140,007$                175,076$                190,416$                229,788$                289,482$                225,893$                201,199$                28.8%
April 147,890$                165,382$                174,112$                251,544$                293,274$                227,011$                267,462$                28.9%
May 157,256$                139,192$                199,485$                277,788$                286,221$                237,700$                315,983$                27.1%
June 133,297$                134,564$                179,671$                472,432$                214,349$                282,629$                247,703$                17.1%
July 139,346$                136,093$                218,714$                270,030$                228,072$                234,770$                241,005$                14.3%

August 210,868$                233,353$                289,675$                369,533$                340,342$                338,992$                242,356$                12.0%
September 147,674$                277,551$                310,213$                397,446$                384,037$                348,041$                278,351$                11.8%

October 234,053$                250,181$                328,378$                410,305$                436,670$                375,701$                339,320$                12.4%
November 226,419$                271,507$                313,217$                370,354$                345,419$                362,976$                321,763$                10.4%
December 179,277$                216,743$                266,868$                289,428$                264,744$                292,568$                293,939$                8.6%

Totals: 1,958,517$             2,361,872$             2,864,541$             3,882,165$             3,693,939$             3,400,000$             293,939$                8.6%

* Includes Retail Sales Tax, State Retail Marijuana Special Sales Tax, and Motor Vehicle Sales Tax
** Includes Retail Sales Tax, State Retail Marijuana Special Sales Tax, and Motor Vehicle Sales Tax State Marijuana Sales Tax was $60,816.85 - 2.1% of the Total Number .
*** Includes Retail Sales Tax, Special Sales Tax, and Motor Vehicle Sales Tax Does not include State Marijuana Sales Tax

City of Leadville
Schedule of Sales Tax

Fiscal Years 2019 to 2023



 $50,000
 $60,000
 $70,000
 $80,000
 $90,000

 $100,000
 $110,000
 $120,000
 $130,000
 $140,000
 $150,000
 $160,000
 $170,000
 $180,000
 $190,000
 $200,000
 $210,000
 $220,000
 $230,000
 $240,000
 $250,000
 $260,000
 $270,000
 $280,000
 $290,000
 $300,000
 $310,000
 $320,000
 $330,000
 $340,000
 $350,000
 $360,000
 $370,000
 $380,000
 $390,000
 $400,000
 $410,000
 $420,000
 $430,000
 $440,000
 $450,000
 $460,000
 $470,000
 $480,000
 $490,000
 $500,000

M
on

th
ly

 R
ev

en
ue

Month

City of Leadville
Retail Sales Tax

4-Year Comparison 2020-2023 

Year 2020

Year 2021

Year 2022

Year 2023



Month Sales 
Tax Received 

by City
 2020                                 

City Sales Tax* 
 2021                                 

City Sales Tax** 
 2022                                

City Sales Tax*** 
 2023                                

City Sales Tax*** 
 2024                                

City Sales Tax*** 

 2023                                 
City Sales Tax 

Budget 

 2023                        
Actual vs Budget 
($ Cumulative) 

 2023                        
Actual vs Budget 
(% Cumulative) 

January 165,390$                183,535$                244,378$                286,289$                237,342$                233,596$                3,746$                    1.6%
February 196,840$                210,257$                299,137$                325,040$                273,878$                (270,132)$              -53.2%

March 175,076$                190,416$                229,788$                289,482$                234,969$                (505,101)$              -68.0%
April 165,382$                174,112$                251,544$                293,274$                234,849$                (739,950)$              -75.7%
May 139,192$                199,485$                277,788$                286,221$                239,729$                (979,679)$              -80.5%
June 134,564$                179,671$                472,432$                214,349$                265,843$                (1,245,521)$           -84.0%
July 136,093$                218,714$                270,030$                228,072$                226,510$                (1,472,031)$           -86.1%

August 233,353$                289,675$                369,533$                340,342$                327,426$                (1,799,457)$           -88.3%
September 277,551$                310,213$                397,446$                384,037$                363,635$                (2,163,091)$           -90.1%

October 250,181$                328,378$                410,305$                436,670$                378,583$                (2,541,674)$           -91.5%
November 271,507$                313,217$                370,354$                345,419$                345,377$                (2,887,051)$           -92.4%
December 216,743$                266,868$                289,428$                264,744$                275,607$                (3,162,658)$           -93.0%

Totals: 2,361,872$             2,864,541$             3,882,165$             3,693,939$             237,342$                3,400,000$             (3,162,658)$           -93.0%

* Includes Retail Sales Tax, State Retail Marijuana Special Sales Tax, and Motor Vehicle Sales Tax
** Includes Retail Sales Tax, State Retail Marijuana Special Sales Tax, and Motor Vehicle Sales Tax State Marijuana Sales Tax was $60,816.85 - 2.1% of the Total Number .
*** Includes Retail Sales Tax, Special Sales Tax, and Motor Vehicle Sales Tax Does not include State Marijuana Sales Tax

City of Leadville
Schedule of Sales Tax

Fiscal Years 2019 to 2023



City of Leadville Check Register - Council Page:     1

Check Issue Dates: 12/16/2023 - 1/12/2024 Jan 13, 2024  09:56AM

Report Criteria:

Report type:  GL detail

Check Check dept Description Invoice GL Account Title Check

Issue Date Number Payee Amount

Accommodations Tax Expenditure

12/19/2023 78229 Acco Lake County Government 2A Contribution for Housing Director Position Housing Director Servic 70,000.00

12/19/2023 78229 Acco Lake County Government Left Over 2A Miscellaneous Housing  70,000.00

12/19/2023 78229 Acco Lake County Government Grant Match Miscellaneous Housing  100,000.00

01/05/2024 78272 Acco GovOS, Inc LODGINGRevs Tax Collection Professional Services 385.00

01/05/2024 78275 Acco Lake County Treasurer July-September 2023/Accommodations Tax/T Tourism Panel Share 54,509.08

01/05/2024 78275 Acco Lake County Treasurer July-September 2023 MUNIRevs Service Fe Professional Services 409.50-

          Total Accommodations Tax Expenditure: 294,484.58

Animal Shelter

12/19/2023 78212 Anima Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Animal Shelter Gas and Oil 56.22

12/19/2023 78217 Anima Charter Communications A/S - Telehone Telephone 35.33

12/19/2023 78217 Anima Charter Communications A/S - Internet Internet Animal Shelter 54.95

12/19/2023 78232 Anima Leadville Snowy Peaks Trash P/U - Animal Shelter Utilities 275.00

12/19/2023 78239 Anima Parkville Water District Animal Shelter - 2333 Utilities 87.86

01/05/2024 78258 Anima Animal Health International, Inc Rescue Concentrate/Spray Bottles/Wipes-Di Supplies 631.57

01/05/2024 78260 Anima Black Water Solutions Ltd Snake clogged drain in dog room Building Maintenance 580.00

01/05/2024 78262 Anima Brenda Caraveo Essential Animal Service Training-Longmont Education and Conferen 561.00

01/05/2024 78263 Anima Caselle Caselle Monthly Support-January 2024 Computer Equipment/M 70.00

01/05/2024 78276 Anima Leadville Sanitation District Animal Shelter/499 E. 12th St. - 9375 Utilities 99.00

01/05/2024 78277 Anima Leadville Veterinary Clinic, Inc. Surgeries/Exams/Vaccines Animal Expenses 3,853.51

01/05/2024 78277 Anima Leadville Veterinary Clinic, Inc. Surgeries/Exams/Vaccines Animal Assistance Foun 1,216.80

01/05/2024 78284 Anima Parkville Water District Animal Shelter - 2333 Utilities 76.36

01/05/2024 78285 Anima Peak Performance Imaging Solutions Monthly IT Support - A/S Computer Equipment/M 225.24

01/05/2024 78287 Anima Planned Pethood International Spay & Neuter Surgeries/Vaccines/Microchip Animal Expenses 4,470.00

01/05/2024 78293 Anima Silver City Printing Clipboards/Receipt Book Supplies 99.45

          Total Animal Shelter: 12,392.29

Conservation Trust Fund

12/19/2023 78217 Conse Charter Communications WiFi for Camera System at Ziatz Park Parks Maintenance 89.98

12/19/2023 78239 Conse Parkville Water District Parks - 4 Parks Maintenance 71.50

12/19/2023 78239 Conse Parkville Water District Elm Street Park - 1086 Parks Maintenance 57.00

12/19/2023 78240 Conse Paula Martinez Park bathroom cleaning 11/16/23-12/15/2023 Parks Maintenance 4,000.00

01/05/2024 78259 Conse BigHorn Hardware Drain Cleaner/Auger for Zaitz Park Parks Maintenance 25.57

01/05/2024 78259 Conse BigHorn Hardware 2"" Wood to Secure Windows at Zaitz Park Parks Maintenance 45.98

01/05/2024 78276 Conse Leadville Sanitation District Zaitz Park Restroom/610 Harrison - 1171 Parks Maintenance 99.00

01/05/2024 78284 Conse Parkville Water District Parks - 4 Parks Maintenance 71.50

01/05/2024 78284 Conse Parkville Water District Elm Street Park - 1086 Parks Maintenance 57.00

01/05/2024 78289 Conse Quill Corporation Residential Wie Shelving/Zaitz Park Parks Maintenance 50.49

01/05/2024 78289 Conse Quill Corporation Tandem Bucket/Wringer-Zaitz/Parklet, Batteri Parks Maintenance 112.46

          Total Conservation Trust Fund: 4,680.48

Fire Contract Service Expendit

12/19/2023 78252 Fire C Verizon Wireless F/D Wildland Fire Tablets Wildfire Deployment Ex 80.02

01/05/2024 78295 Fire C Verizon Wireless F/D Wildland Fire Tablets Wildfire Deployment Ex 80.02

          Total Fire Contract Service Expendit: 160.04

Fire Operating Expenditures

12/19/2023 78212 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-UTE 1 Gas and Oil 34.33

12/19/2023 78212 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Truck 1 Gas and Oil 35.69



City of Leadville Check Register - Council Page:     2

Check Issue Dates: 12/16/2023 - 1/12/2024 Jan 13, 2024  09:56AM

Check Check dept Description Invoice GL Account Title Check

Issue Date Number Payee Amount

12/19/2023 78212 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Command 3 Gas and Oil 97.62

12/19/2023 78212 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-602 Gas and Oil 106.15

12/19/2023 78212 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Command 2 Gas and Oil 160.54

12/19/2023 78212 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Engine 1 Gas and Oil 569.55

12/19/2023 78217 Fire O Charter Communications F/D - Telephone Telephone 73.10

12/19/2023 78217 Fire O Charter Communications F/D - Internet Utilities 73.10

12/19/2023 78220 Fire O Colorado Division of Fire Prevention State Recerts/Depetro & Gorham Education & Conference 40.00

12/19/2023 78220 Fire O Colorado Division of Fire Prevention HazOps Cert for Resident N. Bliven Volunteer Other 30.00

12/19/2023 78221 Fire O Dalila B Lopez Fire Station I & II Cleaning Service - 11/30/20 Other Expenses 400.00

12/19/2023 78222 Fire O Denver Athletic Training Shorts/Sweats/Beanies/Emblem Re Uniform Allowance 930.03

12/19/2023 78222 Fire O Denver Athletic Hats with Snap Back (20) Uniform Allowance 210.50

12/19/2023 78225 Fire O Galls, LLC Firefighet Shirt (1)/Gallup Uniform Allowance 64.96

12/19/2023 78231 Fire O Lake County Treasurer Type 1-replaced rear tires Vehicle Repairs 174.72

12/19/2023 78235 Fire O Municipal Emergency Services SCBA Services-Test & Repair/Replace Ladder & Air Tests 2,009.31

12/19/2023 78237 Fire O O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Floor Dry for Engine 1 Building Repair & Maint 35.98

12/19/2023 78239 Fire O Parkville Water District Fire Dept - 1377 Utilities 126.60

12/19/2023 78248 Fire O Safeway, Inc. Resident Stipend Meals Dec 2023 Volunteer Other 1,029.75

12/19/2023 78252 Fire O Verizon Wireless F/D Cell Phones & Toughbook Telephone 172.41

01/05/2024 78257 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-602 Gas and Oil 24.95

01/05/2024 78257 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Command 1 Gas and Oil 111.05

01/05/2024 78257 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Command 2 Gas and Oil 152.95

01/05/2024 78257 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Command 3 Gas and Oil 80.21

01/05/2024 78257 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Engine 1 Gas and Oil 608.07

01/05/2024 78257 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Engine 2 Gas and Oil 46.01

01/05/2024 78257 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Hammer 1 Gas and Oil 166.10

01/05/2024 78257 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Tender 1 Gas and Oil 40.16

01/05/2024 78257 Fire O Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Truck 1 Gas and Oil 180.29

01/05/2024 78259 Fire O BigHorn Hardware Spray Paint Supplies 19.98

01/05/2024 78259 Fire O BigHorn Hardware Ice Melt-Station 1 Building Repair & Maint 27.98

01/05/2024 78259 Fire O BigHorn Hardware Broom/Dust Pan Supplies 11.99

01/05/2024 78259 Fire O BigHorn Hardware Window Crank Knobs/Bolt for Knobs-E1 Vehicle Repairs 12.16

01/05/2024 78259 Fire O BigHorn Hardware Wax Ring for Station 1 toilet Building Repair & Maint 3.59

01/05/2024 78259 Fire O BigHorn Hardware Baited Mouse Trap/Sonic Rodent Deterrent-S Building Repair & Maint 46.98

01/05/2024 78261 Fire O Bo Knickman Fire Officer I Class per meal per diem/B. Knic Education & Conference 395.00

01/05/2024 78268 Fire O Colorado Division of Fire Prevention Hazmat Tech Recert for Boyle Education & Conference 20.00

01/05/2024 78268 Fire O Colorado Division of Fire Prevention FFII Test-Flanagan/FOI Test-Slutsky Education & Conference 60.00

01/05/2024 78269 Fire O Colorado Firefighter Heart, Cancer and Cancer Award Coverage Heart & Cancer Trust In 2,785.15

01/05/2024 78269 Fire O Colorado Firefighter Heart, Cancer and Heart Award Coverage Heart & Cancer Trust In 1,419.00

01/05/2024 78270 Fire O Colorado State Fire Fighters Association CSFFA 2024 Membership Dues Dues & Membership 150.00

01/05/2024 78271 Fire O Dalila B Lopez Fire Station Cleaning Service (12/14/23 & 12/ Other Expenses 400.00

01/05/2024 78273 Fire O High Altitude Lube & Tire Corp Oil Change-Command 1 Vehicle Repairs 94.49

01/05/2024 78276 Fire O Leadville Sanitation District Firestation/816 Harrison - 1200 Utilities 356.40

01/05/2024 78284 Fire O Parkville Water District Fire Dept - 1377 Utilities 107.58

01/05/2024 78285 Fire O Peak Performance Imaging Solutions Meter Billing for MP C2503 Copier Office Equipment Expen 430.94

01/05/2024 78285 Fire O Peak Performance Imaging Solutions Monthly IT Support - F/D Computer Equipment/M 999.13

01/05/2024 78295 Fire O Verizon Wireless F/D Cell Phones & Toughbook Telephone 172.41

01/05/2024 78297 Fire O Waste Management JPMC F/D - January 2024 Trash Pick Up Utilities 552.19

01/05/2024 78299 Fire O Xcel Energy FD/816 Harrison Ave Utilities 1,129.04

          Total Fire Operating Expenditures: 16,978.14

General Operating Expenditures

12/19/2023 78215 Gener BigHorn Hardware Bolt Replacement for Gate & Doors 809 Spruce St. Mainten 9.18

12/19/2023 78215 Gener BigHorn Hardware 2x4 to Repair Front Gate 809 Spruce St. Mainten 6.99

12/19/2023 78215 Gener BigHorn Hardware Paint & Wood Screws 809 Spruce St. Mainten 21.97

12/19/2023 78216 Gener Chaffee Housing Trust Housing Contribution Operating Contingency 10,000.00

12/19/2023 78217 Gener Charter Communications Tabor Home/Telephone for Security System Tabor Home Expenses 99.98



City of Leadville Check Register - Council Page:     3

Check Issue Dates: 12/16/2023 - 1/12/2024 Jan 13, 2024  09:56AM

Check Check dept Description Invoice GL Account Title Check

Issue Date Number Payee Amount

12/19/2023 78217 Gener Charter Communications C/H - Telephone & Internet (70%) Telephone 239.31

12/19/2023 78218 Gener CivicPlus LLC Municode Pages/Images/Graphs Codification of Municipal  1,521.00

12/19/2023 78219 Gener Cloud City Conservation Center 2023 Contribution Operating Contingency 20,000.00

12/19/2023 78221 Gener Dalila B Lopez City Hall Cleaning Service - 10/16/2023-10/2 Operating Expenses 720.00

12/19/2023 78226 Gener Hoffmann, Parker, Wilson & Carberry, PC November Legal Fees Professional Services -  517.00

12/19/2023 78226 Gener Hoffmann, Parker, Wilson & Carberry, PC November Legal Fees Professional Services -  2,751.27

12/19/2023 78226 Gener Hoffmann, Parker, Wilson & Carberry, PC November Legal-Railyards Professional Services -  393.12

12/19/2023 78228 Gener Lake County Community Fund 2023 Contribution Operating Contingency 25,000.00

12/19/2023 78228 Gener Lake County Community Fund Lake County Early Care & Education Fund C Operating Contingency 50,000.00

12/19/2023 78233 Gener Liquid Logs, LLC November Rental-301 & 302 Harrison/1002  Other Expenses 320.00

12/19/2023 78233 Gener Liquid Logs, LLC December Rental-301 & 302 Harrison/1002  Other Expenses 320.00

12/19/2023 78236 Gener Murray Dahl Beery & Renaud LLP November Legal-Municipal Prosecution Legal Fees-Pros. Attorn 2,657.07

12/19/2023 78238 Gener O'Rourke Media Group, LLC Public Notice/821 Harrison Rezone/CUP 601  Legal Publications 47.99

12/19/2023 78238 Gener O'Rourke Media Group, LLC May-Aug Expenditures/2024 Budget Hearing Legal Publications 159.96

12/19/2023 78239 Gener Parkville Water District 809 Spruce St. - 1196 809 Spruce St. Utilities 71.52

12/19/2023 78239 Gener Parkville Water District Tabor - 1340 Tabor Home Expenses 57.00

12/19/2023 78239 Gener Parkville Water District 809 Harrison Ave. Parklet - 1373 Parklet Utilities 71.24

12/19/2023 78239 Gener Parkville Water District 809 Harrison Ave. Parklet - 1373 Parklet Utilities .01

12/19/2023 78239 Gener Parkville Water District City Hall - 1378 Utilities 71.50

12/19/2023 78239 Gener Parkville Water District Community Center-2517 Utilities 57.00

12/19/2023 78241 Gener Peak Performance Imaging Solutions Annual Veem Support Renewal Computer Equipment/M 400.00

12/19/2023 78243 Gener Pinnacol Assurance Deductible-Police Department Insurance 666.42

12/19/2023 78244 Gener Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services SendPro Mailstation Lease Payment Postage 77.37

12/19/2023 78245 Gener Professional Document Solutions, Inc. Monthly Copier Usage/Oct 2023 Xerox Copier 250.87

12/19/2023 78246 Gener Quill Corporation Cleaning Supplies/Offfice Supplies-City Hall Supplies 218.04

12/19/2023 78246 Gener Quill Corporation Misc Office Supplies/City Hall Supplies 29.92

12/19/2023 78247 Gener Rocky Mountain Bottled Water Stainless Steel H/C Supplies 15.00

12/19/2023 78247 Gener Rocky Mountain Bottled Water Bottled Water Service Supplies 41.98

12/19/2023 78249 Gener SHI International Corp Microsoft Office License/Kristol Computer Software 306.69

12/19/2023 78252 Gener Verizon Wireless C/H Cell Phones Telephone 325.61

12/19/2023 78253 Gener Xerox Financial Services November 2023 Copier Lease Xerox Copier 218.89

01/05/2024 78255 Gener Aaron's Plumbing Check Valve/Back Flow Preventer T&M (Ins  Tabor Home Expenses 1,222.13

01/05/2024 78263 Gener Caselle Caselle Monthly Support-January 2024 Computer Equipment/M 855.00

01/05/2024 78264 Gener Centennial Real Estate GE Washer-809 Spruce 809 Spruce St. Mainten 1,048.95

01/05/2024 78266 Gener CivicPlus LLC Municode Administrative Support Fee & Onli Codification of Municipal  700.00

01/05/2024 78271 Gener Dalila B Lopez City Hall Cleaning Service (12/11/23-12/22/2 Operating Expenses 720.00

01/05/2024 78272 Gener GovOS, Inc LODGINGRevs STR Monitoring & Complianc Professional Services -  916.67

01/05/2024 78276 Gener Leadville Sanitation District City Hall/800 Harrison - 1179 Utilities 643.50

01/05/2024 78276 Gener Leadville Sanitation District 809 Spruce - 4394 809 Spruce St. Utilities 173.26

01/05/2024 78276 Gener Leadville Sanitation District Tabor Home/116 E. 5th St. - 4646 Tabor Home Expenses 99.00

01/05/2024 78276 Gener Leadville Sanitation District 117 W 10th St. - 9544 Utilities 99.00

01/05/2024 78276 Gener Leadville Sanitation District 809 Harrison Ave. Parklet - 1180 Parklet Utilities 99.00

01/05/2024 78278 Gener Lee & Burgess Associates of Colorado 2023/2024 Compensation and Classification  Professional Services -  6,550.00

01/05/2024 78279 Gener Lexipol, LLC Policy Manual & Daily Training Bulletins/Sup Professional Services -  5,619.25

01/05/2024 78280 Gener Metcalf Archaeological Consultants West End Residential Survey (8th & 9th Stre Historic Preservation Co 5,456.25

01/05/2024 78282 Gener Mountain Heating, Inc. Boiler Repair/CH Building Maintenance 500.00

01/05/2024 78283 Gener O'Rourke Media Group, LLC Letters of Interest Ad Other Expenses 42.90

01/05/2024 78283 Gener O'Rourke Media Group, LLC Labbe Letter Other Expenses 885.00

01/05/2024 78284 Gener Parkville Water District 809 Spruce St. - 1196 809 Spruce St. Utilities 66.08

01/05/2024 78284 Gener Parkville Water District Tabor - 1340 Tabor Home Expenses 57.00

01/05/2024 78284 Gener Parkville Water District 809 Harrison Ave. Parklet - 1373 Parklet Utilities 71.25

01/05/2024 78284 Gener Parkville Water District City Hall - 1378 Utilities 71.50

01/05/2024 78284 Gener Parkville Water District Community Center-2517 Utilities 57.00

01/05/2024 78285 Gener Peak Performance Imaging Solutions Monthly IT Support - C/H Computer Equipment/M 1,299.44

01/05/2024 78286 Gener Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services SendPro Mailstation Lease Payment Postage 77.37

01/05/2024 78288 Gener Purchase Power SL-870-1 SendPro Mailstation Postage 63.90

01/05/2024 78288 Gener Purchase Power Postage Meter Refill Postage 200.00



City of Leadville Check Register - Council Page:     4

Check Issue Dates: 12/16/2023 - 1/12/2024 Jan 13, 2024  09:56AM

Check Check dept Description Invoice GL Account Title Check

Issue Date Number Payee Amount

01/05/2024 78288 Gener Purchase Power Postage Overage Fee Postage 1.00

01/05/2024 78289 Gener Quill Corporation Urinal Puck-City Hall Supplies 49.54

01/05/2024 78289 Gener Quill Corporation Notebook Supplies 1.18

01/05/2024 78289 Gener Quill Corporation Toilet Paper/Legal Letter Tray Supplies 117.89

01/05/2024 78289 Gener Quill Corporation Keyboard/Mouse/Paper Towels/Kleenex/Bind Supplies 179.80

01/05/2024 78289 Gener Quill Corporation Binder Clips Supplies 5.80

01/05/2024 78290 Gener Rocky Mountain Bottled Water Bottled Water Service Supplies 102.93

01/05/2024 78290 Gener Rocky Mountain Bottled Water Stainless Steel H/C Supplies 15.00

01/05/2024 78291 Gener Ronald W. Carlson Municipal Court Services 12/13/23-12/20/23 Legal Fees-Pros. Attorn 750.00

01/05/2024 78295 Gener Verizon Wireless C/H Cell Phones Telephone 325.89

01/05/2024 78297 Gener Waste Management JPMC C/H - January 2024 Trash Pick Up Utilities 552.18

01/05/2024 78298 Gener Western Security Systems Tabor Home Security - 1st Qtr 2024 Tabor Home Expenses 105.00

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy Area Lights Metered/104 E. 8th St. Street Lighting 48.07

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy 809 Harrision Ave Parklet Parklet Utilities 363.80

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy Area Lights Metered/105 W. 4th St. Utilities 35.22

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy 116 E 5th St/Tabor Home Tabor Home Expenses 320.34

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy Area Lights Metered/105 W. 8th St. Street Lighting 43.87

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy CH/800 Harrison Ave (84%) Utilities 2,353.62

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy Area Lights Metered/104 E. 4th St. Utilities 44.61

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy 610 Harrison Ave/Zaitz Park Street Lighting 230.43

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy 127 W. 4th St./House with the Eye House with the Eye Exp 190.32

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy 117 W 10th St/Community Center Utilities 50.64

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy Street Lights Street Lighting 2,835.18

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy Traffic Light Street Lighting 119.79

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy 809 Spruce Street/Gas & Electric 809 Spruce St. Utilities 528.34

01/05/2024 78299 Gener Xcel Energy 301 Harrison Ave./Electric EV Charging Station Util 1,719.36

01/08/2024 78300 Gener Casa Blanca Restaurant Streets Employee Appreciation Lunch Operating Expenses 96.00

          Total General Operating Expenditures: 156,443.15

Police Department

12/19/2023 78212 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-5 Gas and Oil 70.92

12/19/2023 78212 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-13 Gas and Oil 72.81

12/19/2023 78212 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-11 Gas and Oil 89.59

12/19/2023 78212 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-14 Gas and Oil 91.72

12/19/2023 78212 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-12 Gas and Oil 177.67

12/19/2023 78213 Police Altitude Tire & Alignment (12) Falken Rubitek Tires for PD Vehicles Vehicle Repairs 2,601.36

12/19/2023 78217 Police Charter Communications P/D - Telephone & Internet (30%) Telephone 102.56

12/19/2023 78224 Police Ford Motor Credit Company LLC Payment 34 of 60/(2) 2021 Interceptors Vehicle Lease Payment 1,694.03

12/19/2023 78224 Police Ford Motor Credit Company LLC Payment 35 of 60/(3) 2020 Interceptors Vehicle Lease Payment 2,501.65

12/19/2023 78237 Police O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Battery for 2016 Ford Pollice Interceptor #82- Vehicle Repairs 132.62

12/19/2023 78237 Police O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. Battery for 2020 Ford Police Interceptor #82- Vehicle Repairs 75.87

12/19/2023 78238 Police O'Rourke Media Group, LLC Classified Display-Police Chief Other Expenses 2,159.00

12/19/2023 78245 Police Professional Document Solutions, Inc. Monthly Copier Usage/Oct 2023 Office Equipment Expen 42.90

12/19/2023 78246 Police Quill Corporation Paper Towels 30 ct Supplies 39.25

12/19/2023 78246 Police Quill Corporation Can Liners 55-60 Gallon Supplies 226.32

12/19/2023 78252 Police Verizon Wireless P/D Cell Phones & Tablets Telephone 1,394.36

12/19/2023 78252 Police Verizon Wireless P/D Cell Phones & Tablets Telephone 423.85-

12/19/2023 78253 Police Xerox Financial Services November 2023 Copier Lease Xerox Copier Lease 218.90

01/05/2024 78257 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-11 Gas and Oil 157.06

01/05/2024 78257 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-12 Gas and Oil 180.89

01/05/2024 78257 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-13 Gas and Oil 29.72

01/05/2024 78257 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-14 Gas and Oil 68.75

01/05/2024 78257 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-5 Gas and Oil 50.51

01/05/2024 78257 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-11 Gas and Oil 96.25

01/05/2024 78257 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-12 Gas and Oil 199.00

01/05/2024 78257 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-13 Gas and Oil 58.25



City of Leadville Check Register - Council Page:     5

Check Issue Dates: 12/16/2023 - 1/12/2024 Jan 13, 2024  09:56AM

Check Check dept Description Invoice GL Account Title Check

Issue Date Number Payee Amount

01/05/2024 78257 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-14 Gas and Oil 71.23

01/05/2024 78257 Police Acorn Petroleum Fuel/82-5 Gas and Oil 23.11

01/05/2024 78265 Police Century Link P/D Direct Redundancy Line Telephone 175.61

01/05/2024 78285 Police Peak Performance Imaging Solutions Monthly IT Support - P/D Computer Equipment/M 1,749.94

01/05/2024 78289 Police Quill Corporation Paper Plates 8.5"" Supplies 13.39

01/05/2024 78289 Police Quill Corporation Dixie-Spoons Supplies 12.59

01/05/2024 78292 Police Salt Lake Wholesale Sports 38 SPL+P 125 GR DGHP Ammo Ammunition 57.24

01/05/2024 78292 Police Salt Lake Wholesale Sports 124 GR Full Metal Jacket Ammunition 519.80

01/05/2024 78295 Police Verizon Wireless P/D Cell Phones & Tablets Telephone 970.51

01/05/2024 78299 Police Xcel Energy PD/800 Harrision Ave (16%) Utilities 448.31

          Total Police Department: 16,149.84

Street Department

12/19/2023 78212 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-03 Ford PU Gas and Oil 642.59

12/19/2023 78215 Street BigHorn Hardware Spray Paint Building Repair & Maint 11.99

12/19/2023 78215 Street BigHorn Hardware Light Bulbs for City Hall Building Repair & Maint 29.98

12/19/2023 78217 Street Charter Communications S/D - Telephone & Internet Telephone 104.94

12/19/2023 78223 Street Econo Signs Street/Parking Signs Street Signage 376.31

12/19/2023 78226 Street Hoffmann, Parker, Wilson & Carberry, PC November Legal Fees-6th Street Vacation (N Professional Services -  752.00

12/19/2023 78227 Street John Deere Financial Light Bulb for Harrison Ave Street Lights Building Repair & Maint 59.96

12/19/2023 78227 Street John Deere Financial Work Clothes-J. Boyden Uniform Allowance 23.98

12/19/2023 78230 Street Lake County Treasurer Trash Drop Off-November 2023 Landfill 176.00

12/19/2023 78238 Street O'Rourke Media Group, LLC Classified Display-Streets Worker Other Expenses 390.00

12/19/2023 78239 Street Parkville Water District Street Dept - 1033 Utilities 71.50

12/19/2023 78242 Street Pennsylvania Globe Gaslight Co. Replacement Lamp Post at 4th & Harrison Street Signage 4,042.00

12/19/2023 78246 Street Quill Corporation PD-Office Supplies Supplies 31.37

12/19/2023 78250 Street Snap-On Credit LLC Ethos Edge Diagnostic Software Update Fee Computer Equipment/M 38.92

12/19/2023 78251 Street Tony Medina Printer Ink for Office Printer/Canon TR8620 Supplies 64.10

12/19/2023 78252 Street Verizon Wireless S/D Cell Phones Telephone 122.40

01/05/2024 78256 Street ACA Products Asphalt Concrete CDOT SX Mix Street Materials 6,120.26

01/05/2024 78257 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Mac Truck Gas and Oil 285.80

01/05/2024 78257 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Plow Truck #1 Gas and Oil 39.85

01/05/2024 78257 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Plow Truck #2 Gas and Oil 98.96

01/05/2024 78257 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Plow Truck 3 F250 Gas and Oil 197.25

01/05/2024 78257 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-03 Ford PU Gas and Oil 556.26

01/05/2024 78257 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-20 Mac Dump Gas and Oil 150.11

01/05/2024 78257 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-2021 Mac Dump Gas and Oil 219.13

01/05/2024 78257 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-938 Loader Gas and Oil 309.19

01/05/2024 78257 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-CAT #3 930 Gas and Oil 405.88

01/05/2024 78257 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Grader CAT 140H Gas and Oil 85.10

01/05/2024 78257 Street Acorn Petroleum Fuel-Grader CAT 150 Gas and Oil 269.03

01/05/2024 78259 Street BigHorn Hardware Extension Light Bulb Charger Pole Building Repair & Maint 27.99

01/05/2024 78259 Street BigHorn Hardware LED Bulbs for Replacement Building Repair & Maint 8.99

01/05/2024 78259 Street BigHorn Hardware Screws 8x1/Screwdriver/Bits Building Repair & Maint 49.96

01/05/2024 78259 Street BigHorn Hardware Toggle Bolts/Misc Hardware Building Repair & Maint 29.84

01/05/2024 78259 Street BigHorn Hardware Utility Tote/Rubber Bands for Street Banners Building Repair & Maint 22.48

01/05/2024 78259 Street BigHorn Hardware Snow/Ice Melt Building Repair & Maint 57.95

01/05/2024 78267 Street Clint Conter DOT Physical Exam Follow-up/C. Conter Physicals and Tests 20.00

01/05/2024 78274 Street John Deere Financial (2) 5000 Lumin Cob Bulb for Street Lamps Street Lighting 39.98

01/05/2024 78274 Street John Deere Financial (6) 5000 Lumen COB Bulb for City Street La Street Lighting 139.93

01/05/2024 78276 Street Leadville Sanitation District Street Dept/6th St. & Hazel St. - 1178 Utilities 275.22

01/05/2024 78281 Street Mike Stepisnik Work Shirts - Stepisnik Uniform Allowance 110.65

01/05/2024 78284 Street Parkville Water District Street Dept - 1033 Utilities 71.50

01/05/2024 78285 Street Peak Performance Imaging Solutions Monthly IT Support - S/D Computer Equipment/M 225.24

01/05/2024 78294 Street SmartSign (20) 6x12 Information Signs Street Signage 375.00

01/05/2024 78295 Street Verizon Wireless S/D Cell Phones Telephone 122.40



City of Leadville Check Register - Council Page:     6

Check Issue Dates: 12/16/2023 - 1/12/2024 Jan 13, 2024  09:56AM

Check Check dept Description Invoice GL Account Title Check

Issue Date Number Payee Amount

01/05/2024 78296 Street Wagner Equipment Company Lamp/Guards Cages for 930K Loader Headli Street Materials 1,581.75

01/05/2024 78296 Street Wagner Equipment Company Credit Invoice S00W1788053 Equipment Repair & Mai 106.00-

01/05/2024 78299 Street Xcel Energy SD/326 E. 6th St. Utilities 212.20

01/05/2024 78299 Street Xcel Energy SD/330 E. 6th St. Utilities 1,684.39

          Total Street Department: 20,624.33

Wildland Supplemental Program

12/19/2023 78214 Wildla Antero Septic Corporation November 2023 Septic at Headwaters Traini Headwaters Training Ce 90.00

12/19/2023 78234 Wildla Lowe's Refund Sales Tax Headwaters Training Ce 55.97-

12/19/2023 78234 Wildla Lowe's Refund Sales Tax Headwaters Training Ce 22.91-

12/19/2023 78234 Wildla Lowe's Materials for Burn Room at HTC Headwaters Training Ce 189.05

12/19/2023 78234 Wildla Lowe's Materials for Burn Room at HTC Headwaters Training Ce 3,176.39

          Total Wildland Supplemental Program: 3,376.56

          Grand Totals:  525,289.41

Report Criteria:

Report type:  GL detail































Investing for Colorado Local Governments 



DISCLOSURE

Client Services

This presentation is for informational purposes only. All information is assumed to be correct, but the accuracy has not been confirmed and therefore is not guaranteed
to be correct. Information is obtained from third party sources that may or may not be verified. The information presented should not be used in making any
investment decisions and is not a recommendation to buy, sell, implement, or change any securities or investment strategy, function, or process. Any financial and/or
investment decision should be made only after considerable research, consideration, and involvement with an experienced professional engaged for the specific
purpose. All comments and discussion presented are purely based on opinion and assumptions, not fact. These assumptions may or may not be correct based on
foreseen and unforeseen events. All calculations and results presented are for discussion purposes only and should not be used for making calculations and/or
decisions. The data in this presentation is unaudited.

Performance results for COLOTRUST and COLOTRUST EDGE are shown net of all fees and expenses and reflect the reinvestment of dividends and other earnings. Many
factors affect performance including changes in market conditions and interest rates and in response to other economic, political, or financial developments.
Investment involves risk including the possible loss of principal. No assurance can be given that the performance objectives of a given strategy will be achieved.
COLOTRUST is not a bank. An investment in COLOTRUST is not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency. Although the
COLOTRUST prime-style and government-style funds seeks to preserve the value of your investment at $1.00 per share, they cannot guarantee they will do so. Please
review the COLOTRUST Information Statement(s) before making an investment decision. Past performance is not an indicator of future performance or results.
Any financial and/or investment decision may incur losses.

A ‘AAAm’ rating by S&P Global Ratings is obtained after S&P evaluates a number of factors including credit quality, market price exposure, and management. Ratings
are subject to change and do not remove credit risk. Visit www.spglobal.com for more information. The ‘AAAf’ rating is Fitch’s opinion on the overall credit profile within
a fixed-income fund/portfolio and indicates the highest underlying credit quality of the pool’s investments. The ‘S1’ volatility rating is Fitch’s opinion on the relative
sensitivity of a portfolio’s total return and/or net asset value to assumed changes in credit spreads and interest rates. The 'S1' volatility rating indicates that the fund
possesses a low sensitivity to market risks. For a full description on rating methodology, please visit www.fitchratings.com. Ratings are subject to change and do not
remove credit risk.

2COLOTRUST 2023 ©



PURPOSE

COLOTRUST was established in 1985 by 

an Indenture of Trust in accordance with 

the "Pooling Act.

STRUCTURE

COLOTRUST was created

by and for Colorado local 

governments. 

The purpose of COLOTRUST is to 

provide all Colorado local 

governments with a convenient, 

short-term investment 

opportunity designed to optimize 

investment income striving to  

maximize safety and liquidity.

3

Liquidity

Safety Yield

Please refer to the disclosure slide for additional information 
regarding this presentation. 

3COLOTRUST 2023 ©



4COLOTRUST 2023 ©

Enhanced cashPrime-style fundGovernment-style fundPortfolio Type 

Strategic ReservesShort-term liquidity Short-term liquidity Purpose

‘AAAf/S1’‘AAAm’‘AAAm’Rating 

Next-day Daily Daily Liquidity Offered

NoneNone None Minimum Investment 

Unlimited UnlimitedUnlimited Withdrawals 

Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Accounts 

Accrue Daily Applied Daily Applied Daily Dividends 

 60 Days  60 Days  60 Days WAM

Variable $10.00 per share Stable $1.00 per share Stable $1.00 per share Net Asset Value (NAV) 

EDGE   PLUS+ PRIME Investment Option 

OFFERING YOUR LOCAL GOVERNMENT A COMPREHENSIVE 
APPROACH TO INVESTING YOUR FUNDS

Please refer to the disclosure slide for additional information regarding this presentation. A ‘AAAm’ rating by S&P Global Ratings is obtained after S&P evaluates a number of factors including credit quality, market price
exposure, and management. Ratings are subject to change and do not remove credit risk. Visit www.spglobal.com for more information. The ‘AAAf’ rating is Fitch’s opinion on the overall credit profile within a fixed-income
fund/portfolio and indicates the highest underlying credit quality of the pool’s investments. The ‘S1’ volatility rating is Fitch’s opinion on the relative sensitivity of a portfolio’s total return and/or net asset value to assumed
changes in credit spreads and interest rates. The 'S1' volatility rating indicates that the fund possesses a low sensitivity to market risks. For a full description on rating methodology, please visit www.fitchratings.com. Ratings
are subject to change and do not remove credit risk. Many factors affect performance including changes in market conditions and interest rates and in response to other economic, political, or financial developments.
Investment involves risk including the possible loss of principal. No assurance can be given that the performance objectives of a given strategy will be achieved. COLOTRUST is not a bank. An investment in COLOTRUST is not
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency. COLOTRUST PRIME and COLOTRUST PLUS+ seek to preserve the value of your investment at $1.00 per share, COLOTRUST cannot
guarantee it will do so. Please review the COLOTRUST Information Statement(s) before making an investment decision. For risks associated with investing in prime-style, government-style, and enhanced cash-style local
government investment pools, please visit www.colotrust.com/rates-disclaimer.



HOW TO JOIN

Enrolling in COLOTRUST is simple. Visit www.colotrust.com/document-center to 

download the enrollment documentation needed.   

After we review and approve the above documents, you will receive 

confirmation that you have been accepted as a COLOTRUST Participant!

Read the Trust Indenture.1

Read the Information Statement.2

Submit the above documents to COLOTRUST Client Services.4

Adopt, execute, and provide to COLOTRUST a copy of a resolution adopting the 

Indenture and naming a Designee to participate in COLOTRUST. The COLOTRUST Trust 

Registration Form includes a model resolution.

3

5COLOTRUST 2023 ©Please refer to the disclosure slide of this 
presentation for more information. 



Contact Us 

Casey Gunning 

Senior Director, 

Investment Services 

(720) 217-9599

casey.gunning@colotrust.com

Dylana Gross 

Director, Investment Services 

(970) 250-6158

dylana.gross@colotrust.com

Brett Parsons 

Director, Investment Services 

(936) 526-9249

brett.parsons@colotrust.com

Please refer to the disclosure slide of this 
presentation for more information. 



1 
 

   

 AGENDA ITEM #9C 
 

 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 

               ______       
MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Thelcrest Inc. presentation regarding 6-unit community housing at 220 E. 11th 

St.; request for Work Session 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Chapin LaChance, AICP - Planning Director 
 

 _____ORDINANCE 
 _____RESOLUTION 
 _____MOTION 
 __X__INFORMATION     
                                 
                                                                    
I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 
 

Thelcrest Inc. owns the vacant 0.096 acre lot at 220 E. 11th St., and proposes a 6-unit, 100% deed-
restricted community housing development on the property. The property owner proposes that 
all of the units would be restricted to 120% Area Median Income (AMI). The proposed 
development is expected to meet the city’s zoning requirements, except for the maximum gross 
density limitation in the R-2 zoning district of 19 dwelling units per acre. (0.096 acres x 19 
dwelling units per acre = 1.8 units, rounded down to 1 unit). The property owner intends to 
present to the City Council at the 1/16/24 meeting to ask if the City Council would be supportive 
of the project, acknowledging the density issue. If the Council is supportive, the property requests 
a Special Work Session on 3/12/24 to discuss the project in more detail. Prior to the Special Work 
Session, staff would meet with the City Attorney to discuss entitlement options to address the 
density issue, likely either a Development Agreement or a variance. The proposed site plan will 
also need a minor adjustment to comply with the 3 ft. side yard setback requirement. 

 
II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 
The property owner, Victor Christian of Thelcrest Inc., received a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in 
2014 for a differently designed project on the same vacant site. The 2014 CUP approved a 4-unit 
multifamily building. The evaluation of the zoning criteria in the 2014 CUP staff report is copied 



2 
 

and pasted below.  
A. That the proposed conditional use conforms to the requirements and provisions of this 

zoning regulation; Staff Comment – The proposed use of the property does conform to the 
requirements of the zoning regulation and Colorado State Law.  Staff has reviewed the 
submittal materials from the applicant and is satisfied with the contents and their 
adherence to this chapter. 

 
The 2014 staff report did not mention any specific zoning code criteria, including density 
limitations, but stated that the proposed 4-unit building complied with the zoning code criteria, 
which was incorrect. The proposed 4-unit building exceeded the zoning code density limitations. 
That CUP’s expiration date was originally 2016, which was later extended by City Council to a 
2018 expiration. The project was never constructed, and the CUP expired. 
 
Since 2018, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2, Series 2023, which allows the use of 4-unit 
multi-family buildings as a by-right use. However, the use of 6-unit multi-family buildings on a 
single lot still requires a CUP, so the proposed use would need to be approved by Planning and 
Zoning Commission (P&Z) and City Council through a public hearing process. 
 

III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 

None. 
 
IV. LEGAL ISSUES: 
 

Staff recommends finding a path forward for this 100% restricted community housing project, but 
the density issue must be addressed. Staff is aware of two (2) possible options, discussed below. 

 
Option #1 - Development Agreement: Staff will be discussing the option of a Development 
Agreement with the City Attorney. A Development Agreement would be a contract between the 
City Council and the property owner, allowing the project to exceed the density limit, in exchange 
for the public benefit of a recorded restrictive covenant restricting the occupancy of the units to 
community housing. The Development Agreement would need to be approved via Ordinance and 
a public hearing process, prior to or concurrently with the required CUP. 
 
Option #2 - Variance: The property owner could apply to the Board of Adjustment for a variance 
(pursuant to Chapter 17.88 - Board of Adjustment) to exceed the density limit, but staff would 
suggest that a variance is not the best option and generally not best practice for repetition. Staff 
is not aware of any formal precedent for a density variance. The property owner would need to 
demonstrate that the property complies with Chapter 17.88 - Board of Adjustment, which would 
require the property owner to demonstrate that "practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships" 
are created by 1) the lot's size and 2) strict application of the density limitations. Staff does not 
find that there is anything unique about the property that creates a hardship.  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council be generally supportive of proposed affordable housing 



3 
 

development, but using the variance process to exceed the codified density limitations could set 
precedent for non-affordable residential development pursuing the same variance. The variance 
process is also not a legal way for the City Council to require the occupancy of the proposed units 
to be restricted to community housing in perpetuity as part of the variance. Inclusionary housing 
is not a zoning code requirement, so the city cannot legally condition the variance upon provision 
of 100% community housing, which could lack “essential nexus” and be could be considered a 
taking.  
 
A variance would need to be processed through a public hearing process, but could be processed 
concurrently with a CUP. 

 
 
VI. ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Letter from Thelcrest Inc. to City Council requesting relief from maximum gross density 

• Survey of vacant property proposed for development 

• Architectural renderings of proposed development 

• Draft Development Agreement 

• Draft Restrictive Covenant 

 

 



540 Fair Oaks Drive
Columbus, Georgia 31906
January 9, 2024

Leadville City Council
800 Harrison Avenue
Leadville, Colorado 80461

Dear Sirs and Madams:

We are Thelchrest, Incorporated, a 501(c)(3) organization with a mission to build and promote
affordable housing for individuals, families, and communities in need. To assist us in our mission, we
have received a Small-Scale Housing Technical Assistance Program grant from the Colorado Housing
and Finance Authority (CHFA). This grant helps catalyze affordable housing development by providing
affordable housing consultation and pre-development assistance.

Thelchrest seeks to build a 6-unit multifamily complex on the lot located at 220 East 11th Street.

Thelchrest respectfully requests relief from the maximum gross density prescribed in Section 17.20.010
of the Leadville Municipal Code in exchange for creating all of the units as deed-restricted affordable
rental housing in perpetuity as part of a development agreement with the City of Leadville.

Thank you and we look forward to your consideration.

Victor Marquette Christian, Secretary
Thelchrest, Incorporated

Attachments:
Exhibit A: Improvement Location Certificate
Exhibit B: Proposed Project Architectural Drawings
Exhibit C: Deed Restriction Development Agreement - DRAFT PROPOSAL



Exhibit A: Improvement Location Certificate



Exhibit B: Proposed Project Architectural Drawings

LOT LAYOUT



SOUTH ELEVATION



SOUTHWEST ELEVATION



EAST ELEVATION



NORTH ELEVATION



SOUTHEAST ELEVATION



WEST ELEVATION



SOUTHWEST TO NORTHEAST AERIAL VIEW



EXPLODED VIEW



Exhibit C: Deed Restriction Development Agreement - DRAFT PROPOSAL

– DRAFT PROPOSAL –

DEED RESTRICTION DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This DEED RESTRICTION (this “Deed Restriction”) is granted as of ___________________,
20___ by Thelchrest, Incorporated having a mailing address of 540 Fair Oaks Drive, Columbus, Georgia
31906 (“Grantor”), for the benefit of The City of Leadville having a mailing address of 800 Harrison
Ave Leadville CO 80461 (the “Municipality”), as such the Deed Restriction may be amended from time
to time.

WITNESSETH:

A. Grantor holds legal title to that certain real property with legal description:

A PORTION OF THE SURFACE OF THE SIZER PLACER, U.S. SURVEY NO. 388,
CITY OF LEADVILLE, COUNTY OF LAKE AND STATE OF COLORADO, MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE
NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 220, COOPER'S SUBDIVISION OF A
PORTION OF THE SIZER PLACER, THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE N 7418' E 40 FEET ALONG THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF A 16
FOOT ALLEY; THENCE S 15'42' E 105 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF
WAY LINE OF EAST 11TH STREET, THENCE S 7418' W 40 FEET TO THE
SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 220; THENCE N 15'42' W 105 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; GENERALLY KNOWN AND DESCRIBED AS 220
AND 222 EAST 11TH STREET, LEADVILLE, COLORADO AND KNOWN BY THE
ACCOUNT NUMBER R005274 AND THE SCHEDULE NUMBER 20000238 AND
THE PARCEL NUMBER 2633-242-06-024 IN THE TAX ASSESSOR’S RECORDS OF
LAKE COUNTY, COLORADO (the “Property”),

and intends to construct a 6-unit rental housing development, consisting of two residential buildings,
at the Property.

B. The Property is part of a project known as Ptarmigan Flats (the “Development”). The Property
was developed with a municipal government subsidy (as defined in R.I.G.L. Chapter 45-53-2.23) used to
ensure the development of affordable, accessible, safe and sanitary housing (the “Program”) in
accordance with the terms of the Rhode Island Low and Moderate Income Housing Act, R.I.G.L.
Chapter 45-53-1 et seq. and the regulations promulgated thereunder (collectively, the “Act”), and is
subject to the terms and conditions imposed by the Municipality.



C. As a condition imposed by the Municipality, the Grantor has agreed that this Deed Restriction be
imposed upon the Property as a covenant running with the land and binding upon any successors to the
Grantor, as owner thereof.

D. [MONITORING AGENT NAME] (the “Monitoring Agent”) has been retained to monitor
compliance with and to enforce the terms of this Deed Restriction in accordance with a monitoring
services agreement.

E. The rights and restrictions granted herein to the Monitoring Agent and the Municipality serve the
public’s interest in the creation and retention of affordable housing for persons and households of low
and moderate income and in the restricting of the resale price of property in order to assure its
affordability by future low and moderate income purchasers.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the Grantor hereby agrees that the Property shall be subject to the following
rights and restrictions:

1. Recitals Incorporated by Reference. The foregoing recitals are incorporated by reference herein and
made a part hereof.

2. Affordability and Occupancy Requirement.

(a) This Deed Restriction shall remain in effect from the date this Deed Restriction is recorded in
the land evidence records of the Municipality and continuing in perpetuity (the “Affordability
Period”) unless earlier terminated in accordance with Section 3 or Section 5 hereof (the “Termination
Date”). On and after the Termination Date, this Deed Restriction shall be of no further force or
effect.

(b) During the Affordability Period, the rents charged by the Grantor for each rental unit shall
remain affordable and shall be rented to an individual or household whose gross annual household
income does not exceed [one hundred and twenty percent (120%)] of area median income (adjusted
for household size) in the County of Lake, City of Leadville, State of Colorado Statistical Area as
established from time to time by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”).

(c) During the Affordability Period, the Property, or any portion thereof, shall be available for
purchase at the Maximum Resale Price only to an individual or household whose gross annual
household income does not exceed [one hundred and twenty percent (120%)] of area median income
(adjusted for household size) in the County of Lake, City of Leadville, State of Colorado Statistical
Area as established from time to time by HUD (an “Eligible Purchaser”). For purposes of this Deed
Restriction, the “Maximum Resale Price” is determined to be the monthly housing costs (including
principal, interest, taxes, insurance, and condominium fees, if any) that does not exceed thirty
percent (30%) of the gross income of an individual or household earning [one hundred and twenty
percent (120%)] of area median income (adjusted for household size).



(d) To be considered an Eligible Purchaser, the individual or household must intend to occupy
and thereafter must occupy the Property as his, her or their principal residence and must provide to
the Monitoring Agent such certifications as to income, assets and residency as the Monitoring Agent
may require to determine eligibility as an Eligible Purchaser. Any use of the Property or any activity
thereon which is inconsistent with the purpose of this Deed Restriction is expressly prohibited.

(e) Except as provided in Section 3(a) hereof, the Property shall remain affordable during the
Affordability Period without regard to the term of any mortgage on the Property or to any transfer of
ownership thereof.

(f) This Deed Restriction’s compliance with the affordability requirements shall be monitored
and enforced by the Monitoring Agent.

3. Rights of Mortgagees.

(a) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, but subject to Section 3(b) hereof, if the
holder of any mortgage on the Property (each, a “Mortgagee”) shall acquire the Property by reason
of foreclosure or similar remedial action under the provisions of such mortgage or upon conveyance
of the Property in lieu of foreclosure, provided, that such Mortgagee has given the Monitoring Agent
not less than sixty (60) days prior written notice of its intention to foreclose upon its mortgage or to
accept a conveyance of the Property in lieu of foreclosure, and the Monitoring Agent does not
exercise its right of first refusal to purchase the Property as provided in Sections 3(b) and (c) hereof,
and provided, further that the principal amount secured by such mortgage does not exceed one
hundred percent (100%) of the Maximum Resale Price calculated at the time of the granting of the
mortgage (the “Permitted Indebtedness”), then the rights and restrictions contained herein shall
terminate and not apply to such Mortgagee upon acquisition of the Property, or to any purchaser of
the Property at a foreclosure sale conducted by such Mortgagee, or any purchaser of the Property
from such Mortgagee, and the Property shall then be free from all such rights and restrictions. A
Mortgagee of Permitted Indebtedness is referred to herein as a “Permitted Mortgagee.”

(b) A Permitted Mortgagee shall notify the Monitoring Agent in the event of any default for
which the Permitted Mortgagee intends to commence foreclosure proceedings, which notice shall be
sent to the Monitoring Agent as set forth in this Deed Restriction (the “Foreclosure Notice”). Failure
to notify the Monitoring Agent pursuant to the previous sentence shall not impair the validity of the
foreclosure.

(c) Grantor grants to the Monitoring Agent or designee the right and option to purchase the
Property upon receipt of the Foreclosure Notice. In the event the Monitoring Agent intends to
exercise its option to purchase, the Monitoring Agent shall purchase the Property at a price equal to
the greater of the Maximum Resale Price or the Mortgage Satisfaction Amount (as defined below)
within sixty (60) days of receipt of the Foreclosure Notice. Any excess received by the Permitted
Mortgagee over the greater of the Maximum Resale Price or the Mortgage Satisfaction Amount shall
be paid to Grantor (provided, that in the event that such excess shall be paid to Grantor, Grantor shall
thereafter indemnify such Permitted Mortgagee against loss or damage to such Permitted Mortgagee



resulting from any claim made by any other party to the extent that such claim is based upon
payment of such excess by such Permitted Mortgagee to Grantor in accordance herewith; provided,
that such Permitted Mortgagee shall give Grantor prompt notice of any such claim and shall not
object to intervention by Grantor in any proceeding relating thereto).

(d) For purposes of this Section 3, “Mortgage Satisfaction Amount” shall mean the sum of the
outstanding principal balance of the note evidencing the Permitted Indebtedness and secured by the
mortgage securing such note, plus accrued interest and all reasonable costs and expenses which the
Permitted Mortgagee is entitled to recover pursuant to the terms of such mortgage.

4. Restrictions Against Leasing, Refinancing and Junior Encumbrances. The Property shall not be
leased, rented, refinanced, encumbered (voluntarily or otherwise) or mortgaged without the prior
written consent of the Monitoring Agent; provided that this provision shall not apply to a first
mortgage granted in connection with the conveyance of the Property.

5. Purchase and Resale Options.

(a) If Grantor or any successor in title to Grantor shall desire to sell, dispose of or otherwise
convey the Property, or any portion thereof, Grantor shall notify the Monitoring Agent in writing of
Grantor’s intention to convey the Property (the “Conveyance Notice”). Upon receipt of the
Conveyance Notice, the Monitoring Agent shall (i) calculate the Maximum Resale Price, which
Grantor may receive on the sale of the Property and (ii) promptly begin marketing efforts. Pursuant
to a purchase and sale agreement, sale to an Eligible Purchaser or the Monitoring Agent at the
Maximum Resale Price shall occur within ninety (90) days after the Monitoring Agent receives the
Conveyance Notice, or such further time as reasonably requested to arrange for details of closing. If
Grantor fails to cooperate in such resale efforts, including a failure to agree to reasonable terms in a
purchase and sale agreement, the Monitoring Agent may extend the 90-day period for a period
commensurate with the time the lack of cooperation continues, as determined by the Monitoring
Agent in its reasonable discretion. In such an event, the Monitoring Agent shall give Grantor written
notice of the lack of cooperation and the length of the extension added to the 90-day period.

(b) Grantor shall ensure that diligent marketing efforts are made to locate an Eligible Purchaser
ready, willing, and able to purchase the Property, or any portion thereof, at the Maximum Resale
Price within the time provided for in Section 5(a) above and to enter into the requisite purchase and
sale agreement.

(c) In lieu of sale to an Eligible Purchaser, the Monitoring Agent or designee shall also have the
right to purchase the Property at the Maximum Resale Price within the time and conditions provided
for in Section 5(a) above, and to enter into the requisite purchase and sale agreement. In the event of
such a sale to the Monitoring Agent or designee, the Property shall remain subject to this Deed
Restriction.

(d) Grantor understands and acknowledges that this Deed Restriction is not a promise or
guarantee by the Monitoring Agent that Grantor shall receive the Maximum Resale Price for the
Property or any other price for the Property.



(e) If an Eligible Purchaser is selected to purchase the Property, or if the Monitoring Agent elects
to purchase the Property, the Property shall be conveyed by Grantor to such Eligible Purchaser or to
the Monitoring Agent, by a good and sufficient warranty deed conveying a good and clear record and
marketable title to the Property free from all encumbrances except (i) such taxes for the then current
year as are not due and payable on the date of delivery of the deed, (ii) any lien for municipal
betterments assessed after the date of the Conveyance Notice, (iii) provisions of local building and
zoning laws, (iv) all easements, restrictions, covenants and agreements of record, and (v), except as
otherwise provided in a certificate of compliance, a Deed Restriction identical in form and substance
to this Deed Restriction.

6. Resale and Transfer Restrictions.

(a) Except as otherwise provided herein, the Property or any interest therein shall not at any time
be sold by Grantor, Grantor’s successors and assigns, and no attempted sale shall be valid, unless (i)
the aggregate value of all consideration and payments of every kind given or paid by the Eligible
Purchaser or the Monitoring Agent as the case may be, to the then owner of the Property for and in
connection with the transfer of such Property, is equal to or less than the Maximum Resale Price for
the Property, and (ii) a Certificate of Compliance (the “Certificate”) is obtained and recorded, signed
and acknowledged by the Monitoring Agent, which Certificate refers to the Property, Grantor, the
Eligible Purchaser, and the Maximum Resale Price, and states that the proposed conveyance, sale or
transfer of the Property to the Eligible Purchaser is in compliance with this Deed Restriction, and
(iii) a new deed restriction is recorded and executed by the Eligible Purchaser, which new deed
restriction is identical in form and substance as this Deed Restriction.

(b) Grantor, any good faith purchaser of the Property, any lender or other party taking a security
interest in such Property and any other third party may rely upon a Certificate as conclusive evidence
that the proposed conveyance, sale or transfer of the Property to the Eligible Purchaser is in
compliance with this Deed Restriction, and may record such Certificate in connection with
conveyance of the Property; provided, that the consideration recited in the deed or other instrument
conveying the Property upon such resale shall not be greater than the consideration stated in and
authorized by the Certificate.

(c) Within ten (10) days of the closing of the conveyance of the Property, Grantor or Grantor’s
successors or assigns shall deliver to the Monitoring Agent a copy of the deed to the Property with
the recording information affixed. Failure of Grantor or Grantor’s successors or assigns to comply
with the preceding sentence shall not affect the validity of such conveyance or the enforceability of
the restrictions herein.

7. Enforcement.

(a) The rights hereby granted shall include the right of the Monitoring Agent to enforce this
Deed Restriction independently by appropriate legal proceedings and to obtain injunctive and other
appropriate relief against any violations including without limitation relief requiring restoration of



the Property to its condition prior to any such violation (it being agreed that there shall be no
adequate remedy at law for such violation), and shall be in addition to, and not in limitation of, any
other rights and remedies available to the Monitoring Agent. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Monitoring Agent may not enforce this Deed Restriction by: (i) voiding a conveyance by Grantor;
(ii) terminating Grantor’s interest in the Property; (iii) accelerating Grantor’s mortgage; (iv)
increasing the interest rate of Grantor’s mortgage or (v) subjecting Grantor to contractual liability
such as damages, specific performance or injunctive relief.

(b) Without limitation of any other rights or remedies of the Monitoring Agent or it’s successors
and assigns, in the event of any sale, conveyance or other transfer or occupancy of the Property in
violation of the provisions of this Deed Restriction, the Monitoring Agent shall be entitled to the
following remedies, which shall be cumulative and not mutually exclusive:

i. reimbursement for all sums received by Grantor in excess of the Maximum Resale Price, if
applicable; and

ii. if the violation is a sale or an attempted sale of the Property at a price greater than the
Maximum Resale Price as provided herein, the Monitoring Agent shall have the option to
locate an Eligible Purchaser to purchase or itself purchase the Property on the terms and
conditions provided herein; the purchase price shall be a price which complies with the
provisions of this Deed Restriction.

(c) In addition to the foregoing, in the event of a violation of the provisions of this Deed
Restriction, the Monitoring Agent may take appropriate enforcement action against Grantor or
Grantor’s successors in title or assigns, including, without limitation, legal action to compel Grantor
to comply with the requirements of this Deed Restriction, unless otherwise prohibited by this Deed
Restriction.

(d) Grantor for itself and Grantor’s successors and assigns, hereby grants to the Monitoring
Agent the right to enter upon the Property for the purpose of enforcing the restrictions herein
contained, or of taking all actions with respect to the Property, which the Monitoring Agent may
determine to be necessary or appropriate pursuant to court order, or with the consent of Grantor to
prevent, remedy or abate any violation of this Deed Restriction.

8. Covenants to Run With the Property.

(a) A copy of this Deed Restriction, as recorded, shall be provided to the Monitoring Agent and
the appropriate official of the Municipality.

(b) This Deed Restriction shall be deemed to be a low or moderate income housing deed
restriction as that term is defined in Chapter 53 of Title 45 of the Rhode Island General Laws, and is
enforceable as such.

(c) Grantor acknowledges, declares and covenants on behalf of Grantor and Grantor’s successors
and assigns (i) that this Deed Restriction shall be and are covenants running with the land,
encumbering the Property for the Affordability Period, and are binding upon Grantor's successors in



title and assigns, (ii) are not merely personal covenants of Grantor, and (iii) shall bind Grantor, and
Grantor’s successors and assigns, and inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Monitoring
Agent, the Municipality and its successors and assigns, for the Affordability Period.

9. Miscellaneous Provisions.

(a) Amendments. This Deed Restriction may not be rescinded, modified or amended, in whole
or in part, without the written consent of the current owner of the Property, the Monitoring Agent
and the Municipality.

(b) Notice. Any notices, demands or requests that may be given under this Deed Restriction
shall be sufficiently served if given in writing and delivered by hand or mailed by certified or
registered mail, return receipt requested, or via reputable overnight courier, in each case postage
prepaid and addressed to the parties at their respective addresses set forth below, or such other
addresses as may be specified by any party (or its successor) by such notice. All such notices,
demands or requests shall be deemed to have been given on the day it is hand delivered or mailed:

Grantor:

[THELCHREST, INCORPORATED]
[540 FAIR OAKS DRIVE]
[COLUMBUS, GEORGIA, 31906]
Attn: VICTOR M. CHRISTIAN, SECRETARY

Monitoring Agent:

[Name of Monitoring Agent]
[Address]
[City, State, Zip Code]
Attn:

Municipality:

[Name of Municipality]
[Address]
[City, State, Zip Code]
Attn:

(c) Further Assurances. Grantor agrees from time to time, as may be reasonably required by the
Monitoring Agent, to furnish the Monitoring Agent, upon its request, with a written statement, signed
and, if requested, acknowledged, setting forth the condition and occupancy of the Property, information
concerning the resale of the Property and all other material information pertaining to the Property or
Grantor’s conformance with the terms of this Deed Restriction.



(d) Monitoring Agent Services. The Monitoring Agent shall monitor compliance of the Property,
and enforce the ongoing requirements of this Deed Restriction, including the requirement that the
Property be sold and resold to an Eligible Purchaser (or to the Monitoring Agent) in accordance with the
terms of this Deed Restriction.

(e) Severability. If any provisions hereof or the application thereof to any person or circumstance
shall come, to any extent, to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder hereof, or the application of such
provision to the persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable,
shall not be affected thereby, and each provision hereof shall be valid and enforced to the fullest extent
permitted by law.

(f) Waiver by Monitoring Agent: No waiver by the Monitoring Agent of any breach of this Deed
Restriction shall be deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach.

(g) Third Party Beneficiary. The Monitoring Agent and the Municipality shall be entitled to enforce
this Deed Restriction and may rely upon the benefits hereof.

(h) Gender; Captions. The use of the plural in this Deed Restriction shall include the singular, the
singular, the plural and the use of any gender shall be deemed to include all genders. The captions used
in this Deed Restriction are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference and in no way
define, limit or describe the scope of the intent of this Deed Restriction.

(i) Binding Successors. This Deed Restriction shall bind, and the benefits shall inure to, the
respective parties hereto, their legal representatives, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns;
provided, that Grantor may not assign this Deed Restriction or any of its obligations hereunder without
the prior written approval of the Monitoring Agent and the Municipality pursuant to the terms of this
Deed Restriction.

(j) Governing Law. This Deed Restriction is being executed and delivered in the State of Colorado
and shall in all respects be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of said State
without giving effect to any conflict of law provision or rule.

(k) Independent Counsel. GRANTOR ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE, SHE, OR THEY HAVE
READ THIS DOCUMENT IN ITS ENTIRETY AND HAS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO
CONSULT LEGAL AND FINANCIAL ADVISORS OF HIS, HER OR THEIR CHOOSING
REGARDING THE EXECUTION, DELIVERY AND PERFORMANCE OF THE OBLIGATIONS
HEREUNDER.

(l) Counterparts. This Deed Restriction may be executed in several counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original copy of all of which together shall constitute one agreement binding on
all parties hereto, notwithstanding that all parties shall not have signed the same counterpart.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto each caused this Deed Restriction to be duly
executed and delivered by themselves or their respective duly authorized representatives as of the day
and year set forth above.

GRANTOR(S)

[NAME OF GRANTOR – IF CORPORATION]: Thelchrest, Incorporated

By:

Name: Victor Marquette Christian

Title: Secretary

State of Colorado

County of ____________________

Signed and sworn to [or affirmed] before me on _______________________, 20____

by __________________________________ (name(s) of individual(s) making statement).

____________________________________

(Notary’s official signature)

____________________________________

(Title of office)

____________________________________

(Commission Expiration)



The terms of this Deed Restriction are acknowledged by:

MUNICIPALITY

[NAME OF MUNICIPALITY]:

By: _______________________________

Name: ____________________________

Title: _____________________________

State of Colorado

County of ____________________

Signed and sworn to [or affirmed] before me on _______________________, 20____

by __________________________________ (name(s) of individual(s) making statement).

____________________________________

(Notary’s official signature)

____________________________________

(Title of office)

____________________________________

(Commission Expiration)



AGENDA ITEM #9A

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2024

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 6, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Leadville, Colorado, Filling the City Council Member Representing Ward 2 Vacancy
by Appointment

PRESENTED BY: Laurie Simonson, City Administrator

ORDINANCE
X RESOLUTION

MOTION

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Before the City Council is Resolution No. 6, Series of 2024 (the “Resolution”), which appoints a
candidate to fill the vacant City Council seat for Ward 2b.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The seat representing Ward 2b (the “second ward”) on the City Council was up for
re-election in November 2023. There were no candidates in that election for Ward 2b. In
accordance with §1.16.030 of the Leadville Municipal Code and Colorado Revised Statutes §§
31-4-106 and 31-4-108(2)(b), the City Council must either appoint a person to fill the vacancy
within sixty (60) days of the vacancy or schedule a special election.

Making an appointment to fill the vacancy saves the time and expense of conducting a special
election. The city advertised the vacancy to seek a qualified candidate to fill the vacancy in Ward
2b. The city received letters of interest from two candidates – Ms. Shannon Grant and Mr.
Timothy Best.

At the City Council meeting on January 9, 2024, by way of Resolution No. 1, 2024, the City Council
declared the seat for Ward 2b vacant and considered the two candidates for this seat. The City
Council held two votes for this appointment and each time the vote was tied (three votes for each
candidate). The City Council requested that the candidates provide the City Administrator with
letters of support to further evaluate their candidacy and directed staff to bring this appointment
back before the council at the next meeting.

1



The person appointed will serve until the next regular election in November 2025.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS:

N/A

IV. LEGAL ISSUES:

When a vacancy in a city council seat occurs, Council must adopt a resolution declaring the
vacancy. The adoption of that resolution starts a 60-day clock. The City has 60 days (per C.R.S.
31-4-106 and 31-4-108(2)(b)) from the adoption of the resolution, or the date of vacancy declared
in the resolution if different from the resolution adoption date, to either appoint a person to fill
the vacancy or call a special election to fill the vacancy. If the City does not appoint someone to
fill the vacancy in 60 days, then the City will need to call a special election. Here, City Council is
presented with Resolution No. 1, Series of 2024 declaring a vacancy and determining to appoint a
person to Council to fill the vacancy.

Per C.R.S. 31-4-106, any person appointed (or elected) to City Council must meet certain statutory
requirements in order to hold that office. The person must be a resident of the ward to which they
are elected or appointed for at least twelve (12) consecutive months prior to their election or
appointment, and they must be a registered elector in their ward.

V. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that City Council approve Resolution No. 6, Series of 2024 and appoint one of
the two candidates to fill the Council vacancy.

VI. COUNCIL OPTIONS:

Council may take one of the following actions:

1. Adopt the Resolution.

2. Adopt the Resolution with amendments.
3. Table the Resolution for further discussion and consideration.

VII. PROPOSED MOTION:

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 6, Series of 2024, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Leadville, Colorado, Filling the City Council Member Representing Ward 2 Vacancy by
Appointment and appoint ___________________ to fill the vacancy on City Council.”

ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution No. 6, Series of 2024

Letters of support

2



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO
RESOLUTION NO. 6

SERIES 2024

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEADVILLE,
COLORADO, FILLING THE CITY COUNCIL MEMBER REPRESENTINGWARD 2

VACANCY BY APPOINTMENT

WHEREAS, § 2.04.010 of the Leadville Municipal Code (the “Code”) states that the
City Council shall consist of the mayor and six city council members elected from the three
wards of the city;

WHEREAS, the seat representing Ward 2b (the “second ward”) on the City Council was
up for re-election in November 2023;

WHEREAS, there were no candidates in that election for Ward 2b;

WHEREAS, in accordance with § 1.16.030 of the Code and Colorado Revised Statutes
(“C.R.S.”) §§ 31-4-106 and 31-4-108(2)(b), the City Council must either appoint a person to fill
the vacancy within sixty (60) days of the vacancy or schedule a special election;

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appoint a person to fill the vacancy in order to
save the time and expense of conducting a special election;

WHEREAS, the city has advertised the vacancy to seek a qualified candidate to fill the
vacancy in Ward 2b;

WHEREAS, City Council desires to make an appointment from the pool of qualified
candidates.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Leadville, Colorado as follows:

Section 1. The City Council appoints ___________________________ to serve on
the City Council whose term shall commence on taking the oath of office and continue until the
term of office of a successor elected at the next regular election on November 7, 2025 has
commenced as provided in C.R.S. §§ 31-4-106 and 31-4-108(2)(b).

This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption by the City Council.

ADOPTED this 16th day of January 2024, by a vote of ___ in favor and
___ against, ___ abstaining, and ___ absent.

1



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO

By: ________________________________
Dana Greene, Mayor

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Hannah Scheer, City Clerk

2





Kristen King

Leadville, CO 80461

January 12, 2024
 
Dear Mayor Greene and City Council:
 
As a resident of Ward 2, I am writing to offer my support for Timothy Best as my ward’s representative on City
Council.
 
I first met Tim in the context of his work with Lake County School District when my family and I moved here in
2017. My twins started kindergarten that fall and were absolutely enamored of Mr. Best from the Project
Dream after-school enrichment program. In the years since, Tim has been a huge part of their lives and the
lives of their friends and classmates both in LCSD and through Rockies Rock summer programming.
 
Through these interactions, I quickly came to know Tim as a fair, even-handed, and reasonable leader who
consistently puts the needs of the community above all else. His ability to manage multiple priorities,
navigate conflicting perspectives, and ensure dignity for all parties has been impressive to say the least. He is
also a great communicator and, frankly, funny as hell — both essential attributes for defusing and redirecting
challenging conversations and driving positive action.
 
With a combination of seemingly infinite patience and deep integrity, Tim has proven his skill at developing
trust and building consensus when others have struggled and even given up. His innate ability to create
strong, collaborative relationships and his passion for finding common ground are exactly the skills we need in
community leaders — particularly in a community that is working to address issues that are so often very
emotionally charged.
 
I am particularly concerned with our city’s future as relates to ensuring housing security and stability for
full-time residents, improving community sustainability, and building resiliency and resources for youth and
families. As a former board member of the Lake County Community Fund, I know how critical these priorities
are to keeping Leadville out of the boom-and-bust cycle that has so long plagued this community and which
affects all of us.
 
As a former public health consultant who spent more than a decade working in behavioral health, trauma,
housing/homelessness, criminal justice, and services for vulnerable populations, I also know that these
priorities are essential to human thriving, including breaking intergenerational cycles of economic distress,
instability, and trauma. If nothing else, these challenges are incredibly costly from a financial perspective —
but even more so in terms of human cost. Leadville has paid far too much for far too long.
 
For our city to continue to grow and support its residents in the long term, we need leaders who will advocate
tirelessly for the needs of the people who live here. I believe Tim is one of those leaders, and I am eager to
see him step into the role of City Council representative to further these issues. I endorse him fully and
without hesitation or reservation.
 
Should you have any questions or wish to discuss further, I invite you to contact me via email reply or at

. I wish you the best of luck in your decision.
 
Sincerely, 
Kristen King



Greg Labbe
, Leadville, CO 80461, ,

January 11, 2024

Dear Mayor Greene and City Council,

You are met with the challenge of choosing a City Council member to join
you as a representative of Ward 2. As it turns out, that choice is made more
difficult since you have two good candidates.

Having considered the two quality individuals, and though Shannon Grant
has been a good City Council member, I feel that Timothy Best may be the
better choice to represent Ward 2. His strong relationship with the children
and families of Leadville, formed over years of service to our community as
the director of Rockies Rock and working with Get Outdoors Leadville!, and
his strong connection to the demographics in our community who are more
likely to be housing insecure, he seems closer to the citizens he wishes to
represent. I have long admired his good nature and love of working with the
kids and bringing joy to their summer activities.

I am pleased that we continue to attract the interest of quality individuals to
serve our City.

Thank you for your considerate service, and good luck.

Greg Labbe







 

       

               
              

      

                 
           

             
            

              
              

           
          

          
             

            
            
             

             
            
             

       

           
                

      

 





  
 

 

       

               
 
               

           
            

               
              

             
              
 
               

               
             

   
     



 

 

  

  

     

                    
    

                    

                   

                 

                   
                

               
            

                   
                

                 

               

                

            

                   
       



 

 

  

  

 

                

                     

                 

                 

              
                

 

 





       

               
              

          
           

         

            
              

           

    

 







       

               
           

               

  

             
           

             
               

           

   

     

 





12 January 2024 

RE: Appointment of Shannon Grant to Leadville City Council Seat Ward 2b 
 
 
Mayor Greene and City Council, 
 
I am writing as a private citizen on behalf of Shannon Grant in favor of her appointment to city 
council seat Ward 2b. Over the last year I have observed Ms. Grant as a representative for the 
City of Leadville and can attest to her dedication to the people who make up this community. 
 
While I don’t always share the same point of view as Ms. Grant, that is precisely why I would 
like to see her continue to be a voice for Leadville. Too often when we surround ourselves with 
what we see as like-minded people we neglect to challenge our own ideas and to think critically, 
and this is exactly what I believe Ms. Grant brings to the table. I’ve watched her intently listen to 
issues big and small, take in the information presented and apply serious thought before 
responding with her opinion which she is not afraid to make known, even if she is the only one 
standing in that corner. 
 
These qualities are obvious to me and as a member of this community I appreciate the ideas and 
perspectives she contributes. Above all, I think what I appreciate most about Ms. Grant is her 
character as an individual. And so, I ask that you appoint Shannon Grant to city council seat 
Ward 2b for the term beginning in January 2024. 
 
Thank you for your time, 

 

 
Hannah Scheer 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM #9B
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2024

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 7, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City
of Leadville, Colorado Appointing a Mayor Pro Tem

PRESENTED BY: Laurie Simonson, City Administrator

_____ORDINANCE
__X__RESOLUTION
_____MOTION
_____INFORMATION

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Before the City Council is Resolution No. 7, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City Council of the
City of Leadville, Colorado Appointing a Mayor Pro Tem.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Pursuant to Leadville Municipal Code (the “Code”), Section 2.08.040, the City Council may
appoint one of its own number as mayor pro tem, who shall be entitled to act as Mayor in case
the mayor is absent from the City, or is for any reason temporarily unable to perform the duties of
office. At the November 7, 2023, regular election, a new Mayor and new members of City Council
were elected.

On January 9, 2024, the new members were sworn in and the city’s current mayor pro tem was
sworn in as the Mayor. Now the new City Council wishes to appoint a new mayor pro tem.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS:

1



There are no fiscal impacts of this Resolution.

IV. LEGAL ISSUES:

N/A.

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the council approve Resolution No. 7, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the
City Council of the City of Leadville, Colorado Appointing a Mayor Pro Tem.

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS:

1. Approve the Resolution.
2. Deny the Resolution.
3. Table consideration of the Resolution and provide direction to staff.

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:

“I move to approve Resolution No. 7, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City
of Leadville, Colorado Appointing a Mayor Pro Tem and appoint _____________________ as the
Mayor Pro Tem.”

IX. ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 7, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Leadville,
Colorado Appointing a Mayor Pro Tem

2



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO
RESOLUTION NO. 7
SERIES OF 2024

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEADVILLE,
COLORADO APPOINTING A MAYOR PRO TEM

WHEREAS, pursuant to Leadville Municipal Code (the “Code”), Section 2.08.040, the
City Council may appoint one of its own number as mayor pro tem, who shall be entitled to act
as Mayor in case the mayor is absent from the City, or is for any reason temporarily unable to
perform the duties of office;

WHEREAS, at the November 7, 2023, regular election, a new Mayor and new members
of City Council were elected;

WHEREAS, on January 9, 2024, the new members were sworn in and now the new City
Council wishes to appoint a new mayor pro tem.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Leadville, Colorado, as follows:

___________________________ is hereby appointed Mayor pro tem.

This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption.

ADOPTED this 16th day of January, 2024 by a vote of ___ in favor, ____ against,
____ abstaining, and ___ absent.

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO

_________________________________
Dana Greene, Mayor

ATTEST:

______________________________
Hannah Scheer, City Clerk

1/12/2024
C:\USERS\HMG\APPDATA\LOCAL\TEMP\SCRUB\0ED0P2DW\5VFMI0PI.DOCX



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO
RESOLUTION NO. 8

SERIES OF 2024

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES 
ON THE CITY’S BANK ACCOUNTS

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 31-15-302(a) and (b) of the Colorado Revised Statutes
(“C.R.S.”), the City Council of the City of Leadville (“City”) has the authority to control the finances
and property of the City and to appropriate money for municipal purposes and provide for payment of
debts and expenses of the municipality; and

WHEREAS, the City has opened various checking and investment accounts with Community
Banks of Colorado; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to authorize designated signatories on these accounts in
accordance with this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Leadville,
Colorado, as follows:

Section 1. That any of the following persons are authorized to endorse items of deposit or transfer
money from one City account to another City account and that two signatures shall be required for
withdrawals from any of the checking, savings, money market and certificate of deposit accounts:

Dana Greene, Mayor
OR

_________________, Mayor Pro-tem
AND

Laurie Simonson, City Administrator
OR

Hannah Scheer, City Clerk
OR

Lori Tye, Administrative Assistant

Section 2. That any of the following persons are authorized to endorse items of deposit to the City’s
Municipal Court account and that two signatures shall be required for withdrawals from the checking
account:

M. Christina Floyd, Judge
OR

John Scott, Alternate Judge
OR

Ron Carlson, Alternate Judge
AND

Hannah Scheer, Court Clerk
OR

Laurie Simonson, City Administrator



City of Leadville
Resolution No. 7

Series of 2024
Page 2 of 3

Section 3. That any of the following persons are authorized to endorse items of deposit to the City’s
Seizure account and that two signatures shall be required for withdrawals from the checking account:

Perla Flores, Police Administrative Supervisor
OR

Joanna Lopez, Police Administrative Assistant
AND

Hannah Scheer, Court Clerk
OR

Laurie Simonson, City Administrator

Section 4. That any of the following are authorized to access the City of Leadville Safe Deposit Box:

Dana Greene, Mayor
OR

_____________________, Mayor Pro-tem
AND

Laurie Simonson, City Administrator
OR

Hannah Scheer, City Clerk
OR

Lori Tye, Administrative Assistant

Section 5. Any and all Resolutions or parts in conflict or inconsistent with this Resolution are, to the
extent of such conflict or inconsistency, hereby repealed; provided however, that the repeal of any such
Resolution or part shall not revive any other section or part of any Resolution previously repealed or
superseded.

This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption.

ADOPTED this 16th day of January 2024 by a vote of in favor, against,
abstaining, and absent.

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO:

___________________________________
Dana Greene, Mayor



City of Leadville
Resolution No. 7

Series of 2024
Page 3 of 3

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Hannah Scheer
City Clerk



AGENDA ITEM #9D
CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM

MEETING DATE: January 16, 2024

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 9, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City of Leadville,
Colorado Authorizing the City of Leadville, Colorado to Join with Other Local
Governments as a Participant in the Colorado Local Government Liquid
Asset Trust to Pool Funds for Investment

PRESENTED BY: Laurie Simonson, City Administrator

_____ORDINANCE
__X__RESOLUTION
_____MOTION
_____INFORMATION

I. REQUEST OR ISSUE:

Before the City Council is Resolution No. 9, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City of Leadville,
Colorado Authorizing the City of Leadville, Colorado to Join with Other Local Governments as a
Participant in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust to Pool Funds for Investment.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Pursuant to Colorado Revised Statues (“C.R.S.”) Part 7, Article 24, it is lawful for any local
government to pool any moneys in its treasury that are not immediately required to be disbursed
with the same such moneys in the treasury of any other local government in order to take
advantage of short-term investments and maximize net interest earnings. The Colorado Local
Government Liquid Asset Trust (“Trust”) is a statutory trust formed under the laws of the state of
Colorado in accordance with the provisions of Parts 6 and 7, Article 24 and Articles 10.5 and 47 of

1



Title 11 of the C.R.S. regarding the investing, pooling for investment, and protection of public
funds.

The City of Leadville (“City”) was one of the original members of the Trust back in 1986. For some
reason in 2016, under then Finance Director Roy McGinnis, the City ceased its participation in the
Trust. Staff does not know the reason why the City terminated its participation in the Trust but
perhaps it was due to a lack of funds available for the City to invest at that time.

Currently, the City has approximately $900,000 deposited in a general investment account
(checking account) and approximately $3,200,000 in an operating account (also a checking
account) with Community Banks of Colorado. The general investment account earns an interest
rate of 0.25% and the operating account earns an interest rate of 0.05%.

In 2023, the City earned about $2,246 in interest on the general investment account and $1,463
in interest in 2023 on the operating account for a total interest earned in 2023 of $3,709. The
average interest rate for the Trust “Prime” investment was approximately 4.8% in 2023. Had the
City invested $1,000,000 in the Trust “Prime” investment in 2023, the City would have earned
approximately $49,880.75.

III. FISCAL IMPACTS:

The fiscal impact of this Resolution could be up to $50,000 in additional revenue to the City per
year depending on the amount invested and the interest rate at the time.

IV. LEGAL ISSUES:

N/A.

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the council approve Resolution No. 9, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the
City of Leadville, Colorado Authorizing the City of Leadville, Colorado to Join with Other Local
Governments as a Participant in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust to Pool Funds
for Investment.

VII. COUNCIL OPTIONS:

1. Approve the Resolution.
2. Deny the Resolution.
3. Table consideration of the Resolution and provide direction to staff.

VIII. PROPOSED MOTION:

“I move to approve Resolution No. 9, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City of Leadville,

2



Colorado Authorizing the City of Leadville, Colorado to Join with Other Local Governments as a
Participant in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust to Pool Funds for Investment.”

IX. ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 9, Series of 2024 - A Resolution of the City of Leadville, Colorado Authorizing
the City of Leadville, Colorado to Join with Other Local Governments as a Participant in the
Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust to Pool Funds for Investment

2. Colorado Trust Amended and Restated Indenture of Trust
3. Colorado Trust Registration Form
4. Colorado Trust Prime Information Statement
5. Colorado Trust Prime Investment Policy
6. Colorado Trust Brochure
7. Colorado Trust Highlights
8. Colorado Trust December Rate Sheet

3



CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO
RESOLUTION NO. 9
SERIES OF 2024

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO AUTHORIZING THE CITY
TO JOIN WITH OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AS A PARTICIPANT IN THE

COLORADO LOCAL GOVERNMENT LIQUID ASSET TRUST
TO POOL FUNDS FOR INVESTMENT

WHEREAS, pursuant to Colorado Revised Statues (“C.R.S.”) Part 7, Article 24, it is lawful for
any local government to pool any moneys in its treasury that are not immediately required to be
disbursed with the same such moneys in the treasury of any other local government in order to take
advantage of short-term investments and maximize net interest earnings; and

WHEREAS, the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (“Trust”) is a statutory trust
formed under the laws of the state of Colorado in accordance with the provisions of Parts 6 and 7,
Article 24 and Articles 10.5 and 47 of Title 11 of the C.R.S. regarding the investing, pooling for
investment, and protection of public funds; and

WHEREAS, the City of Leadville desires to become a Participant in the Trust.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Leadville,
Colorado, as follows:

The City Council hereby:

1) approves, adopts, and thereby joins as a Participant with other local governments pursuant to
Part 7, Article 75, Title 24 of the C.R.S. that certain Amended and Restated Indenture of Trust entitled
the Colorado Liquid Government Asset Trust dated May 1, 2021 as amended from time to time, the
terms of which are incorporated by this reference and a copy of which shall be filed with the minutes of
the meeting at which this Resolution was adopted; and

2) designates as Designee and Authorized Signatories those persons listed on the Trust
Registration Form attached to this Resolution and incorporated by this reference. The Authorized
Signatories are authorized by the Participant to direct the investment of such Participants’ investment
funds; and

3) authorizes the Designee and Authorized Signatories to be changed from time to time by
written notice to the Trust.

This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption.

ADOPTED this 16th day of January 2024 by a vote of in favor, against,
abstaining, and absent.



City of Leadville
Resolution No. 8

Series of 2024
Page 2 of 2

CITY OF LEADVILLE, COLORADO:

___________________________________
Dana Greene, Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Hannah Scheer
City Clerk











 

 

   

PRIME Information 

Statement 

 October 2021 



 
  

 

 

2 

 

Table of Contents 

PRIME Introduction ............................................................................................................................................... 4 

Participants ........................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Investment Objectives ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

Income Allocations ................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Determination of Net Asset Value ......................................................................................................................... 6 

Description of Shares ............................................................................................................................................. 6 

Eligible Investments ............................................................................................................................................... 7 

Investment Restrictions ......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Computation of Yield ............................................................................................................................................. 8 

Investment Risks .................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Suitability .............................................................................................................................................................. 8 

Fees and Expenses ................................................................................................................................................. 9 

Withdrawals .......................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Investing in PRIME ................................................................................................................................................. 9 

Reporting ............................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Statements .......................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Board of Trustees ................................................................................................................................................ 10 

The Investment Advisor and Administrator ......................................................................................................... 10 

Custodian ............................................................................................................................................................ 11 

Legal Counsel ....................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Independent Accountants.................................................................................................................................... 11 

 



 
  

 

 

3 

PRIME Introduction 

The Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST or the Trust) was organized 

in 1985 in accordance with the Investment Funds - Local Government Pooling Act, (Part 7, 

Article 75, Title 24, C.R.S.) to allow Colorado governmental entities to pool their funds to take 

advantage of short-term investments and maximize net interest earnings. The Trust is a 

professionally managed local government investment pool trust fund available only to 

governmental entities in Colorado. 

COLOTRUST PRIME (PRIME) is one of three portfolios the Trust offers to Colorado 

governmental entities that are or become COLOTRUST Participants. As further described 

herein, PRIME was established by the Trust  in accordance with Investment Funds - Local 

Government Pooling Act, (Part 7, Article 75, Title 24, C.R.S.) PRIME is a professionally 

managed portfolio consisting of  U.S. Treasury securities, certain federal agency or 

instrumentality securities, repurchase agreements collateralized by such securities, 

collateralized bank deposits, and ‘AAAm’ rated government money market funds.  PRIME is 

designed to generate current income while maintaining liquidity and preserving capital. 

PRIME was created pursuant to the COLOTRUST Indenture of Trust (the Indenture). The most 

recently Amended and Restated Indenture was adopted by the COLOTRUST Board of Trustees 

(the Board) and became effective on May 1, 2021. Governmental entities that participate in 

the PRIME portfolio are referred to as “Participants” in the Indenture and this Information 

Statement. The Indenture allows COLOTRUST Participants to register and participate in 

PRIME. Each potential PRIME Participant receives a copy of the Indenture, the Information 

Statement, Investment Policy, and current financial statements before becoming a 

Participant.   

Participants 

PRIME is available to any Colorado local government that is or becomes a Participant by taking 

appropriate official action to adopt the COLOTRUST Indenture of Trust, open an account in 

the Trust, and maintain a balance in the account. Each Participant appoints a Designee, and 

all official communications between the Trust and a Participant are through the Designee. 

Investment Objectives 

PRIME is designed to provide daily liquidity while generating current income and preserving 

capital for Colorado governmental entities by investing only in securities that are legal 

pursuant to the Legal Investments Act (Part 6, Article 75, Title 24, C.R.S.) and the Public 

Deposit Protection Act (Articles 10.5 and 47 of Title 11, C.R.S.) (the Statutes).  

PRIME is presently allowed by the Trust’s investment policies to maintain a portion of its 

assets in U.S. Treasury securities or repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury 

securities. It may also invest assets in securities of a Federal Farm Credit Bank, a Federal 

Home Loan Bank, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, the Federal National 



 
  

 

 

4 

Mortgage Association, the Government National Mortgage Association, and other federal 

instrumentality or agency security permitted by the Legal Investments Act,  repurchase 

agreements collateralized by those securities, collateralized bank deposits, and ‘AAAm’ rated 

government money market funds. The PRIME portfolio may be invested in securities with a 

maximum maturity of 397 days for fixed rate debt and 762 days for sovereign government 

floating-rate debt. The PRIME portfolio is limited to an average weighted maturity not to  

exceed 60 days to reset and 120 days to final.  PRIME seeks to maintain a stable Net Asset 

Value (NAV) of $1.00 per share.  

COLOTRUST is registered with the Securities Commissioner of the State of Colorado in 

accordance with the Local Government Investment Pool Trust Fund Administration and 

Enforcement Act (Part 9, Article 51, Title 11, C.R.S.). 

COLOTRUST adheres to the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) guidelines for its 

accounting and financial reporting principles. In accordance with FASB guidance, the Trust 

utilizes ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure” to define fair value, establish a 

framework for measuring fair value, and expand disclosure requirements regarding fair value 

measurements.  

COLOTRUST PRIME is rated 'AAAm' by S&P Global Ratings. S&P's definition of a 'AAAm' rating 

is “safety is excellent” and a fund has “superior capacity to maintain principal value and limit 

exposure to loss.” These ratings are neither a market rating nor a recommendation to buy, 

hold, or sell the securities by the rating agencies. 

No assurance can be given that the Trust will achieve its investment objective or that any benefits described in this 

information statement will result from the investment of monies in the Trust.  

Income Allocations 

All net income of the PRIME portfolio is determined as of the close of business each day (and 

at such other times as the Board may determine) and is credited immediately thereafter pro 

rata to each Participant’s account. Net income that has thus accrued to the Participants is 

converted as of the close of business of each day into additional shares that are thereafter 

held in each Participant’s account. Reinvested net income is converted into full and fractional 

shares at the rate of one share for each one dollar credited. Net income for each portfolio 

each day consists of (1) all accrued interest income on assets of the portfolio; plus or minus 

(2) any amortized purchase discount or premium; less (3) accrued expenses.  

Determination of Net Asset Value 

The Trust determines the NAV of the shares of PRIME as of the close of business each day. 

The NAV per share of the PRIME portfolio is computed by dividing the total value of the 

securities and other assets of prime, less any liabilities, by the total outstanding shares of the 

PRIME portfolio. Liabilities, which include all expenses and fees of the PRIME portfolio, are 

accrued daily.  



 
  

 

 

5 

For the purpose of calculating the NAV per share, the securities held by PRIME are valued as 

follows: (1) securities for which market quotations are readily available are valued at the most 

recent bid price or yield equivalent as obtained from one or more market makers for such 

securities; (2) all other securities and assets are valued at fair market value determined in 

good faith.  

The result of this calculation is a share value that is rounded to the nearest penny. 

Accordingly, the price at which PRIME shares are sold and redeemed will not reflect net 

realized or unrealized gains or losses on securities that amount to less than $.005 per share. 

The Trust will endeavor to minimize the amount of such gains or losses. However, if net 

unrealized gains or losses should exceed $.005 per share, the NAV per share will change from 

$1.00 or be maintained at $1.00 per share by retention of earnings or the reduction, on a pro 

rata basis, of each Participant’s shares in the event of losses or by a pro rata distribution to 

each Participant in the event of gains.  

It is a fundamental policy of PRIME to maintain a NAV of $1.00 per share, but for the reasons 

herein stated there can be no assurance that the NAV will not vary from $1.00 per share. The 

NAV per share of PRIME may be affected by general changes in interest rates resulting in 

increases or decreases in the value of the securities held by the Trust. The market value of 

such securities will vary inversely to changes in prevailing interest rates. Thus, if interest rates 

have increased from the time a security was purchased, such security, if sold, might be sold 

at a price less than its cost. Similarly, if interest rates have declined from the time a security 

was purchased, such security, if sold, might be sold at a price greater than its cost. If a 

security is held to maturity, no loss or gain is normally realized as a result of these 

fluctuations. 

Description of Shares 

The beneficial interests of the Participants in the assets of the PRIME portfolio and the earnings 

thereon are, for convenience of reference, divided into shares that are used as units to 

measure the allocation of beneficial interest among Participants. All shares participate equally 

in distributions and have equal liquidation and other rights. The shares have no preference, 

conversion, exchange, or preemptive rights. For all matters requiring a vote of Participants, 

each Participant, through its Designee, is entitled to one vote with respect to each matter, 

without regard to the number of shares held by the Participant.  

Eligible Investments 

The PRIME portfolio invests in securities that are legal pursuant to the Statutes. For a more 

complete description of permitted investments please refer to the PRIME Investment Policy, 

available on www.colotrust.com. 



 
  

 

 

6 

Investment Restrictions 

The Trust may buy and sell and enter into agreements to buy and sell the permitted 

investments subject to the restrictions described below. These restrictions are considered to 

be fundamental to the operation and activities of the Trust and may not be changed without 

a majority vote of the Participants. 

1. The Trust may not make any investment other than a permitted investment. 

 

2. The Trust may not make any investment other than investments authorized by the 

Board's investment policy, Indenture, and the statutes of the state of Colorado, as the 

same may be amended from time to time; provided, however, the Board and the Trust 

shall not be responsible for insuring compliance with any investment restrictions 

provided for in a Participant’s home rule charter or elsewhere. 

 

3. The PRIME portfolio may invest in permitted securities with maximum maturities as 

outlined by the Legal Investments Act (Part 6, Article 75, Title 24, C.R.S.). 

 

4. The Trust may neither borrow money nor incur indebtedness whether or not the 

proceeds thereof are intended to be used to purchase permitted investments except 

as a temporary measure to facilitate withdrawal requests which might otherwise 

require unscheduled dispositions of PRIME portfolio investments and only as to the 

extent permitted by law. 

 

5. The Trust may not buy securities from or sell securities to the Administrator, the 

Investment Advisor, the Custodian, or any member of the Board (Trustee), or with 

any affiliate, officer, director, employee, or agent of any of them.  

The Trust may not enter into any repurchase agreements for any securities that are not listed 

as” permitted investments” in the previous section. In addition, all such agreements must be 

initially collateralized at 102% and additional securities must be provided if the market value 

of the collateral falls below 101.5%.  

Computation of Yield 

The Trust quotes a daily and seven-day average yield for the PRIME portfolio in reports and 

information published by the Trust. To obtain the daily yield, a daily yield factor is first 

calculated. The factor is the net income for that day divided by the number of shares 

outstanding. The factor is then multiplied by 365 (366 in a leap year) to produce the daily 

yield. The seven-day average yield is obtained by averaging the daily yield for seven 

identified, consecutive days. The Trust may also quote the PRIME portfolio yield from time-

to-time on other bases for the information of its Participants.  

The yields quoted from time-to-time should not be considered a representation of the yield of 

the PRIME portfolio in the future since the yield is not fixed. Actual yields will depend not only 

on the type, quality, and maturities of the investments held by the PRIME portfolio and 



 
  

 

 

7 

changes in interest rates on such investments but also on changes in the portfolio’s expenses 

during the period.  

Yield information may be useful in reviewing the performance of the PRIME portfolio and for 

providing a basis for comparison with other investment alternatives. 

Investment Risks 

There are several risks associated with pooled investments. Such risks could adversely impact 

the pool’s performance, or in extreme instances lead to a loss of the principal investment.  

Credit Risk – Credit risk results from the possibility that an issuer of a security defaults by 

failing to pay the principal or interest in a timely manner. Any negative change to the credit 

quality of the PRIME portfolio holdings could lead to a decline in share price. 

Interest Rate Risk – The potential that changes in overall interest rates could negatively 

impact the values of the fixed-income securities held within the PRIME portfolio. Changes to 

interest rates tend to have a greater impact on longer maturity fixed-income securities.  

Liquidity Risk – Liquidity risk results from the inability to efficiently convert assets into cash 

without suffering losses. 

Other Forms of Risk – Investing involves risks including the possible loss of principal that 

PRIME investors would have to bear. The investment decisions made by COLOTRUST for 

Participants are subject to certain risks and such decisions may not always be profitable. 

COLOTRUST does not guarantee returns or performance against stated benchmarks. Many 

factors affect performance including changes in market conditions and interest rates and in 

response to other economic, political, or financial developments.  

Suitability 

It is the PRIME investors’ responsibility to review the PRIME Information Statement and 

Investment Policy in order to determine whether PRIME is a suitable and eligible investment 

under the investors’ relevant Investment Policy. 

Fees and Expenses 

The Trust has entered into an agreement with Public Trust Advisors, LLC, effective February 7, 

2020 whereby Public Trust is paid a fee, calculated daily and paid monthly, at an annual rate 

of up to 0.12% (12 basis points) of the individual PRIME investment of each Participant. This 

fee will accrue on a daily basis for the duration of the investment in PRIME. Public Trust may, 

from time-to-time, choose to voluntarily waive fees for the benefit of the fund participants. 

Public Trust is responsible for payment of the costs of operation of the Trust including but not 

limited to Administrator and Investment Advisor fees, Custodian fees, ratings agency fees, 

operational, and marketing expenses.  



 
  

 

 

8 

Withdrawals 

Withdrawals from the PRIME portfolio may be made by wire transfer, ACH funds, or transfer 

between Participants. Requests for withdrawal from accounts with pre-established wire 

instructions in the PRIME portfolio will be honored on a same day basis if received prior to 

11:00 a.m. The Trust requests 24-hour notice for wire transfer withdrawals of $1 million or 

more. 

Investing in PRIME 

PRIME is available to existing Participants as well as to new Participants. Prior to investing in 

PRIME, Participants are required to submit a PRIME Account Registration Form, which is 

available on www.colotrust.com. 

Upon the Participants’ receiving acknowledgement of PRIME registration from COLOTRUST, 

shares of PRIME are acquired by the Participant in the portal or by check contribution form. 

There is no minimum initial investment amount, nor a minimum required balance after the 

purchase is made. PRIME contributions and transfers must be submitted via the portal by 

11:00 am MT.   Funds received after 11:00 a.m. but before 4:00 p.m. (late funds) will be 

invested overnight by the Trust’s Administrator in the Trust’s interest-bearing bank account 

at UMB Bank that is fully collateralized in compliance with the Public Deposit Protection Act, 

Article 10.5 of Title 11 C.R.S. All interest earnings attributable to late funds invested in the 

Trust’s interest-bearing bank account will be distributed on a pro rata basis to each 

Participant’s account the next business day. 

Reporting 

Each Participant receives quarterly and annual financial statements of the Trust as well as a 

monthly statement of the Participant’s PRIME account(s). The annual financial statements are 

issued as of the Trust’s fiscal year end on December 31 each calendar year. Participants are 

advised to review the financial statements of the Trust that are furnished to them. The reports 

also include sufficient information to establish compliance with the investment policy 

established in the Indenture and other information required by the statutes of the state of 

Colorado and by regulations promulgated by the Securities Commissioner of the State of 

Colorado.  

The Trust answers inquiries from Participants at any time during business hours. Inquiries 

may be made by mail, email at info@colotrust.com, via the Internet at www.colotrust.com, 

or by phone at (303) 864-7474 from the Denver area or at (877) 311-0219 outside of the 

Denver area. The telefax number is (877) 311-0220. The mailing address is COLOTRUST, 717 

17th Street, Suite 1850, Denver, Colorado 80202. 



 
  

 

 

9 

Statements 

In addition to the quarterly and annual financial statements of the Trust, a monthly statement 

is provided for the accounts of PRIME Participants. In addition to the fair value NAV, the 

Statement will provide the month’s beginning balance, purchases, redemptions, income 

earned, income earned year-to-date, month-end balance, and transaction activity summary.  

Board of Trustees 

The Board is responsible for assuring compliance with the Indenture and the investment 

restrictions therein. The Board has the power to administer the Trust and the affairs of the 

Trust. Further information about the COLOTRUST Board of Trustees, its structure, roles and 

responsibilities is available on www.colotrust.com and in the COLOTRUST Information 

Statement.  

The Board is responsible for the investments of the Trust and for the general administration 

of the business and affairs of the Trust; however, the Trustees are not required personally to 

conduct all of the business of the Trust and consistent with its ultimate responsibility, the 

Board has appointed an Administrator, an Investment Advisor, a Custodian, Legal Counsel, 

and an Independent Accountant. The Board may assign such duties to the Administrator, 

Investment Advisor, and Custodian as it deems to be necessary or desirable for the efficient 

management of the Trust.  

The Investment Advisor and Administrator 

Pursuant to an agreement with the Trust, Public Trust Advisors, LLC (Public Trust) serves as 

the Investment Advisor and Administrator of the Trust.  

As Investment Advisor, Public Trust provides investment services to the Board. Public Trust 

is an investment advisory firm located in Denver, Colorado.  

Public Trust is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment 

advisor under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.  

As Administrator, Public Trust services all Participant accounts in the Trust, determines and 

allocates income of the Trust, provides certain written confirmation of the investment and 

withdrawal of funds by Participants, provides administrative personnel and facilities to the 

Trust, determines the net asset value of the Trust, and performs all related administrative 

services for the Trust. At least quarterly, the Administrator provides the Board with a detailed 

evaluation of the performance of the Trust based upon a number of factors. This evaluation 

includes a comparative analysis of the Trust’s investment results in relation to industry 

standards such as the performance of comparable money market mutual funds and various 

indices of money market securities.  



 
  

 

 

10 

The Agreement with Public Trust may not be assigned, by operation of law or otherwise, by 

Public Trust, without the express written consent by the Trust and may be terminated without 

penalty on 45 days written notice at the option of the Trust or Public Trust.  

The Trust is prohibited from buying securities from and selling securities to Public Trust and 

any of its affiliates.  

Custodian 

UMB Bank, N.A. serves as Custodian for the Trust pursuant to a Custodian Agreement. UMB 

Bank acts as safekeeping agent for the Trust’s investment portfolios and serves, in accordance 

with the statutes of the state of Colorado, as the depository in connection with the direct 

investment and withdrawal mechanisms of the Trust. UMB Bank does not participate in the 

Trust’s investment decision-making process.  

On occasion, the Trust uses other custodians for some permitted investments such as tri-

party repurchase agreements.  

The Custodian Agreements remain in effect until terminated by either the Trust or the 

Custodian. The Agreements are not assignable without the prior written consent of the Trust 

and may be terminated without penalty on 60 days written notice at the option of the Trust 

or the Custodian.  

Legal Counsel 

At the present time, Butler Snow, LLP serves as General Counsel to the Trust.  

Independent Accountants 

At the present time, CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP serves as independent certified public accountants 

to audit the annual Financial Statements of the Trust. The audit contains statements of assets 

and liabilities, of operations, and of changes in net assets of the Trust prepared in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles. The opinion of the independent certified public 

accountant on such financial statements is based on an examination of the books and records 

of the Trust made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. 

 

The investment advisor providing these services is Public Trust Advisors, LLC (Public Trust), an investment adviser 

registered with the SEC under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended. Registration with the SEC does not 

imply a certain level of skill or training. Public Trust is required to maintain a written disclosure brochure of our 

background and business experience. If you would like to receive a copy of our current disclosure brochure, please 

contact us. Additionally, this registration provides no guarantee of return or protection against loss. Many factors 

affect performance including changes in market conditions and interest rates and in response to other economic, 

political, or financial developments. Investment involves risk including the possible loss of principal. No assurance 

can be given that the performance objectives of a given strategy will be achieved. Past performance is no 

guarantee of future results. Any financial and/or investment decision may incur losses. No assurance can 

be given that PRIME will achieve its investment objective. 



 
  

 

 

11 

This is not a Stable NAV fund. While it seeks to establish a transactional share price of $10.00 per share, the possibility 

of a higher amount of unrealized/realized losses than unrealized/realized gains implies that the NAV could decline 

below the $10.00 transactional share price and that shareholders will execute purchases and redemptions at that 

NAV. 

 

Contact Information  

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850  

Denver, CO 80202 

Phone: (877) 311-0219  

Fax: (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 

www.colotrust.com 

 

 



57666791.v1 

  

PRIME Investment Policy 

 Effective October 1, 2021 



 
  

 

 

 

2 

Introduction  

COLOTRUST is a statutory trust organized and existing under the laws of the state of Colorado 

in accordance with the provisions of the Investment Funds Local Government Pooling Act (Part 

7, Article 75, Title 24, C.R.S.), the Funds Legal Investments Act (Part 6, Article 75, Title 24, 

C.R.S.), and the Public Deposit Protection Act (Articles 10.5 and 47 of Title 11, C.R.S.). 

COLOTRUST is registered with the Securities Commissioner of the State of Colorado as 

required by the Local Government Investment Pool Trust Fund Administration and 

Enforcement Act (Part 9, Article 51, Title 11, C.R.S.)  

COLOTRUST currently offers three portfolios, COLOTRUST PRIME, COLOTRUST PLUS+ and 

COLOTRUST EDGE. 

COLOTRUST provides a professionally managed investment program for local governments. 

The general objective of COLOTRUST PRIME is to generate a high level of investment income 

for the Participants while maintaining liquidity and preserving capital by investing only in 

investments authorized by the Statutes.  

No assurance can be given that COLOTRUST will achieve its investment objective or that any 

benefits described in the information statements will result from the investment of moneys in 

COLOTRUST.  

COLOTRUST is specifically designed for Colorado local governments. Accordingly, COLOTRUST 

has limited its portfolios by investing only in instruments permitted under the Legal 

Investments Act (Permitted Investments). The COLOTRUST Board of Trustees maintains 

investment policies for COLOTRUST that are, by nature, more restrictive than the Legal 

Investments Act. Participants receive 30 days prior notice of any changes in the investment 

policies.  

 



 
  

 

 

 

3 

PRIME Investment Policy 

 

Any security issued by, fully guaranteed 

by, or for which the full credit of the United 

States Treasury is pledged for payment:  

• The maximum final maturity per 

fixed United States Treasury 

investment is 13 months (397 

days).   

• The maximum final maturity per 

floating United States Treasury 

investment is two years (762 days). 

Any security issued by, fully guaranteed 

by, or for which the full credit of the 

following is pledged for payment: The 

Federal Farm Credit Bank, the Federal Land 

Bank, a Federal Home Loan Bank, the 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, 

the Federal National Mortgage Association, 

the Export-Import Bank, the Tennessee 

Valley Authority, the Government National 

Mortgage Association, the World Bank, or 

an entity/organization that is not listed in 

this paragraph but that is created by, or the 

creation of which is authorized by, 

legislation enacted by the United States 

Congress and that is subject to control by 

the Federal government that is at least as 

extensive as that which governs an entity 

or organization listed in this paragraph. No 

subordinated security may be purchased 

pursuant to this paragraph.  

• The maximum exposure per U.S. 

government related/guaranteed 

issuer is 33%.   

 

• The maximum final maturity per 

U.S. government related/ 

guaranteed fixed-rate investment is 

13 months (397 days).  

• The maximum final maturity per 

U.S. government related/ 

guaranteed floating rate investment 

is two years (762 days).  

Repurchase agreements and tri-party 

repurchase agreements with member 

banks of the Federal Reserve System 

and/or dealers in U.S. Government 

Securities in accordance with C.R.S. 24-75-

601.1. 

A Master Repurchase Agreement (e.g. The 

Bond Market Association standard 

agreement, 1996 version) and applicable 

COLOTRUST annexes must be signed by all 

parties and on file prior to executing any 

transaction.  

Tri-party repurchase agreements are 

permissible with COLOTRUST Board 

approved counterparties and third-party 

custodians (acting for both the party and 

the counterparty). These third-party 

custodians are not permitted to hold 

deposits for COLOTRUST and are therefore 

not required to meet the Colorado PDPA 

requirements.  

Written tri-party custodian agreements (in 

addition to The Bond Market Association 

1996 standard repurchase agreement) 

must be signed by all parties and on file 

prior to executing any transaction.  

Collateral (purchased securities) shall be 

limited to the following and shall be 

indicated as such on Schedule 1 ‘Schedule 

of Eligible Securities’ of the tri-party 

This Investment Policy restricts the COLOTRUST PRIME portfolio to the following: 

 



 
  

 

 

 

4 

custodian agreement: U.S. Treasuries 

(bills, bonds, notes, strips), Federal 

National Mortgage Association (FNMA), 

Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB), Federal 

Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 

(FHLMC), Federal Farm Credit Banks 

(FFCB), GNMA I/II Single Family, GNMA 

I/II Others-Fixed Rate, GNMA I/II Others, 

Adjust Rate and Agency Mortgage Backed 

(Pass-Through Fixed Rate and Pass-

Through Adjustable Rate).  

Term repurchase agreements (TRA) are 

considered eligible investments under the 

following conditions:  

• For TRAs between two and five 

business days, a maximum of 10% 

of the portfolio with any one dealer.

   

• For TRAs with maturities of more 

than five business days, a 

maximum of 5% of the portfolio.    

 

• TRAs shall not exceed 30 calendar 

days.    

 

• TRAs shall fulfill all requirements of 

the 1996 version of The Bond 

Market Association master 

repurchase agreement.  

The Repurchase Agreements between 

COLOTRUST and the various approved 

counterparties require that the aggregate 

market value of all purchased securities 

from any particular counterparty be at least 

102% (the margin) of the aggregate 

purchase price of the purchased securities.  

The Board recognizes that market 

fluctuations constantly increase or 

decrease the value of securities; that there 

is value in maintaining ongoing, positive 

relationships between COLOTRUST and the 

various counterparties; that accepted 

practice in the industry allows minor 

deviations from strict application of 

margins; and that there is a cost of 

changing collateral securing repurchase 

agreements. For those reasons, the 

portfolio manager may use discretion 

before directing that a counterparty supply 

additional purchased securities until such 

time as the margin falls below 101.5%. If 

the aggregate collateral level of the 

counterparty falls below 101.5%, the 

portfolio manager shall notify the 

counterparty to provide sufficient 

additional securities to restore the margin 

to at least 102%. The portfolio manager 

will require additional collateral to return 

the margin to at least 102% on the next 

business day.  

Any deposit that meets the requirements in 

the Public Deposit Protection Act under CRS 

11-10.5-107, et seq.  

Any money market fund that is registered 

as an investment company under the 

Federal Investment Company Act of 1940, 

as amended if, at the time COLOTRUST 

invests in such fund:  

• The investment policies of the fund 

include seeking to maintain a 

constant share price;    

 

• No sales or load fee is added to the 

purchase price or deducted from the 

redemption price of the investment;  

 

• The investments of the fund consist 

only of securities with a maximum 

remaining maturity as specified in 

Rule 2a-7 under the Federal 

Investment Company Act of 1940, 

as amended or any successor 



 
  

 

 

 

5 

regulation under such act regulating 

money market funds, so long as 

such Rule 2a-7 is not amended to or 

such successor regulation does not 

increase the maximum remaining 

maturity of such securities to a 

period that is greater than three 

years and if the fund has assets of 

one billion dollars or more or has 

the highest current credit rating 

from one or more NRSRO; 

 

• The dollar-weighted average 

portfolio maturity of the fund meets 

the requirements specified in Rule 

2a-7 under the Federal Investment 

Company Act of 1940, as amended 

or any successor regulation under 

such act regulating money market 

funds, so long as such Rule 2a-7 is 

not amended to increase the dollar 

weighted average portfolio maturity 

of a fund to a period greater than 

one hundred eighty days. 

 

• No more than 10% of the portfolio 

may be invested in any single AAAm 

rated money market fund that 

meets the above criteria.  

Adopted April 22, 1985  

Revised October 16, 1992  

Revised February 19, 1999  

Revised May 5, 2000  

Revised October 3, 2003  

Revised December 3, 2004  

Revised August 7, 2009  

Revised September 8, 2011  

Revised August 10, 2012  

Revised January 1, 2016  

Revised January 1, 2018  

Revised February 6, 2020  

Revised March 5, 2021  

Approved October 1, 2021  

 

Contact Information  

717 17th Street, Suite 1850  

Denver, CO 80202 

Phone: (877) 311-0219  

Fax: (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 

www.colotrust.com 

 

mailto:clientservices@colotrust.com
http://www.colotrust.com/


 

 

  

Indenture of Trust 

 
May 1, 2021  



 
  

 

 

2 

Table of Contents 
 

ARTICLE 1            THE TRUST 

 

1.1 Name .................................................................................................................. 8 

1.2 Purpose; Participant Requirements; and Changes of Incumbency ............................... 8 

1.3 Location .............................................................................................................. 9 

1.4 Nature and Indenture of Trust ................................................................................ 9 

1.5 Definitions ........................................................................................................... 9 

 

ARTICLE 2            THE PARTICIPANTS 

 

2.1 General Powers .................................................................................................. 11 

2.2 Election of Board of Trustees ................................................................................ 11 

2.3 Exercise of Participants’ Rights ............................................................................. 11 

2.4 Voting ............................................................................................................... 12 

2.5 Annual Vote ....................................................................................................... 12 

2.6 Right to Initiate a Vote of the Participants .............................................................. 12 

2.7 Inspection of Records .......................................................................................... 12 

2.8 Meetings of the Participants ................................................................................. 12 

2.9 Notice to Participants .......................................................................................... 13 

2.10 Proxies ............................................................................................................ 13 

2.11 Record Date of Meetins and Votes ....................................................................... 13 

2.12 Number of Votes ............................................................................................... 14 

 

ARTICLE 3            THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

3.1 General Powers .................................................................................................. 14 

3.2 Annual Report .................................................................................................... 14 

3.3 Other Reports .................................................................................................... 15 

3.4 Legal Title .......................................................................................................... 15 

3.5 Execution of Documents ...................................................................................... 15 

3.6 Delegation; Committees; Bylaws; Policies; Procedures ............................................ 15 



 
  

 

 

3 

3.7 Payment of Expenses .......................................................................................... 16 

3.8 Fiscal Year; Accounts .......................................................................................... 16 

3.9 Power to Contract, Appoint, Retain, and Employ ..................................................... 16 

3.10 Insurance ........................................................................................................ 17 

3.11 Seal ................................................................................................................ 17 

3.12 Remedies ......................................................................................................... 17 

3.13 Information Statement ...................................................................................... 18 

3.14 Further Powers ................................................................................................. 18 

 

ARTICLE 4            ADMINISTRATOR 

 

4.1 Appointment ...................................................................................................... 18 

4.2 Duties of the Administrator .................................................................................. 18 

4.3 Successors ......................................................................................................... 19 

 

ARTICLE 5            CUSTODIAN 

 

5.1 Appointment ...................................................................................................... 19 

5.2 Duties of Custodian ............................................................................................. 19 

5.3 Successors ......................................................................................................... 19 

 

ARTICLE 6            INVESTMENT ADVISOR 

 

6.1 Appointment ...................................................................................................... 19 

6.2 Duties of the Investment Advisor .......................................................................... 19 

6.3 Successors ......................................................................................................... 20 

 

ARTICLE 7            INVESTMENTS 

 

7.1 Statement of Investment Policy and Objective ........................................................ 20 

7.2 Restrictions Fundamental to the Trust ................................................................... 20 



 
  

 

 

4 

7.3 Permitted Investments ........................................................................................ 21 

7.4 Disposition of Assets ........................................................................................... 21 

7.5 Collection .......................................................................................................... 21 

7.6 Deposits ............................................................................................................ 22 

7.7 Valuation ........................................................................................................... 22 

7.8 Amendment of Restrictions .................................................................................. 23 

 

ARTICLE 8            LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY 

 

8.1 Liability to the Trust or to the Participants ............................................................. 23 

8.2 Indemnification .................................................................................................. 23 

8.3 Surety Bonds ..................................................................................................... 24 

8.4 Recitals ............................................................................................................. 24 

8.5 Reliance on Experts ............................................................................................ 24 

8.6 Liability Insurance .............................................................................................. 25 

 

ARTICLE 9            INTERESTS OF PARTICIPANTS 

 

9.1 General ............................................................................................................. 25 

9.2 Allocation of Shares ............................................................................................ 25 

9.3 Evidence of Share Allocation ................................................................................ 26 

9.4 Redemption to Maintain Constant Net Asset Value .................................................. 26 

9.5 Redemptions ...................................................................................................... 26 

9.6 Suspension of Redemption; Postponement of Payment ............................................ 27 

9.7 Minimum Redemption .......................................................................................... 27 

9.8 Defective Redemption Requests ............................................................................ 27 

 

ARTICLE 10            RECORD OF SHARES 

 

10.1 Share Records .................................................................................................. 28 



 
  

 

 

5 

10.2 Maintenance of Records ..................................................................................... 28 

10.3 Owner of Record ............................................................................................... 28 

10.4 No Transfer of Shares ........................................................................................ 28 

10.5 Limitation of Responsibility ................................................................................. 28 

10.6 Notices ............................................................................................................ 29 

 

ARTICLE 11            TRUSTEES AND OFFICES 

 

11.1 Number and Qualification ................................................................................... 29 

11.2 Term ............................................................................................................... 30 

11.3 Election ........................................................................................................... 30 

11.4 Resignation and Removal ................................................................................... 30 

11.5 Vacancies ........................................................................................................ 30 

11.6 Officers ............................................................................................................ 31 

11.7 Meetings .......................................................................................................... 31 

 

ARTICLE 12            DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE AND NET          

                             INCOME; DISTRIBUTIONS TO PARTICIPANTS 

 

12.1 Net Asset Value ................................................................................................ 32 

12.2 Constant Net Asset Value; Reduction of Allocated Shares ....................................... 32 

12.3 Retained Reserves ............................................................................................ 32 

 

ARTICLE 13            RECORDING OF INDENTURE 

 

13.1 Recording ........................................................................................................ 33 

 

 

 



 
  

 

 

6 

ARTICLE 14            AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION OF TRUST;    

                             DURATION OF TRUST 

 

14.1 Amendment or Termination ................................................................................ 33 

14.2 Power to Effect Reorganization ........................................................................... 34 

14.3 Duration .......................................................................................................... 35 

 

ARTICLE 15            MISCELLANEOUS 

 

15.1 Governing Law ................................................................................................. 35 

15.2 Counterparts .................................................................................................... 35 

15.3 Reliance by Third Parties .................................................................................... 35 

15.4 Provisions in Conflict with Law ............................................................................ 36 

15.5 Adoption by Local Governments and Election to Become a Participant; Resignation of 

Participants ............................................................................................................. 36 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
  

 

 

7 

May 1, 2021  

THIS AND AMENDED INDENTURE OF TRUST is adopted to be effective [date]. 

WHEREAS, the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust was originally 

created by an Indenture of Trust dated January 1, 1985, and  

WHEREAS, that Indenture of Trust was amended on October 12, 1987; January 

1, 1995; April 15, 1999; December 6, 2002; October 3, 2003; December 4, 2009; 

January 1, 2016; January 19, 2017; April 1, 2019; and May 1, 2021.  

WHEREAS, those Indentures of Trust were adopted pursuant to the provisions 

of Part 7 of Article 75 of Title 24, Colorado Revised Statues entitled “Investment 

Funds – Local Government Pooling” (the Pooling Act), whereby any county, city and 

county, city, town, school district or special district, or other political subdivision of 

the state, or any department, agency, or instrumentality thereof, or any political or 

public corporation of the state (a local government) is authorized to pool any moneys 

in the treasury of such local government that are not immediately required to be 

disbursed with the same such moneys in the treasury of any other local government 

in order to take advantage of short-term investments and maximize net interest 

earnings; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to those Indentures of Trust, numerous local 

governments (the Participants) have pooled such moneys and acquired beneficial 

interests in the assets of the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (the 

Trust); and  

WHEREAS, it is the intent and purpose of this Restated and Amended Indenture 

of Trust (the Indenture) to provide for the investment and deposit of the pooled funds 

in only those legal investments for local governments in accordance with Part 6 of 

Article 75 of Title 24, Colorado Revised Statutes entitled Funds – Legal Investments, 

(the Legal Investments Act), and Articles 10.5 and 47 of Title 11, Colorado Revised 

Statutes entitled the Public Deposits Protection Act (the PDPA); and 

 WHEREAS, the beneficial interests in the assets of the trust fund created 

pursuant to the provisions of this Indenture shall be divided into non-transferable 

shares; and  

WHEREAS, the Participants anticipate that other local governments of the state 

of Colorado may wish to become Participants by adopting this Indenture; and  

WHEREAS, this Amended and Restated Indenture of Trust incorporates various 

amendments up to and including the amendments made by the Board of Trustees to 

be effective May 1, 2021.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and 

agreements contained herein, the parties hereto, now and hereafter added pursuant 

to the provisions herein, mutually undertake, promise, and agree for themselves, 



 
  

 

 

8 

their respective representatives, successors, and assigns that all moneys, assets, 

securities, funds, and property now or hereafter acquired by the Trust under this 

Indenture shall be held and managed in trust for the benefit of the holders of record 

from time-to-time of Shares of beneficial interests herein subject to the terms, 

covenants, conditions, purpose, and provisions hereof. 

 

Article 1 

The Trust 

1.1. Name - The name of the trust created by this Indenture shall be Colorado 

Local Government Liquid Asset Trust and the Board shall conduct the Trust’s 

activities, execute all documents, and sue or be sued under that name. The Board 

may use such other designations, including COLOTRUST, and may adopt such other 

name or names for the Trust as the Board deems proper, and the Trust may hold 

property and conduct its activities under such designations or names. The Board shall 

take such action as they, acting with the advice of counsel, shall deem necessary or 

appropriate to file or register such names in accordance with the laws of the state of 

Colorado or the United States of America so as to protect and reserve the right of the 

Trust in and to such names.  

 

1.2. Purpose; Participant Requirements; and Changes of Incumbency  

a. The purpose of the Trust is to provide a local government investment 

pool trust pursuant to the Pooling Act through which a local government may 

pool any moneys in its treasury which are not immediately required to be 

disbursed with the same such moneys in the treasury of any other local 

government in order to take advantage of short-term investments and 

maximize net investment earnings in accordance with the provisions of the 

Legal Investments Act, the PDPA, and other laws of the state of Colorado, from 

time-to-time in effect, governing the investment of moneys in the treasury of 

a local government.  

b. Only those local governments that have adopted this Indenture, or a 

predecessor indenture, and have complied with the provisions thereof are 

Participants.  

c. Each local government adopting and executing this Indenture after 

the effective date hereof, and otherwise complying with the provisions hereof, 

shall become a Participant upon depositing into the Trust the minimum total 

investment as that amount is set, from time-to-time, by the Board.  

 



 
  

 

 

9 

1.3. Location - The Trust shall maintain an office of record in the state of 

Colorado that shall be the repository for the primary records of the Trust and may 

maintain such other offices or places of business as the Board may from time-to-time 

determine. The office of record may be changed from time-to-time by resolution of 

the Board and notice of such change of the office of record shall be given to each 

Participant.  

 

1.4. Nature and Indenture of Trust  

a. The Trust shall be a statutory trust organized and existing under the laws 

of the state of Colorado. The Trust is not intended to be, shall not be deemed 

to be, and shall not be treated as a general partnership, limited partnership, 

joint venture, corporation, investment company, or joint stock company. The 

Participants shall be beneficiaries of the Trust, and their relationship to the 

Trust shall be solely in their capacity as Participants and beneficiaries in 

accordance with the rights conferred upon them hereunder.  

b. The Indenture is an agreement of indefinite term regarding deposit, 

redeposit, investment, reinvestment, and withdrawal of local government 

funds in accordance with the Pooling Act, the Legal Investments Act, and the 

PDPA.  

c. The Board may authorize the creation of one or more different portfolios 

provided that each such portfolio shall conform in all respects to the 

requirements of this Indenture.  

d. The Board may authorize the use of the names Colorado Local Government 

Liquid Asset Trust and COLOTRUST in conjunction with other products and 

services that provide investment, financial, or other cash management 

services to local governments. 

 

1.5. Definitions - As used in this Indenture, the following terms shall have 

the following meanings. These definitions are intended to supplement the definitions 

contained in Part 7 of Article 75 of Title 24 of the Colorado Revised Statutes and in 

the event of any conflicts, the more restrictive shall apply. 

“Administrative Agreement” shall mean the agreement between the Board on 

behalf of the Trust and the Administrator.  

“Administrator” shall mean the person or persons appointed, employed, or 

contracted with by the Board on behalf of the Trust pursuant to Article IV hereof.  

“Affiliate” shall mean, with respect to any person, another person directly or 

indirectly controlled, controlled by, or under common control with such person, or 

any officer, director, partner, or employee of such person.  



 
  

 

 

10 

“Business Day" means any day of the year other than (a) a Saturday or 

Sunday, (b) any day on which banks located in Denver, Colorado, are required or 

authorized by law to remain closed, or (c) any day on which the New York Stock 

Exchange is closed.  

“Board” shall mean the Board of Trustees elected by the Participants to 

administer and supervise the affairs of the Trust.  

“Custodian” shall mean any person or persons appointed, employed, or 

contracted with by the Board on behalf of the Trust pursuant to Article V hereof.  

“Custodian Agreement” shall mean the agreement between the Board on 

behalf of the Trust and the Custodian.  

“Designee” shall mean the individual designated as such by the Participant in 

writing. Said Designee shall be the legal representative to act for and on behalf of 

each Participant. Each Participant may designate Alternate Designees. 

“Eligible Public Depository” shall mean an eligible public depository as defined 

in the PDPA.  

“Indenture” shall mean this Indenture of Trust as it may be amended from 

time-to-time.  

“Information Statement” shall mean an information statement or other 

descriptive document for a Portfolio adopted as such by the Board from time to time 

and distributed to Participants and potential Participants.  

“Investment Advisor” shall mean any person or persons appointed, employed, 

or contracted with by the Board on behalf of the Trust pursuant to Article VI hereof 

and shall include any Investment Advisor Representative.  

“Investment Advisor Agreement” shall mean the agreement between the 

Board on behalf of the Trust and the Investment Advisor.  

“Legal Investments Act” shall mean Part 6, Article 75, Title 24, C.R.S. as 

amended and as it may be amended from time-to-time.  

“Local Government” shall mean any county, city and county, city, town, school 

district, special district, or other political subdivision of the state of Colorado, or any 

department, agency, or instrumentality thereof, or any political or public corporation 

of the state of Colorado.  

“Participants” shall mean the local governments that are the Participants as of 

the date this Restated and Amended Indenture is adopted and the local governments 

that adopt and execute this Indenture and that comply with its terms.  

“PDPA” shall mean Articles 10.5 and 47 of Title 11 of the Colorado Revised 

Statutes as amended and as they may be amended from time-to-time.  



 
  

 

 

11 

“Permitted Investments” shall mean the investments referred to in Section 

7.3.b.  

“Person” shall mean and include individuals, corporations, limited partnerships, 

general partnerships, joint stock companies or associations, joint ventures, 

associations, companies, trusts, banks, trust companies, land trust, business trust, 

or other entities (whether or not legal entities) and governments and agencies and 

political subdivisions thereof.  

“Portfolio” means a subaccount of the Trust which is invested in specified 

classes of Permitted Investments with the same limits on purchase price, maximum 

maturity, weighted average maturity, right of redemption, and the price, terms and 

manner of redemption, all as set forth in an investment policy for such subaccount 

approved by the Board. 

“The Pooling Act” shall mean Part 7 of Article 75 of Title 24 of the Colorado 

Revised Statutes as amended and as it may be amended from time-to-time.  

 “Share” shall mean the unit used to denominate and measure the respective 

pro rata beneficial interests of the Participants in a Portfolio which is part of the Trust 

Property as described in Article IX.  

“Trust” shall mean the trust created by this Indenture of Trust.  

“Trust Property” shall mean, as of any particular time, any and all property, 

real, personal, or otherwise, tangible or intangible, that is transferred, conveyed, or 

paid to the Trust and all income, profits, and gains therefrom and which, at such 

time, is owned or held by, or for the account of, the Trust.  

“Trustee” shall mean any member of the Board. 

 

Article 2 

The Participants 

2.1. General Powers - The Participants shall have full, exclusive, and 

absolute power of supervision over the Trust and the affairs of the Trust.  

 

2.2. Election of Board of Trustees - The Participants shall elect the 

members of the Board of Trustees.  

 

2.3. Exercise of Participants' Rights - All rights of the Participants as set 

forth in this Indenture shall be exercised by their respective Designee or Alternate 

Designee. Wherever in this Indenture action is required by or allowed to a Participant, 



 
  

 

 

12 

such action shall be taken by the Designee or Alternate Designee on behalf of the 

Participant. All notices required to be sent to Participants shall be sent to the 

Designee.  

 

2.4. Voting - Each Participant, through its Designee or an Alternate Designee, 

shall be entitled to one vote as a matter of right with respect to the following matters:  

a. Election of the Board;  

b. Amendment of this Indenture;  

c. Termination of the Trust; and  

d. Reorganization of the Trust.  

It shall not be necessary for any minimum number of Shares other than one 

to be allocated to a Participant for the Participant to be entitled to vote. 

 

2.5. Annual Vote - The annual vote shall be completed by February 1 of each 

year. The vote shall include the election of the members of the Board and may include 

such other questions or consideration of such other matters as Participants may be 

entitled to vote upon as the Board may determine. The Board shall provide for the 

nomination of candidates, the mailing of the ballots, and for such other matters 

deemed necessary or desirable for the conduct of the election.  

 

2.6. Right to Initiate a Vote of the Participants - The Participants shall, 

by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing delivered to the Board signed 

by the lesser of 25 or ten percent of the Participants, have the right to initiate a vote 

of the Participants as to any matter described in Section 2.5. Within 60 days of receipt 

of such instrument(s), the Board shall cause a ballot to be sent to each Designee, 

setting forth the matter to be voted on and the manner in which such ballots should 

be executed and delivered.  

 

2.7. Inspection of Records - The records of the Trust shall be open to 

inspection as provided by the Pooling Act.  

 

2.8. Meetings of the Participants  

a. Meetings of the Participants may be called at any time by a majority 

of the Board and shall be called upon written request of the lesser of 25 or ten 

percent of the Designees. Such request shall specify the purpose(s) for which 



 
  

 

 

13 

such meeting is to be called. Any such meeting shall be held within the state 

of Colorado at such place, on such day and at such time as the Board shall 

designate, provided that a meeting requested by the Designees shall be held 

within 60 days of such request or on such other date contained in the request 

but not less than 30 days from the date of the request.  

b. Ten percent of the Designees entitled to vote shall constitute a 

quorum. A Designee may vote in person or by proxy. Any Designee may attend 

by conference telephone or similar communication equipment if all persons 

participating are able to communicate with each other.  

 

2.9. Notice to Participants  

a. Any notice required to be given to the Participants including notice of 

all meetings of the Participants shall be given by delivering by mail or 

electronically the notice to the Designee of each Participant at the address 

shown in the records of the Trust.  

b. In the case of a meeting of the Participants any notice shall be 

delivered at least 20 days before the meeting. The notice shall state the time, 

place, and purposes of the meeting. Only business stated in the notice of a 

meeting shall be considered at such meeting. Any adjourned meeting may be 

held as adjourned without further notice. 

c. Any notice required by Part 4, Article 6, Title 24 shall also be given. 

Any publication or posting deemed necessary or advisable shall be made in 

such newspaper(s) and posted at such places as designated by the Board. 

 

2.10. Proxies - At any meeting of the Participants, any Designee entitled to 

vote may vote by proxy, provided that no proxy shall be voted at any meeting unless 

it shall have been placed on file with the Secretary of the Trust or with such other 

officer or agent of the Trust as the Secretary of the Trust may direct. Pursuant to a 

resolution of a majority of the Board, proxies may be solicited in the name of one or 

more of the officers of the Trust. All proxies shall be revocable at the option of the 

Designee at any time prior to the vote.  

 

2.11. Record Date of Meetings and Votes - For the purposes of determining 

the Participants that are entitled to vote or act at any meeting or any adjournment 

thereof, or for the purpose of any other action, the Board may fix a date no more 

than 30 days prior to the date of any meeting or vote of the Participants or other 

action as a record date for delivering notice to the Participants. No Participant shall 

be entitled to vote at such meeting or any adjournment thereof, or to cast a ballot in 



 
  

 

 

14 

such vote, unless it has Shares allocated to it at the time of the meeting. Any 

Participant becoming such prior to the meeting shall be entitled to vote at such 

meeting or any adjournment thereof or to cast a ballot in such vote and to be treated 

as a Participant for all purposes.  

 

2.12. Number of Votes - Only Participants of record shall be entitled to vote, 

and each Participant shall be entitled to one vote without regard to the number of 

Shares allocated to it. A proxy purporting to be executed by or on behalf of a 

Participant shall be deemed valid unless challenged at or prior to its exercise and the 

burden of proving invalidity shall rest on the challenger. Those Participants not 

involved in the challenge shall determine any such challenge, and their decision shall 

be final. The approval of a simple majority of those voting shall be sufficient to 

approve any action at a meeting or other election of the Participants except as 

provided in Sections 7.8 and 14.1. 

 

Article 3 

The Board of Trustees 

3.1. General Powers - Subject to the rights of the Participants as provided 

herein, the Board shall have, without other or further authorization, power to 

administer the Trust and the affairs of the Trust. The Board may do and perform such 

acts and things as in their sole judgment and discretion are necessary and proper for 

the administration of the Trust and the investment of the Trust Property but shall 

invest with the degree of judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, 

which persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management 

of the property of another, not in regard to speculation, but in regard to the 

permanent disposition of funds, considering the probable income as well as the 

probable safety of capital. 

 

3.2. Annual Report  

a. The Board shall cause to be prepared at least annually:  

i. A report of operations containing a statement of assets and liabilities 

and statements of operations and of changes in net assets of the Trust 

prepared in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting 

principles;  

ii. An opinion of an independent certified public accountant on such 

financial statements based on an examination of the books and records 



 
  

 

 

15 

of the Trust made in accordance with United States generally accepted 

auditing standards;  

iii. Sufficient information to establish compliance with the investment 

policy established in this Indenture; and  

iv. Such other information as may be required by the Pooling Act or by 

regulations promulgated by the Securities Commissioner of the state of 

Colorado.  

b. The Board shall cause copies of the annual report to be delivered to all 

Participants of record within five business days from the receipt thereof.  

 

3.3. Other Reports - The Board shall also furnish to the Participants, at least 

quarterly, a report of operations including a statement of assets and liabilities and 

statements of operations and of changes in net assets of the Trust and such other 

information as the Board may include or as may be required by the Pooling Act or by 

regulations promulgated by the Securities Commissioner of the state of Colorado. 

 

3.4. Legal Title - Title to all of the Trust Property shall be vested in the Trust 

on behalf of the Participants who shall be the beneficial owners. The Trust shall have 

full and complete power to cause legal title to any Trust property to be held, on behalf 

of the Participants, by or in the name of the Trust, or in the name of any other person 

as nominee, on such terms, in such manner, and with such powers as the Board may 

determine, so long as in its judgment the interest of the Trust is adequately 

protected.  

 

3.5. Execution of Documents - All documents or instruments that require a 

signature shall be signed by the Chairman or by such other person as so designated 

by resolution of the Board. The Board may authorize the use of facsimile signatures 

or other legal signatures. 

 

3.6. Delegation; Committees, Bylaws; Policies; Procedures - The Board 

shall have full and complete power to delegate, from time-to-time, to one or more of 

their number (who may be designated as constituting a Committee of the Board) or 

to officers, employees, or agents of the Trust (including without limitation the 

Administrator, the Custodian, and/or the Investment Advisor) the doing of such acts 

and things and the execution of such instruments as the Board may from time-to-

time deem expedient and appropriate in the furtherance of the business affairs and 

purposes of the Trust. The Board may adopt and, from time-to-time, amend or repeal 

by-laws, policies, or procedures for the conduct of the business of the Trust. Such 



 
  

 

 

16 

by-laws, policies, or procedures may, among other things, define the duties of the 

respective officers, agents, employees, and representatives of the Trust.  

 

3.7. Payment of Expenses  

a. The Board shall have full and complete power:  

i. To incur and pay any charges or expenses that, in the opinion of the 

Board, are necessary or incidental to or proper for carrying out any of the 

purposes of this Indenture;  

ii. To reimburse others for the payment therefore; and  

iii. To pay appropriate compensation or fees from the funds of the Trust 

to persons with whom the Board has contracted or transacted business.  

b. The members of the Board shall not be paid compensation for their general 

services as such. Board members may be reimbursed for expenses reasonably 

incurred on behalf of the Board and for attendance at Board meetings and 

other Trust related activities.  

 

3.8. Fiscal Year; Accounts - The Board shall have full and complete power 

to determine the fiscal year of the Trust and the method or form in which its accounts 

shall be kept and from time-to-time to change the fiscal year or method or form of 

accounts. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, the fiscal year of the Trust shall 

commence on January 1 and terminate on December 31.  

 

3.9. Power to Contract, Appoint, Retain, and Employ –  

a. The Board is responsible for the investments of the Trust consistent with the 

investment policy established in this Indenture and for the general 

administration of the business and affairs of the Trust conducted by officers, 

agents, employees, administrators, investment advisors, distributors, or 

independent contractors of the Trust. However, members of the Board are not 

required to devote their entire time to the business and affairs of the Trust or 

to personally conduct the routine business of the Trust. Consistent with their 

responsibilities, the Board may appoint, employ, retain, or contract on behalf 

of the Trust with any persons the Board may deem necessary or desirable for 

the transaction of the affairs of the Trust, to: 

i. Serve as Investment Advisor to the Trust;  

ii. Serve as Administrator of the Trust;  



 
  

 

 

17 

iii. Serve as Custodian for the Trust;  

iv. Furnish reports to the Trust and provide research, economic, and 

statistical data in connection with the Trust’s investments;  

v. Act as consultants, accountants, technical advisors, attorneys, 

brokers, underwriters, corporate fiduciaries, escrow agents, 

depositories, custodians, agents for collection, insurers or insurance 

agents, or in any other capacity deemed by the Board to be necessary 

or desirable;  

vi. Act as attorney-in-fact or agent in the purchase or sale or other 

disposition of investments and in the handling, prosecuting, or other 

enforcement of any lien or security securing investments; or  

vii. Assist in the performance of such other functions necessary in the 

management of the Trust.  

b. The same person may serve simultaneously as the Administrator and as the 

Investment Advisor, but no person serving as the Administrator or the 

Investment Advisor may serve as the Custodian. 

 

3.10. Insurance - The Board shall have full and complete power to purchase 

and pay for, entirely out of Trust property, insurance policies insuring the Trust, the 

Trustees, officers, employees, and agents of the Trust individually against all claims 

and liabilities of every nature arising by reason of holding or having held any such 

office or position or by reason of any action alleged to have been taken or omitted 

by the Trust or any such person, officer, employee, and agent including any action 

taken or omitted that may be determined to constitute negligence, whether or not 

the Trust would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability.  

 

3.11. Seal - The Board shall have full and complete power to adopt and use a 

seal for the Trust, but, unless otherwise required by the Board, it shall not be 

necessary for the seal to be placed on, and its absence shall not impair the validity 

of, any document, instrument, or other paper executed and delivered by or on behalf 

of the Trust.  

 

3.12. Remedies - Notwithstanding any provision in this Indenture, when the 

Board deems that there is a significant risk that an obligor to the Trust may default 

or is in default under the terms of any obligation to the Trust, the Board shall have 

full and complete power to pursue any remedies permitted by law that, in their sole 

judgment, are in the interests of the Trust, and the Board shall have full and complete 

power to enter into any investment, commitment, or obligation of the Trust resulting 



 
  

 

 

18 

from the pursuit of such remedies as are necessary or desirable to dispose of property 

acquired in the pursuit of such remedies.  

3.13. Information Statement - The Board shall have full and complete 

power to prepare, publish, and distribute an Information Statement regarding a 

Portfolio of the Trust and to amend or supplement the same from time-to-time. The 

Information Statement shall include but not be limited to the following:  

i. Credit standards for the Portfolio investments;  

ii. The safekeeping practices utilized for the Trust;  

iii. Maximum and minimum account sizes;  

iv. Maximum and minimum transaction sizes for deposits to and withdrawals 

from Participants’ accounts;  

v. Instructions for establishing accounts and making deposits to and 

withdrawals from Participants’ accounts;  

vi. The method for disclosure of administrative and associated costs incurred 

by the Trust;  

vii. Information regarding the purchase of surety or other bonds necessary to 

protect the Trust;  

viii. Whether or not the Portfolio will be managed to maintain a constant net 

asset value;  

 

3.14. Further Powers - The Board shall have full and complete power to take 

all such actions, do all such matters and things, and execute all such instruments as 

they deem necessary, proper, or desirable in order to carry out, promote, or advance 

the interests and purposes of the Trust although such actions, matters, or things are 

not herein specifically mentioned. Any determination as to what is in the best 

interests of the Trust made by the Board in good faith shall be conclusive. In 

construing the provisions of this Indenture, the presumption shall be in favor of a 

grant of power to the Board. 

 

Article 4 

Administrator 

4.1. Appointment - The Board may appoint one or more persons to serve as 

the Administrator of the Trust.  

 



 
  

 

 

19 

4.2. Duties of the Administrator - The duties of the Administrator shall be 

those set forth in an Agreement to be entered into between the Board on behalf of 

the Trust and the Administrator. Such duties may be modified by the Board from 

time-to-time. Any such agreement may authorize the Administrator to employ other 

persons to assist in the performance of its duties. Any such Agreement shall provide 

that it may be terminated without cause and without the payment of any penalty on 

45 days written notice. 

 

4.3. Successors - In the event that, at any time, the position of Administrator 

shall become vacant for any reason, the Board may appoint, employ, or contract with 

a successor. 

 

Article 5 

Custodian 

5.1. Appointment - The Board, on behalf of the Trust, shall employ a bank 

or trust company organized under the laws of the United States of America or the 

state of Colorado having an office in the state of Colorado and having a capital and 

surplus aggregating at least $250 million (or such other amount as set by the Board) 

as Custodian subject to such restrictions, limitations, and other requirements set 

forth in a Custodian Agreement to be entered into between the Board and the 

Custodian. Such Custodian must be certified as a qualified public depository as 

defined by the PDPA.  

 

5.2. Duties of Custodian - The Custodian shall have such duties as are set 

forth in the Custodian Agreement and the Pooling Act. Such Agreement shall also 

provide that it may be terminated at any time without cause and without the payment 

of any penalty on 45 days written notice.  

 

5.3. Successors - In the event that, at any time, the Custodian shall resign 

or shall be terminated the Board shall appoint a successor. 

 

Article 6 

Investment Advisor 

6.1. Appointment - The Board may appoint one or more persons to serve as 

the Investment Advisor of the Trust.  



 
  

 

 

20 

 

6.2. Duties of the Investment Advisor - The duties of the Investment 

Advisor shall be those set forth in an Agreement to be entered into between the Board 

on behalf of the Trust and the Investment Advisor. Such duties may be modified by 

the Board from time-to-time. The Board may authorize the Investment Advisor to 

effect purchases, sales, or exchanges of Trust Property on behalf of the Board or may 

authorize any officer, employee, agent, or member of the Board to effect such 

purchases, sales, or exchanges pursuant to recommendations of the Investment 

Advisor, all without further action by the Board. Any and all of such purchases, sales, 

and exchanges shall be deemed to be authorized by the Board. Any such Agreement 

may authorize the Investment Advisor to employ other persons to assist in the 

performance of the duties set forth in the Agreement. Any such Agreement shall also 

provide that it may be terminated without cause and without the payment of any 

penalty on 45 days written notice.  

 

6.3. Successors - In the event that, at any time, the position of Investment 

Advisor shall become vacant for any reason, the Board may appoint, employ, or 

contract with a successor. 

 

Article 7 

Investments 

7.1. Statement of Investment Policy and Objective - The Trust is the 

original local government investment pool trust and was established to provide 

safety, liquidity, service, and income to Colorado local governments.  

 

7.2. Restrictions Fundamental to the Trust - Notwithstanding anything in 

this Indenture that may be deemed to authorize the contrary, the Board: 

a. May not make any investment other than investments authorized by this 

Indenture, the Pooling Act, the Legal Investments Act, the PDPA, or any other 

applicable provisions of law as the same may be amended from time-to-time, 

provided, however, the Board and the Trust shall not be responsible for 

insuring compliance with any investment restrictions provided for in a 

Participant’s home rule charter or elsewhere;  

b. May not purchase any Permitted Investment that has a maturity date 

greater than allowed by the Legal Investments Act or the PDPA.  

c. May not borrow money or incur indebtedness whether or not the proceeds 

thereof are intended to be used to purchase Permitted Investments except as 



 
  

 

 

21 

a temporary measure to facilitate withdrawal requests that might otherwise 

require unscheduled dispositions of portfolio investments and only as and to 

the extent permitted by law;  

d. May not hold or provide for the custody of any Trust Property in a manner 

not authorized by law or by any institution or person not authorized by law; 

and  

e. May not buy securities from or sell securities to the Administrator, the 

Investment Advisor, the Custodian, or any member of the Board or any 

affiliate, officer, director, employee, or agent of any of them. 

 

7.3. Permitted Investments - The Board shall have full and complete power:  

a. to conduct, operate, and provide investment programs for the pooling of 

surplus funds of local governments to take advantage of short-term 

investments and maximize net interest earnings; and  

b. for such consideration as it may deem proper and as may be required by 

law, to deposit, to subscribe for, invest in, assign, transfer, exchange, 

distribute, and otherwise deal in or dispose of investment instruments that are 

permitted under the PDPA or the Legal Investments Act;  

c. to contract for and enter into agreements with respect to the purchase and 

sale of investments permitted under the Legal Investments Act; and  

d. to provide for the portfolio concentrations permitted by the Legal 

Investments Act for each type of security. 

 

7.4. Disposition of Assets - The Board shall have full and complete power 

to sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of any and all Trust Property free and clear of 

any and all trusts and restrictions at public or private sale, for cash or on terms, with 

or without advertisement, and subject to such restrictions, stipulations, agreements, 

and reservations as they shall deem proper and to execute and deliver any deed, 

power, assignment, bill of sale, or other instrument in connection with the foregoing 

including giving consents and making contracts relating to Trust Property or its use.  

 

7.5. Collection - The Board shall have full and complete power:  

i. to collect, sue for, receive, and receipt for all sums of money or other 

property due to the Trust;  

ii. to consent to extensions of the time for payment or to the renewal of any 

securities, investments, or obligations;  



 
  

 

 

22 

iii. to engage or intervene in, prosecute, defend, compromise, abandon or 

adjust by arbitration or otherwise any actions, suits, proceedings, disputes, 

claims, demands, or things relating to the Trust Property;  

iv. to foreclose any collateral, security, or instrument securing any 

investments, notes, bills, bonds, obligations, or contracts by virtue of which 

any sums of money are owed to the Trust;  

v. to exercise any power of sale held by them and to convey good title 

thereunder free of any and all trusts and in connection with any such 

foreclosure or sale to purchase or otherwise acquire title to any property; 

vi. to be parties to reorganization and to transfer to and deposit with any 

corporation, committee, voting trustee, or other person, any securities, 

investments or obligations of any person who form a part of the Trust Property 

for the purpose of such reorganization or otherwise;  

vii. to participate in any arrangement for enforcing or protecting the interests 

of the Trust as the owner or holder of such securities, investments, or 

obligations and to pay any assessment levied in connection with such 

reorganization or arrangement;  

viii. to extend the time (with or without security) for payment or delivery of 

any debts or property and to execute and enter into release, agreements, and 

other instruments; and  

ix. to pay or satisfy any debts or claims upon any evidence that the Board shall 

deem sufficient. 

 

7.6. Deposits - Subject to the provisions of the PDPA, the Board shall have 

full and complete power to deposit any moneys or funds included in the Trust Property 

with an eligible public depository. Such deposits are to be subject to withdrawal in 

such manner as the Board may determine, and the Board shall have no responsibility 

for any loss that may occur by reason of the failure of the bank, trust company, or 

other banking institution with which the moneys, investments, or securities have 

been deposited. During the term of any such deposit, each such bank, trust company, 

or other banking institution shall comply, with respect to such deposit, with all 

applicable requirements of all applicable laws including but not limited to the PDPA.  

 

7.7. Valuation - The Board shall have full and complete power to determine, 

in good faith, conclusively the value of any of the Trust Property and to revalue the 

Trust Property.  

 



 
  

 

 

23 

7.8. Amendment of Restrictions - The restrictions set forth in Sections 7.2 

and 7.3 hereof are fundamental to the operation and activities of the Trust and may 

not be changed without the affirmative vote of a majority of the Participants except 

that such restrictions may be changed by the Board so as to make them more 

restrictive when necessary to conform the investment program and activities of the 

Trust to the laws of the state of Colorado and the United States of America as they 

may from time-to-time be amended. 

 

Article 8 

Limitations of Liability 

8.1. Liability to the Trust or to the Participants - No Trustee, officer, or 

employee of the Trust shall be liable to the Trust or to any Participant, member of 

the Board, officer, employee, advisor, consultant, or agent of the Trust for any action 

or failure to act (including without limitation the failure to compel in any way any 

former or acting member of the Board to redress any breach of trust) except for bad 

faith, willful misfeasance, gross negligence, or reckless disregard of his or her duties. 

Any agreements with the Administrator, the Custodian, or the Investment Advisor 

shall provide for the personal liability of the Administrator, the Custodian, and the 

Investment Advisor, as the case may be, for a failure to take reasonable measures 

to restrict investments of Trust Property to those permitted by law and this Indenture 

of Trust. The provisions of this Section shall not limit the liability of any agent 

(including, without limitation, the Administrator, the Custodian, or the Investment 

Advisor) with respect to any breach of any contract between the agent and the Board. 

 

8.2. Indemnification  

a. The Trust shall indemnify, to the extent of the earnings of the Trust and the 

proceeds of any insurance policies, each of the Trustees and such officers or 

employees as designated by the Board to receive such indemnification, against 

all liabilities and expenses (including, without limitation, amounts paid in 

satisfaction of judgments, in compromise or as fines and penalties, and counsel 

fees) reasonably incurred in connection with the defense or disposition of any 

action, suit, or other proceeding, whether civil or criminal, in which the 

indemnified person may be involved or with which the indemnified person may 

be threatened, while in office or thereafter, by reason of being or having been 

a Trustee, officer, or employee except as to any matter as to which the 

indemnified person shall have been adjudicated to have acted in bad faith or 

with willful misfeasance or reckless disregard of his or her duties or gross 

negligence or, in the case of the Investment Advisor or the Administrator, in 

violation of the restrictions on investments of the Trust Property.  



 
  

 

 

24 

b. The provisions of this Section shall not be construed to permit the 

indemnification of any agent of the Trust with respect to any breach of a 

contract between the agent and the Board.  

c. As to any matter disposed of by a compromise payment by the Board or any 

Trustee, officer, employee, advisor, consultant, or agent pursuant to a consent 

decree or otherwise, no indemnification either for said payment or for any 

other expense shall be provided unless the Board, after consultation with 

counsel and other experts deemed necessary, has determined that such 

compromise payment is or was in the best interests of the Trust.  

d. No Participant shall be liable to any person with respect to any claim for 

indemnity or reimbursement and any Trustee, officer, employee, advisor, 

consultant, or agent may satisfy any right to indemnity or reimbursement 

granted herein or to which they may be otherwise entitled only out of the 

earnings on the Trust. The Board may make advance payments in connection 

with indemnification provided that the person indemnified shall have given a 

written undertaking to reimburse the Trust in the event that it is subsequently 

determined that the person is not entitled to such indemnification.  

e. To the extent permitted by applicable laws, the Board shall also have full 

and complete power to indemnify or enter into agreements with respect to 

indemnification with any other person with whom the Trust has dealings. 

 

8.3. Surety Bonds - No Trustee shall, as such, be obligated to give any 

bond or surety or other security for the performance of any of his or her duties.  

 

8.4. Recitals - Any written instrument creating an obligation of the Trust 

shall be conclusively taken to have been executed by the Trustee, officer, 

employee, or agent of the Trust only in his or her capacity as Trustee, officer, 

employee, or agent of the Trust. Any written instrument creating an obligation of 

the Trust is not personally binding upon nor shall resort be had to the property of 

any Trustee, Participant, Designee, officer, employee, or agent of the Trust and 

only the Trust Property or a specific portion thereof shall be bound.  

 

8.5. Reliance on Experts - Each Trustee and each officer, employee, or 

agent of the Trust shall, in the performance of his or her duties, be fully and 

completely justified and protected with regard to any act or failure to act resulting 

from reliance in good faith upon the records of the Trust, upon an opinion of 

counsel or upon reports made to the Trust by any of its officers or employees or 

by the Administrator, the Custodian, the Investment Advisor, accountants, 



 
  

 

 

25 

appraisers, or other experts or consultants selected by the Board or officers of 

the Trust.  

 

8.6. Liability Insurance - At all times, the Board shall maintain insurance 

for the protection of the Trust Property, the Trustees, Participants, Designees, 

officers, employees, and agents of the Trust in such amount as the Board shall 

deem adequate to cover all foreseeable tort and contract liability to the extent 

available at reasonable rates. 

 

Article 9 

Interests of Participants 

9.1. General - The Board, in its discretion, may authorize the division of the 

Trust Property into one or more Portfolios.  The beneficial interests of the Participants 

hereunder in a Portfolio and the earnings thereon shall, for convenience of reference, 

be divided into Shares. Shares shall be used as units to measure the proportionate 

allocation to the respective Participants of the beneficial interests of a Portfolio. The 

number of Shares that may be used to measure and represent the proportionate 

allocation of beneficial interests among the Participants in a Portfolio is unlimited. All 

Shares in a Portfolio shall be of one class representing equal distribution, liquidation, 

and other rights. The beneficial interests measured by the Shares shall not entitle a 

Participant to preference, preemptive, appraisal, conversion, or exchange rights of 

any kind with respect to the Trust or the Trust Property held in the applicable 

Portfolio. Title to the Trust Property held in the applicable Portfolio of every 

description is vested in the Trust on behalf of and for the beneficial interests of the 

Participants holding Shares in a Portfolio. The Participants shall have no interest in 

the Trust Property held in the applicable Portfolio other than the beneficial interests 

conferred hereby and measured by their Shares, and they shall have no right to call 

for any partition or division of any property, profits, rights, or interests of the Trust 

nor can they be called upon to Shares or assume any losses of the Trust or suffer an 

assessment of any kind by virtue of the allocation of Shares to them.  The Board shall 

adopt investment policies for each Portfolio which must be consistent with the 

investment restrictions contained herein. The Board may amend the investment 

policy for a Portfolio from time-to-time which amendment shall not take effect until 

after 30 days prior written notice to the Participants. 

 

9.2. Allocation of Shares  

a. In its discretion, the Board may from time-to-time allocate Shares in 

addition to the then allocated Shares to such Participant for such amount and 



 
  

 

 

26 

such type of consideration (including without limitation income from the 

investment of Trust Property held in the applicable Portfolio) at such time(s) 

(including without limitation each business day in accordance with the 

maintenance of a constant net asset value per Shares as set forth in this 

Indenture), and on such terms as the Board may deem best. In connection 

with any allocation of Shares, the Board may allocate fractional Shares. From 

time-to-time, the Board may adjust the total number of Shares allocated 

without thereby changing the proportionate beneficial interests in the Trust 

Property held in the applicable Portfolio. Reductions or increases in the number 

of allocated Shares may be made in order to maintain a constant net asset 

value per Shares as set forth in Section 12.2. Shares shall be allocated and 

redeemed as one hundredths (1/100ths) of a Shares or any multiple thereof.  

b. Shares may be allocated only to a Participant of the Trust in accordance 

with this Indenture. Any Participant may establish more than one account 

within the Trust for such Participant’s convenience.  

c. The minimum amount of funds that may be maintained in an account in a 

Portfolio by a Participant at any one time shall be $1.00, and there shall be no 

limit on the maximum that may be maintained by a Participant in any account 

provided that the Board may, by resolution, change the minimum or set a 

maximum.  

d. Whenever the balance in a Participant’s account is less than the minimum, 

the Board may redeem the Shares and close the account provided that 30 days 

prior notice is given to the Participant. If the Board changes the minimum total 

investment to an amount greater than the investment of any Participant at the 

time that such change becomes effective, the investment of such Participant 

shall not be redeemed without such Participant’s consent.  

 

9.3. Evidence of Share Allocation - Evidence of Shares allocation shall be 

reflected in the records of the Trust, and the Trust shall not be required to issue 

certificates as evidence of Shares allocation.  

 

9.4. Redemption to Maintain Constant Net Asset Value - The Shares of 

the Trust shall be subject to redemption pursuant to the procedure for reduction of 

outstanding Shares in order to maintain the constant net asset value per Shares. 

 

9.5. Redemptions - Payments by the Trust to Participants, and the reduction 

of Shares resulting therefrom, are referred to in this Indenture as redemptions for 

convenience. Any and all allocated Shares may be redeemed at the option of the 

Participant upon and subject to the terms and conditions provided in this Indenture 



 
  

 

 

27 

and any investment policy for a Portfolio adopted by the Board. The Trust shall, upon 

application of any Participant, promptly redeem from such Participant allocated 

Shares for an amount per Shares equivalent to the proportional interest in the net 

assets of the Trust at the time of the redemption. The procedures for effecting 

redemption shall be prescribed by the Board provided, however, that such procedures 

shall not be structured so as to substantially and materially restrict the ability of the 

Participants to withdraw funds from the Trust.  

 

9.6. Suspension of Redemption; Postponement of Payment  

a. Each Participant, by its adoption of this Indenture, agrees that the Board 

may, without the necessity of a formal meeting of the Board, temporarily 

suspend the right of redemption or postpone the date of payment for redeemed 

Shares for the whole or any part of any period: 

i. During which there shall have occurred any state of war, national 

emergency, banking moratorium, or suspension of payments by banks 

in the state of Colorado or any general suspension of trading or 

limitation of prices on the New York Stock Exchange or American Stock 

Exchange (other than customary weekend and holiday closing) or;  

ii. During which any financial emergency when or if disposal by the Trust 

of Trust Property held in the applicable Portfolio is not reasonably 

practicable because of the substantial losses that might be incurred or 

it is not reasonably practicable for the Trust fairly to determine the value 

of its assets.  

b. Such suspension or postponement shall not alter or affect a Participant’s 

beneficial interests hereunder.  

c. Such suspension of payment shall take effect at such time as the Board shall 

specify, and thereafter there shall be no right of redemption or payment until 

the Board shall declare the suspension or postponement at an end.  

d. The suspension or postponement shall terminate on the first day on which 

the period specified in (a) above shall have expired (as to which the 

determination of the Board shall be conclusive).  

e. In the case of a suspension of the right of redemption or a postponement of 

payment for redeemed Shares, a Participant may either:  

i. Withdraw its request for redemption; or  

ii. Receive payment based on the net asset value existing after the 

termination of the suspension. 

 



 
  

 

 

28 

9.7. Minimum Redemption - There shall be a minimum of one Share that 

may be redeemed at any one time at the option of a Participant.  

 

9.8. Defective Redemption Requests - In the event that a Participant shall 

submit a request for the redemption of a greater number of Shares than are then 

allocated to such Participant, such request shall not be honored. 

 

Article 10 

Record of Shares 

10.1. Share Records - The Trust shall maintain records that shall contain:  

i. The names and addresses of the Participants;  

ii. The number of Shares representing their respective beneficial interests 

hereunder; and  

iii. A record of all allocations and redemptions. Such records shall be conclusive 

as to the identity of the Participants to which Shares are allocated. Only 

Participants whose allocation of Shares is recorded in the Trust records shall 

be entitled to receive distributions with respect to Shares or otherwise to 

exercise or enjoy the rights and benefits related to the beneficial interests 

represented by the Shares. No Participant shall be entitled to receive any 

distribution nor to have notices given to it until it has given its appropriate 

address to the Trust.  

 

10.2. Maintenance of Records - The Administrator, or such other person 

appointed by the Board, shall record the allocations of Shares in the records of the 

Trust.  

 

10.3. Owner of Record - No person becoming entitled to any Shares in 

consequence of the bankruptcy or insolvency of any Participant or otherwise by 

operation of law shall be recorded as the Participant to which such Shares are 

allocated unless such person is otherwise qualified to become a Participant. If not 

qualified, such person shall present proof of entitlement to the Board and if the Board, 

in its sole discretion, deems appropriate then be entitled to the redemption value of 

the Shares.  

 



 
  

 

 

29 

10.4. No Transfer of Shares - The beneficial interests measured by the 

Shares shall not be transferable, in whole or in part, other than to the Trust itself for 

purposes of redemption. However, Shares may be redeemed from one Participant’s 

account and the proceeds deposited directly into another Participant’s account upon 

instructions from the Designees of the respective Participants. 

 

10.5. Limitation of Responsibility - The Board shall not, nor shall the 

Participants or any officer or other agent of the Trust, be bound to determine the 

existence of any trust, express, implied or constructive, or of any charge, pledge, or 

equity to which any of the Shares or any interest therein are subject or to ascertain 

or inquire whether any redemption of any such Shares by any Participant or its 

representatives is authorized by such trust, charge, pledge or equity, or to recognize 

any person as having any interest therein except the Participant recorded as the 

Participant to which such Shares are allocated. The receipt of moneys by the 

Participant in whose name any Shares is recorded or by the duly authorized agent of 

such Participant shall be a sufficient discharge for all moneys payable or deliverable 

in respect of such Shares and from all responsibility to see the proper application 

thereof.  

 

10.6. Notices - Any and all notices to which Participants hereunder may be 

entitled and any and all communications shall be deemed duly served or given if 

electronically or mailed, postage prepaid, addressed to Participants of record at the 

electronic or physical mailing addresses recorded in the records of the Trust. 

 

Article 11 

Trustees and Officers 

11.1. Number and Qualification  

a. The number of Trustees shall be twelve. Each Trustee shall be a Designee of 

Participant. In the event of a vacancy, the Trustees continuing in office, regardless 

of their number, shall have all the powers granted to the Board and shall discharge 

all the duties imposed upon the Board by this Indenture. Trustees may succeed 

themselves in office. The election of any Trustee (other than an individual who was 

serving as a Trustee immediately prior to such election) shall not become effective 

unless and until such person has agreed in writing to serve as a Trustee and to be 

bound by the terms of this Indenture.  

b. At least one but no more than four Trustees shall be a Designee from the following 

categories of local governments:  



 
  

 

 

30 

i. Counties;   

ii. Cities and towns;    

iii. School districts;    

iv. Special districts;    

v. Other public entities.  

c. The Board shall be the sole judge of the election and qualification of its members.  

d. No Trustee shall be disqualified merely because of a change of status that results 

in the Trustee being the Designee of a different category of local government. 

e. The Board may, at any time and from time-to-time, increase the number of 

members of the Board by up to three Trustees. In the event the Board approves such 

an increase, the Board shall appoint qualified Designees to a term not to exceed three 

years. For purposes of any such appointment, the maximums imposed by Section 

11.1.a. and 11.1.b. of the Trust Indenture shall not apply.  

 

11.2. Term - The term of office for a Trustee shall be three years and shall 

begin at the meeting following the election. The terms shall be fixed so that four 

terms expire annually.  

 

11.3. Election  

a. Prior to the annual vote of the Participants for the election of Trustees, the 

Board shall prepare a ballot. The ballot shall contain sufficient candidates to 

assure that each category of local government will be represented by at least 

one but no more than four Trustees immediately following the election.  

b. The ballot shall be prepared in such a manner as to encourage the 

Participants to vote for a candidate from any unrepresented category.  

c. The ballot shall inform the Participants that the candidate from any 

unrepresented category receiving the highest number of votes will be elected 

and that the remaining positions will be filled by the candidates receiving the 

highest number of votes regardless of category unless the vote would result in 

any category having more than four Trustees.  

d. At the next meeting following the election, the Board shall review the 

election returns and declare the appropriate candidates elected.  

 



 
  

 

 

31 

11.4. Resignation and Removal - Any Trustee may resign by tendering a 

signed or oral resignation to any officer. The resignation shall be effective upon tender 

or at a later date according to the terms of the notice. Any Trustee may be removed 

for good cause by the action of at least two-thirds of the remaining Trustees.  

 

11.5. Vacancies  

a. A vacancy shall occur in the event of death, resignation, bankruptcy, 

adjudicated incompetence or other incapacity to exercise the duties of the 

office, or removal of a Trustee. If a Trustee shall no longer be the Designee of 

a Participant, such person shall no longer be a Trustee and a vacancy will be 

deemed to have occurred. If a local government fails to qualify as a Participant 

for a period of 30 days, any Designee of that local government who is a Trustee 

shall no longer qualify as a Trustee and a vacancy will be deemed to have 

occurred. 

b. No vacancy shall operate to annul this Indenture or to revoke any existing 

agency created pursuant to the terms of this Indenture. In the case of a 

vacancy, a majority of the Board continuing in office acting by resolution may 

fill such vacancy. Any such appointment shall not become effective, however, 

until the individual named in the resolution of appointment has agreed in 

writing to serve as a Trustee and to be bound by the terms of this Indenture. 

 

11.6. Officers - The Board shall annually elect, from among its members, a 

Chairman, a Vice Chairman, a Secretary, and a Treasurer who shall have such duties 

as the Board shall deem advisable and appropriate. The Board may also elect or 

appoint one or more Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers and such other 

officers or agents who shall have such powers, duties, and responsibilities as the 

Board may deem to be advisable and appropriate. No person may hold more than 

one office at any one time.  

 

11.7. Meetings  

a. Meetings of the Board shall be held from time-to-time upon the call of the 

Chairman, the Vice Chairman, the Secretary, or any five Trustees. Regular 

meetings of the Board may be held at a time and place fixed by the by-laws 

or by resolution of the Board but shall be held at least semi-annually. Notice 

of any other meeting shall be mailed or otherwise given not less than 48 hours 

before the meeting but may be waived in writing by any Trustee either before 

or after such meeting. Any notice required by Part 4, Article 6, Title 24 C.R.S. 

shall also be given. The attendance of a Trustee at a meeting shall constitute 

a waiver of notice of such meeting except where a Trustee attends a meeting 



 
  

 

 

32 

for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business on the 

ground that the meeting has not been lawfully called or convened.  

b. Any notice required by Part 4, Article 6, Title 24 C.R.S. shall also be given.  

c. A quorum for all meetings of the Board shall be a majority of the Trustees.  

d. Any action of the Board may be taken at a meeting by vote of a majority of 

the Trustees present providing that a quorum is present. Board members may 

also participate in a meeting by telephone or by computer conferencing if each 

Trustee is able to communicate with each of the other Trustees present.  

e. With respect to actions of the Board and any committee thereof, Trustees 

who have an interest in any matter before the Board or any committee may 

be counted for quorum purposes. Such Trustee shall not be entitled to vote on 

any such matter. 

 

Article 12 

Determination of Net Asset Value and Net Income; Distributions to 

Participants 

 

12.1. Net Asset Value - The net asset value of each allocated Share of a 

Portfolio of the Trust shall be determined once on each business day at such time as 

the Board by resolution may determine. The method of determining net asset value 

shall be established by the Board and may be set forth in the Information Statement.  

 

12.2. Constant Net Asset Value; Reduction of Allocated Shares  

a. The Board shall determine the net income (loss) of a Portfolio of the Trust 

once on each business day and such net income (loss) shall be credited 

proportionately to the accounts of the Participants in such manner that the net 

asset value per Shares of the applicable Portfolio of the Trust shall remain at 

$1.00. Any change in the constant dollar value shall be made on a pro rata 

basis by increasing or reducing the number of each Participant’s Shares. The 

method used for the determination of the net income of the Trust and the 

crediting thereof proportionately to the respective accounts of the Participants 

shall be determined by the Board and may be set forth in the Information 

Statement. The duty to make the daily calculations may be delegated by the 

Board to the Administrator, the Custodian, the Investment Advisor, or such 

other person as the Board by resolution may designate. Fluctuations in value 

will be reflected in the number of Shares allocated to each Participant. Each 

Participant will be deemed to have agreed to such reduction by its investment 



 
  

 

 

33 

in the Trust and its adoption of this Indenture. The purpose of the foregoing 

procedure is to permit the net asset value per Shares of the Trust to be 

maintained at $1.00.  

b. The Board may discontinue or amend the practice of attempting to maintain 

the net asset value per Shares at a constant dollar amount at any time and 

such modification shall be evidenced by notice to the Participants. 

c.  Nothing in this Section prohibits the Board from establishing one or more 

Portfolios pursuant to Section 9.1 which Portfolio will not be managed to 

maintain a constant net asset value as described in this Section provided that 

Participants that invest in such Portfolio are provided notice thereof prior to 

such investment.  

 

12.3.  Retained Reserves - The Board may retain from earnings and profits 

such amounts as they may deem necessary to pay the debts and expenses of the 

Trust and to meet other obligations of the Trust, and the Board shall also have the 

power to establish from earnings and profits such reasonable reserves as they believe 

may be necessary or desirable. 

 

Article 13 

Recording of Indenture  

13.1. Recording - This Indenture and any amendment hereto may be filed, 

recorded, or lodged as a document of public record in such place or places and with 

such official or officials as the Board may deem appropriate. Each amendment so 

filed, recorded, or lodged shall be accompanied by a resolution of the Board reflecting 

the amendment and its effective date. 

 

Article 14 

Amendment of Termination of Trust; Duration of Trust 

 

14.1. Amendment or Termination  

a. The provisions of this Indenture may be amended or altered, or the Trust 

may be terminated, by a vote of the Participants pursuant to Article II hereof. 

The Board may, from time-to-time by a two-thirds vote of the Trustees and 

after 45 days prior written notice to the Participants, amend or alter the 

provisions of the Indenture without the vote or assent of the Participants, that 



 
  

 

 

34 

the Board, in good faith deems necessary or convenient for the administration 

and operation of the Trust or to the extent deemed by the Board in good faith 

to be necessary to conform this Indenture to the requirements of applicable 

laws or regulations or any interpretation thereof by a court or other 

governmental agency of competent jurisdiction, but the Board shall not be 

liable for failing so to do. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no amendment may 

be made pursuant to this Section that would:  

i. Change any rights with respect to any allocated Shares of the Trust 

by reducing the amount payable thereon upon liquidation of the Trust 

or that would diminish or eliminate any voting rights of the Participants 

except with the vote or written consent of two-thirds of the Participants 

entitled to vote thereon;  

ii. Cause any of the investment restrictions contained herein to be less 

restrictive without the affirmative vote of a majority of the Participants;  

iii. Change the limitations on personal liability of the Participants and 

Trustees; or  

iv. Change the prohibition of assessments upon Participants.  

b. A certification signed by a majority of the Board setting forth an amendment 

and reciting that it was duly adopted by the Participants or by the Board or a 

copy of the Indenture, as amended, executed by a majority of the Board shall 

be conclusive evidence of such amendment.  

c. Upon the termination of the Trust:  

i. The Trust shall carry on no business except for the purpose of 

terminating the Trust;  

ii. The Board shall proceed to terminate the Trust, and all of the powers 

of the Board under this Indenture shall continue until the affairs of the 

Trust have been terminated including without limitation the power to 

fulfill or discharge the contracts of the Trust, collect its assets, sell, 

convey, assign, exchange, transfer, or otherwise dispose of all or any 

part of the remaining Trust Property to one or more persons at public or 

private sale for consideration that may consist in whole or in part of 

cash, securities, or other property of any kind, discharge or pay its 

liabilities and do all other acts appropriate to liquidate its assets; 

provided, however, that any sale, conveyance, assignment, exchange, 

transfer, or other disposition of all or substantially all of the Trust 

Property shall require approval of the principal terms of the transaction 

and the nature and amount of the consideration by affirmative vote of 

not less than a majority of the Board; and  



 
  

 

 

35 

iii. After paying or adequately providing for the payment of all liabilities 

and upon receipt of such releases, indemnities, and refunding 

agreements as they deem necessary for their protection, the Board may 

distribute the remaining Trust Property, in cash or in kind or partly in 

each, among the Participants according to their respective proportionate 

allocation of Shares.  

d. Upon termination of the Trust and distribution to the Participants as herein 

provided, a majority of the Board shall execute and lodge among the records 

of the Trust an instrument in writing setting forth the fact of such termination, 

and the Board shall thereupon be discharged from all further liabilities and 

duties hereunder, and the right, title, and interest of all Participants shall cease 

and be canceled and discharged.  

 

14.2. Power to Effect Reorganization - If permitted by applicable law, 

including without limitation, the Pooling Act, the Legal Investments Act and the PDPA, 

the Board, by vote or written approval of a majority of the Board, may select, or 

direct the organization of, a corporation, association, trust, or other person with 

which the Trust may merge, or which shall take over the Trust Property and carry on 

the affairs of the Trust, and after receiving an affirmative vote of not less than a 

majority of the Participants, the Board may effect such merger or may sell, convey, 

and transfer the Trust Property to any such corporation, association, trust, or other 

person in exchange for cash or Shares or securities thereof, or beneficial interests 

therein with the assumption by such transferee of the liabilities of the Trust; and 

thereupon the Board shall terminate the Trust and deliver such cash, Shares, 

securities, or beneficial interests ratable among the Participants of this Trust in 

redemption of their Shares.    

 

14.3. Duration - The Trust shall continue in existence in perpetuity, subject 

in all respects to the provisions of this Indenture. 

 

Article 15 

Miscellaneous 

15.1. Governing Law - This Indenture is executed and delivered in the state 

of Colorado and with reference to the laws thereof and the rights of all parties and 

the validity, construction, and effect of every provision hereof shall be subject to and 

construed according to the laws of the state of Colorado.  

 



 
  

 

 

36 

15.2. Counterparts - This Indenture may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which when so executed shall be deemed to be an original, and 

such counterparts together shall constitute but one and the same instrument that 

shall be sufficiently evidenced by any such original counterpart.  

 

15.3. Reliance by Third Parties - Any certificate executed by an individual 

who, according to the records of the Trust, appears to be a Trustee hereunder or the 

Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Secretary, or Treasurer of the Trust certifying to: 

a. The number or identity of the Board or Participants;  

b. The due authorization of the execution of any instrument or writing;  

c. The form of any vote passed at a meeting of the Board or by the Participants;  

d. The fact that the number of the Board or Participants present at any meeting 

or executing any written instruments satisfies the requirements of this 

Indenture;  

e. The form of any by-laws, policies, or procedures adopted by the Board;  

f. The identity of any officers elected by the Board; or  

g. The existence of any fact or facts that in any manner relate to the affairs of 

the Trust shall be conclusive evidence as to the matters so certified in favor of 

any person dealing with the Board or the Trust and their successors.  

 

15.4. Provisions in Conflict with Law - The provisions of this Indenture are 

severable and if the Board shall determine with the advice of counsel that any one or 

more of such provisions (the Conflicting Provisions) are in conflict with applicable 

Federal or Colorado laws, the Conflicting Provisions shall be deemed never to have 

constituted a part of this Indenture. Such a determination by the Board shall not 

affect or impair any of the remaining provisions of this Indenture or render invalid or 

improper any action taken or omitted (including but not limited to the election of the 

Board) prior to such determination.  

 

15.5. Adoption by Local Governments and Election to Become a 

Participant; Resignation of Participants  

a. Any local government may become a Participant of this Trust by:  

i. Taking any appropriate official action to adopt this Indenture; and  

ii. Furnishing the Board with satisfactory evidence that such official 

action has been taken.  



 
  

 

 

37 

b. A copy of this Indenture may be adopted by executing a written instrument 

of adoption in such form as may be prescribed by the Board. Delivering an 

acknowledged copy of such instrument shall constitute satisfactory evidence 

of the adoption.  

c. Any Participant may resign and withdraw from the Trust by requesting the 

redemption of all Shares then held by it. Such resignation and withdrawal shall 

become effective upon withdrawal of the funds. No resignation and withdrawal 

by a Participant shall operate to annul this Indenture or terminate the 

existence of the Trust.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, pursuant to the authority granted by the Pooling Act, 

this Amended and Restated Indenture of Trust shall take and come into full force and 

effect as of the day first above written. 

  



 
  

 

 

38 

 

Contact Information  

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850  

Denver, CO 80202 

Phone: (877) 311-0219  

Fax: (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 

www.colotrust.com 

 

 





Regist rat ion Packet

Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust 



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 
T (877) 311-0219 
F (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 
www.colotrust.com 

09/2023   

Page 1 
  

Welcome to COLOTRUST  

 
Thank you for choosing COLOTRUST! 

 

This packet contains all the materials necessary to set up your COLOTRUST account(s). If you have any 

questions about the registration process or about your COLOTRUST account(s), please do not hesitate to 

contact us. The COLOTRUST Client Service team can be reached on any business day from 7:30 a.m. to 

4:00 p.m. MT by phone at (877) 311-0219 or by email at clientservices@colotrust.com.  

 

COLOTRUST is not a bank. An investment in COLOTRUST is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 

or any other government agency. Although COLOTRUST PRIME and COLOTRUST PLUS+ seek to preserve the value of your 

investment at $1.00 per share, they cannot guarantee it will do so. Please read the applicable COLOTRUST Information Statements 

carefully before making an investment decision. Many factors affect performance including changes in market conditions and interest 

rates and in response to other economic, political, or financial developments. Investment involves risk including the possible loss of 

principal. No assurance can be given that the performance objectives of a given strategy will be achieved. Past performance is no 

guarantee of future results. Any financial and/or investment decision may incur losses. 

 

  



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 
T (877) 311-0219 
F (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 
www.colotrust.com 

09/2023   

Page 2 
  

Registration Procedures 

 
To join COLOTRUST, please complete the following: 
 
1) Read the Indenture of Trust (you may access a copy from the Document Center on 

www.colotrust.com). 

 
2) Pass a resolution authorizing participation in COLOTRUST (model resolution available on page 3). 

 
3) Complete the Trust Registration (page 4). 

 
4) Complete the Authorized Contacts Form (page 5/6). 

 
5) Complete the PRIME and PLUS+ Accounts to be Established Form; you may open as many accounts 

as you wish (page 7). 

6) Should you be interested in participating in COLOTRUST EDGE, complete the EDGE Participant 

Acknowledgement Form (page 8), and the EDGE Accounts to be Established Form; you may open 

as many accounts as you wish (page 9).  

 
7) Keep the original forms for your records and send the completed packet to the COLOTRUST Client 

Service team by fax (877) 311-0220 or by email clientservices@colotrust.com. 

 
 
Questions? Please contact us; we would love to hear from you! 
 
 
 COLOTRUST Client Service Team 

 T (877) 311-0219 

 clientservices@colotrust.com 

 
Through the COLOTRUST website, www.colotrust.com, Participants will be regularly informed of important 

program information, holidays, upcoming Board meetings, Participant events, conferences, and more. Board 

of Trustee meetings, which are open to the public, are generally held quarterly and discuss relevant issues 

to the governance and operations of the COLOTRUST program. 

  



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 
T (877) 311-0219 
F (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 
www.colotrust.com 

09/2023   

Page 3 
  

Model Resolution 

 

A resolution authorizing        to join with other local governments as a 

Participant in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (the Trust) to pool funds for investment. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Part 7, Article 24 (C.R.S.), it is lawful for any local government to pool any moneys in 

its treasury that are not immediately required to be disbursed with the same such moneys in the treasury of any 

other local government in order to take advantage of short-term investments and maximize net interest earnings; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Trust is a statutory trust formed under the laws of the state of Colorado in accordance with 

the provisions of Parts 6 and 7, Article 24 and Articles 10.5 and 47 of Title 11 of the Colorado Revised Statutes 

regarding the investing, pooling for investment, and protection of public funds; and 

WHEREAS,         desires to become a Participant in the Trust. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby RESOLVED as follows: 

1)        hereby approves, adopts, and thereby joins as a 

Participant with other local governments pursuant to Part 7, Article 75, Title 24 of the Colorado 

Revised Statutes that certain Amended and Restated Indenture of Trust entitled the Colorado Liquid 

Government Asset Trust dated May 1, 2021 as amended from time to time, the terms of which are 

incorporated herein by this reference and a copy of which shall be filed with the minutes of the 

meeting at which this Resolution was adopted; and  

2) The Designee and Authorized Signatories are those persons listed on the Trust Registration Form 

attached hereto and incorporated herein. The Authorized Signatories are authorized by the 

Participant to direct the investment of such Participants’ investment funds. 

3) The Designee and Authorized Signatories may be changed from time to time by written notice to 

COLOTRUST; and 

4) The Trust currently has three investment portfolios COLOTRUST PRIME, COLOTRUST PLUS+, and 

COLOTRUST EDGE. Prior to investing in any of the portfolios offered by the Trust, Participants are 

encouraged to review the COLOTRUST Information Statements and Investment Policies for each 

portfolio.  

 The undersigned hereby certifies that         has enacted: 

 This Resolution, or 
 
 Another form of Resolution, a copy of which is enclosed and that such Resolution is a true and correct 
copy of the original which is in my possession. 

 
 
    

Authorized Signature Date  Printed Name 



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 
T (877) 311-0219 
F (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 
www.colotrust.com 

09/2023   

Page 4 
  

Trust Registration 
 

Entity Information 

Local Government Name (Participant)    

Entity Type:  City/Town County School District  Special District  

 Other (Specify)      

Mailing Address    

City     Zip     County    

Physical Address (if different than above)   

City     Zip     County    

Tax ID     Fiscal Year End Date (Month/Day)    

 
I authorize COLOTRUST and its transfer agent and administrator to act on any instructions believed to be genuine for any service authorized on this form. 
I agree that COLOTRUST, its transfer agent, and administrator, Public Trust Advisors LLC, and their respective officers, directors, affiliates, representatives, 
employees and agents (each an “Indemnified Party”) will not be liable for any losses, claims, expenses and liabilities (collectively, the “Losses”) that result 
from accepting such instructions, and I agree to indemnify and hold harmless each Indemnified Party from and against any and all Losses arising from or 
resulting from such reliance on, or acceptance of, such instructions.  Withdrawal proceeds can be sent only to the bank(s) indicated below unless changed 
by written instructions. Each local government is responsible for notifying the Trust of any changes to its account(s). 
 
Wires will be distributed every hour with the final distribution ending at 11:00 a.m. MT; distribution times are subject to change as needed by the 
COLOTRUST Administrator. Additionally, COLOTRUST must be notified of any contributions by 11:00 a.m. MT to receive same day credit. If funds are 
not received by 3:00 p.m. MT, contribution orders will be voided.   

 

Banking Information 

Bank Name   Bank Routing Number (ABA)   

Account Title   Account Number   

Bank Contact*   Contact’s Phone Number   

Wire ACH Both 
 
Additional Banking Information (Optional) 

Bank Name   Bank Routing Number (ABA)   

Account Title   Account Number   

Bank Contact*   Contact’s Phone Number    

Wire ACH Both 
*If there will only be one Authorized Signer on the COLOTRUST account, bank contact must be provided to verify bank 
account information 



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 
T (877) 311-0219 
F (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 
www.colotrust.com 

09/2023   

Page 5 
  

Authorized Contacts 

 
Authorized Signers Can Read-Only Users Can 

Approve changes to the Investor Profile  

Update banking/contact information 

Process transactions 

Receive account updates  

Receive account updates  

Request “view-only” access to monthly statements and transaction 
confirmations  

 
Designee Contact for Voting 

    
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone (Required) 

    
Email (Required)  Fax 

 

Permissions (check only one)     

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds*   

 Read-Only Access   

Additional Contact (Optional) Note – COLOTRUST strongly advises each participant to have multiple authorized 
signers to help prevent fraud 

    
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone (Required) 

    
Email (Required)  Fax 

 

Permissions (check only one)  Voting Contact   

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds*  Alternate Designee     

 Read-Only Access     

Additional Contact (Optional) 

    
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone (Required) 

    
Email (Required)  Fax 

 

Permissions (check only one)  Voting Contact   

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds*  Alternate Designee     

 Read-Only Access     

*The designee contact on an account is the main point of contact for an entity. They receive voting credentials for Board of Trustee elections and all other important communications.  
Please note that a Designee is not required to be an authorized signer on the account.  



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 
T (877) 311-0219 
F (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 
www.colotrust.com 

09/2023   

Page 6 
  

Authorized Contacts (cont.) 
 

Additional Contact (Optional) 
 

    
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone (Required) 

    
Email (Required)  Fax 

 

Permissions (check only one)  Voting Contact    

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds*  Alternate Designee     

 Read-Only Access     

 
Additional Contact (Optional) 

 
    
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone (Required) 

    
Email (Required)  Fax 

 

Permissions (check only one)  Voting Contact    

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds*  Alternate Designee     

 Read-Only Access     

 
Additional Contact (Optional) 

 
    
Print First and Last Name  Title 

    
*(Signature Required if Authorized Signer)  Phone (Required) 

    
Email (Required)  Fax 

  

Permissions (check only one)  Voting Contact   

 Authorized Signer to Move Funds*  Alternate Designee    

 Read-Only Access     

  



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 
T (877) 311-0219 
F (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 
www.colotrust.com 

09/2023   

Page 7 
  

PRIME and PLUS+ Accounts to be Established 
 
Entity Name:         
 

COLOTRUST PRIME Accounts  COLOTRUST PLUS+ Accounts  

Desired Subaccount Name(s)* i.e. General, etc.:  Desired Subaccount Name(s)* i.e. General, etc.: 

(To be completed by Participant)  (To be completed by Participant) 

 
Note: At least one Subaccount is required for each pool the entity would like to invest in 
 
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

*Name must be limited to 35 characters. 

  
Once your COLOTRUST account(s) has been established, you will receive a confirmation email with your login credentials 

from no-reply@colotrust.com. If you do not receive your login credentials within 48 business hours of submission, please 

first check your junk or spam folder before contacting the COLOTRUST Client Service team. 



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 
T (877) 311-0219 
F (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 
www.colotrust.com 

09/2023   

Page 8 
  

EDGE Participant Acknowledgement Form  
 

Participant Information  

Entity Name (Participant)      

     

Participant Acknowledgement  

The undersigned Authorized Signer for the Participant hereby acknowledges the following: 

 The Participant has received and reviewed the COLOTRUST EDGE Information Statement. 

 All EDGE investments are made in accordance with the COLOTRUST EDGE Investment Policy.  

 COLOTRUST EDGE is designed to complement the daily liquidity of the COLOTRUST PRIME and 

PLUS+ funds by gaining exposure to a diversified portfolio of high-quality securities.  

 The general objective of EDGE is to generate a higher level of income than provided by a traditional 

stable NAV LGIP while seeking to protect Participant capital.  

 Withdrawals are unlimited and met on a transaction date plus one (1) business day basis (T+1). 

 Withdrawals can only be initiated in the Participant Portal. 

 Any Authorized Signer has full power and authority to make investments for the above Participant. 

 COLOTRUST EDGE is designed for investors with a slightly longer investment horizon and the ability 

to tolerate a higher risk profile. 

 

                

Authorized Signer 

    
Signature    Date 

    
Printed Name  Title 

  

The investment advisor providing these services is Public Trust Advisors, LLC (Public Trust), an investment adviser registered with the SEC under the Investment Advisers Act of 

1940, as amended. Registration with the SEC does not imply a certain level of skill or training. Additionally, this registration provides no guarantee of return or protection against 

loss. COLOTRUST is not a bank. An investment in COLOTRUST is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government agency. Please 

read the applicable COLOTRUST Information Statements carefully before making an investment decision. Many factors affect performance including changes in market conditions 

and interest rates and in response to other economic, political, or financial developments. Investment involves risk including the possible loss of principal. No assurance can be 

given that the performance objectives of a given strategy will be achieved. Past performance is no guarantee of future results. Any financial and/or investment decision 

may incur losses. 

 



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 
T (877) 311-0219 
F (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 
www.colotrust.com 

09/2023   

Page 9 
  

EDGE Accounts to be Established 
 
 
Entity Name:         
 

COLOTRUST EDGE Accounts    

Desired Subaccount Name(s)* i.e. General Fund, etc.:   

(To be completed by Participant)   

 
 
   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

    

*Name must be limited to 35 characters.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Once your COLOTRUST account(s) has been established, you will receive a confirmation email with your login 

credentials from no-reply@colotrust.com. If you do not receive your login credentials within 48 business hours of 

submission, please first check your junk or spam folder before contacting the COLOTRUST Client Service team. 

COLOTRUST EDGE is designed to complement the 

daily liquidity offered by the COLOTRUST PRIME and 

COLOTRUST PLUS+ portfolios. EDGE is better suited 

for funds not needed on a frequent or near-term basis. 

COLOTRUST EDGE is designed for investors with a 

slightly longer investment horizon and the ability to 

tolerate a higher risk profile. 

 

EDGE does not seek to maintain a stable net 

asset value (NAV) and does not offer daily 

liquidity. Investing in EDGE introduces the 

potential for the reporting of unrealized and 

realized gains and losses. 

 
If you have questions about which of your local 

government’s funds are appropriate for the EDGE 

portfolio, please contact your COLOTRUST 

representative or email info@colotrust.com.   

 



 

 

717 17th Street, Suite 1850 

Denver, Colorado 80202 
T (877) 311-0219 
F (877) 311-0220 

clientservices@colotrust.com 
www.colotrust.com 

09/2023   

Page 10 
  

Dual Authorization Form  

 
 
Entity Name:        

 

Please utilize this form to request dual authorization capabilities on your COLOTRUST account. Dual authorization 

ensures that any transaction entered via the COLOTRUST online transaction portal requires approval from a 

second Authorized Signer in order to be processed (internal transfers between subaccounts do not require dual 

authorization). Note: All Authorized Signers listed on the account can enter transactions and approve them (not 

just the users below).  

 

Request to Add Dual Authorization 

Dual authorization is hereby approved for _____________________________ by the Authorized Signer 

below. By approving dual authorization, the Authorized Signer acknowledges transactions not approved by the 

11:00 a.m. MT cutoff will not be processed. Please ensure transactions are entered in a timely manner and that 

other authorized signers are available to approve the transactions for processing. 

    
Authorized Signer’s Signature   Date 
 
    
Printed Name  Title 

 
 

Entity Name 



City Calendar 
Sun 

31 

7 

14 

21 

28 

10am - Fat Bike Worlds -

Mon 

8am - New Years Day -

Newly Elected Officials 

Martin Luther King Jr. 

Tue 
2 

11am - BOCC@505 

8 9 

4pm - HPC Meeting @ 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg -

15 16 

8:30am - Tourism Panel 

11am - BOCC@500 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg @ 

22 23 

4pm - HPC - Regular Mtg 

6pm - City Attorney/City 

29 30 

Wed Thu 
3 4 

6pm - LURA Board 

10 11 

5pm - Sanitation @ 5:15pm - Parkville Water 

6pm - P&Z Meeting -

17 18 

1pm - Leadville Municipal 

24 25 

6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 

31 

6pm - LURA Board 

Fri 
January 2024

Sat 
5 6 

9am - FMB Meeting Type 

12 13 

19 20 

9am - Fire Management 

26 27 

9:30am - Fat Bike Worlds 10am - Fat Bike Worlds -

2 3 



City Calendar 
Sun 

28 

10am - Fat Bike Wor1ds -

4 

11 

18 

25 

Mon 
29 

5 

12 

19 

26 

Tue Wed 
30 31 

6 7 

11am - BOCC@505 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg 

13 14 

4pm - HPC Meeting @ 5pm - Sanitation @ 

6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 

20 21 

8:30am - Tourism Panel 1pm - Leadville Municipal 

11am - BOCC@500 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg @ 

27 28 

4pm - HPC - Regular Mtg 6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 

Thu 

6pm - LURA Board 

8 

5:15pm - Parkville Water 

15 

22 

29 

Fri 
February 2024

Sat 
2 3 

9 10 

16 17 

9am - Fire Management 

23 24 

6am - Leadville Loppet -

2 

4am - Ski Joring Set up 8am - 2024 Ski Joring 

6pm - Nordic Knockout 6:15pm - Mineral Belt 



City Calendar 
Sun 

8am - 2024 Ski Joring 

25 

3 

10 

17 

4:30pm - St Patrick's Day 

24 

31 

Mon 
26 

4 

11 

18 

25 

Tue Wed 
27 28 

4pm - HPC - Regular Mtg 6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 

5 6 

11am - BOCC@505 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg 

12 13 

4pm - HPC Meeting @ 5pm - Sanitation @ 

6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 

19 20 

8:30am - Tourism Panel 1pm - Leadville Municipal 

11am - BOCC@500 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg @ 

26 27 

4pm - HPC - Regular Mtg 6pm - P&Z Meeting @ 

2 3 

11am - BOCC@ 505 

6pm - Regular CC Mtg 

Thu 
29 

7 

6pm - LURA Board 

14 

5:15pm - Parkville Water 

21 

28 

4 

6pm - LURA Board 

Fri 
March 2024

Sat 
2 

4am - Ski Joring Set up Barn - 2024 Ski Joring 

6pm - Nordic Knockout 6:15pm - Mineral Belt 

8 9 

15 16 

9am - Fire Management 

22 23 

29 30 

5 6 


	1 - 1.16.2024 Agenda.docx
	7C - PD Monthly Report
	7D - LLCFR Monthly Report December 2023
	7F - Animal Shelter December 2023 Recaps
	7G - December 2023 Deputy City Clerk Report.docx (1)
	7H1 - City Building Permits December 2023
	7H2 - City Permit Fee Totals December 2023
	7I - 1.16.24 Planning Dept. Report
	7J1 - December 2023 - Finance Department
	7J2 - December Financials
	7K1 - Sales Tax 2023
	7K2 - Sales Tax 2024
	7L - Bills
	8A1 - Approval Letter Ski Joring TUP 2022-2024
	8A2 - Ski Joring 2022 TUP Application
	8B - COLOTRUST presentation Leadville
	8C - Thelcrest Inc. 6-unit proposal
	9A1 - 2024 01-16 Council Communication Form - Filling Council Vacancy for Ward 2b.docx
	9A2 - 2024 01-16 Resolution No. 6, Series of 2024 - Filling Vacancy of Council Member in Ward 2 by Appointment.docx
	9A3 - Best - Letter of Support.docx_Redacted
	9A4 - Kristen King_Best Support Letter.docx_Redacted
	9A5 - letter support Best 011124.doc_Redacted
	9A6 - Shannon Grant - Ward 2 Letters of Support_Redacted
	9A7 - Grant_Letter of Support
	9B1 - 2024 01-16 City Council Communication Form - Resolution No. 7, Series of 2024 Appointing Mayor Pro Tem.docx
	9B2 - 2024 01-16 Resolution No. 7. Series of 2024 - Appointing Mayor Pro Tem.docx
	9C - 2024 01-16 Resolution No. 8, Series of 2024 - Authorized signatures.docx
	9D1 - 2024 01-16 City Council Communication Form - Resolution Joining Colorado Trust.docx
	9D2 - 2024 01-16 Resolution No. 9, Series of 2024 - Joining the Colcorado Trust.docx
	9D3 - 2024 01-16 COLOTRUST Brochure
	9D4 - 2024 01-16 COLOTRUST Highlights
	9D5 - 2024 01-16 COLOTRUST PRIME Information Statement
	9D6 - 2024 01-16 COLOTRUST PRIME Investment Policy
	9D7 - 2024 01-16 COLOTRUST-Amended-and-Restated-Indenture-of-Trust
	9D8 - 2024 01-16 COLOTRUST December Rate Sheet
	9D9 - 2024 01-16 COLOTRUST Registration Form
	13 - Public Planner
	January 2024
	February 2024
	March 2024


	Entity Name - Model Resolution 1: 
	Entity Name - Model Resolution 2: 
	Entity Name - Model Resolution 3: 
	Entity Name - Model Resolution 4: 
	Date: 
	Printed Name: 
	Name of Public Local Government 2: 
	Entity Type: 
	Mailing Address: 
	City: 
	Zip: 
	County: 
	Physical Address: 
	City1: 
	Zip1: 
	County1: 
	Tax ID: 
	Fiscal Year End Date MonthDay: 
	Bank Name: 
	Bank Routing Number ABA: 
	Account Title: 
	Account Number: 
	Bank Contact: 
	Contacts Phone Number: 
	Bank Name1: 
	Bank Routing Number ABA1: 
	Account Title1: 
	Account Number1: 
	Bank Contact1: 
	Contacts Phone Number1: 
	Entity Type Button: Off
	Entity Type Button0: Off
	Entity Type Button1: Off
	Entity Type Button2: Off
	Transfer Type 1: Off
	Transfer Type 0: Off
	Transfer Type 2: Off
	Transfer Type 3: Off
	Entity Type Button3: Off
	Transfer Type 4: Off
	Transfer Type 5: Off
	Print First and Last Name: 
	Title: 
	Phone: 
	Fax: 
	Print First and Last Name 2: 
	Email 2: 
	Phone 2: 
	Fax 2: 
	Email: 
	Print First and Last Name 3: 
	Title 3: 
	Phone 3: 
	Fax 3: 
	Email 3: 
	Title 2: 
	Email Notifications 6: Off
	Email Notifications 7: Off
	Permissions 6: Off
	Permissions 7: Off
	Permissions 8: Off
	Permissions 9: Off
	Permissions 10: Off
	Permissions 11: Off
	Title 4: 
	Phone 4: 
	Fax 4: 
	Print First and Last Name 4: 
	Email 4: 
	Title 5: 
	Phone 5: 
	Fax 5: 
	Print First and Last Name 5: 
	Email 5: 
	Print First and Last Name 6: 
	Email 6: 
	Title 6: 
	Phone 6: 
	Fax 6: 
	Permissions 2: Off
	Permissions 3: Off
	Permissions 1: Off
	Permissions 0: Off
	Permissions 4: Off
	Permissions 5: Off
	Email Notifications 14: Off
	Email Notifications 15: Off
	Email Notifications 8: Off
	Name of Public Local Government 3: 
	PRIME Subaccount 1: 
	PRIME Subaccount 2: 
	PRIME Subaccount 3: 
	PRIME Subaccount 4: 
	PRIME Subaccount 5: 
	PRIME Subaccount 6: 
	PRIME Subaccount 7: 
	PRIME Subaccount 8: 
	PRIME Subaccount 9: 
	PRIME Subaccount 12: 
	PRIME Subaccount 13: 
	PRIME Subaccount 14: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 1: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 2: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 3: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 4: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 5: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 6: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 7: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 8: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 9: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 10: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 11: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 12: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 13: 
	PLUS+ Subaccount 14: 
	PRIME Subaccount 11: 
	PRIME Subaccount 10: 
	Entity Name_F0: 
	Print Name2: 
	Date0: 
	Title3: 
	Name of Public Local Government 5: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 1: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 2: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 3: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 4: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 5: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 6: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 7: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 8: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 9: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 10: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 11: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 12: 
	EDGE Subaccount Name 13: 
	Text Field0: 
	Text Field1: 
	Text Field2: 
	Text Field3: 
	Text Field4: 


